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n Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DN

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BABTTHIR © BEFERRERRSIN)

Hans Energy Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is a leading operator in
providing integrated facilities of jetties, storage tanks, warehousing and logistic services in south China for
petroleum and liquid chemicals products, offering value-added services in its own ports and storage tank
farms (the “terminal storage business”), trading of oil and petrochemical products (the “trading business")
and operating of a filling station (the “retail business”).

ERERAERAA(A2FTNREMBARN(AEE D REFRTEZIELER  REMLERHRARKELE
ERZFARERD  FERERERYARYE  YREAFBORTFRERMBERE(REAMEK]  BHE
HmRkAER(ESERE ) REEMmE ([ TEXK]) -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR

BUSINESS REVIEW

Terminal Storage Business

The Group owns and operates a liquid product terminal, namely
Dongzhou Petrochemical Terminal (“DZIT") carried out by
Dongguan Dongzhou International Petrochemical Storage Limited
("DZ International”), an indirect subsidiary of the Company.
DZIT is situated in Lisha Island, Humen Harbour district, Shatian
county, Dongguan city, Guangdong province, with a site area of
approximately 516,000 square metres. It was built with berths
ranging from 500 to 100,000 dwt and is installed with 94 oil and
petrochemical tanks of a total storage capacity of approximately
260,000 cubic metres, out of which 180,000 cubic metres are
specialised for gasoline, diesel and similar petroleum products
commonly available in trading and consumption markets.
Storage tanks with capacity of 80,000 cubic metres were built
for petrochemical products. In addition, the Group has reserved
approximately 150,000 square meters of land for the construction of
various storage facilities in the future.

Strategic Location

The liquid product terminal of the Group is located in the Greater
Bay Area. As Guangdong province is the pioneer in economic
development of China and our terminal situates in the centre of
the economic circle of the province, such location edge attracts
customers to engage with our terminal for their distribution of
refined oils. Apart from oil products customers, there are customers
who have manufacturing plants in the Greater Bay Area. In their
business cycle, there are requirements to temporarily store their
dangerous, poisonous and hazardous goods in designated controlled
facilities with proper licences in accordance with governmental
regulations for safety and environment reasons. The customers may
store their hazardous raw materials, work-in-progress and finished
goods in our storage facilities. Our terminal employs experienced,
professional and skillful management teams with well-equipped
features storage hardware. The Group persistently maintain high
standards in safety and environment protection. Our terminal is
fully and properly licensed to handle wide range of dangerous
and hazardous goods. They provide convenience to our customers
to move their products in and out of the terminal during their
production cycle.

ZE-—FFR EERERERAT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BABTTHIR © BEFERRERRSIN)

Revenue

The terminals earn storage income by leasing their storage tanks to
customers based on the storage tank size and category engaged.
Apart from this, they collect handling charges when providing
services in moving cargoes in and out from the terminals for
customers, either by water in the jetties or by road from the loading
stations. Furthermore, the terminals provide ancillary services such as
tank cleaning and waste treatment to customers and earn respective
fees for the services rendered.

Key Performance Indicators

The leaseout rates and cargo throughput are the major key
performance indicators of the terminals. Assume that the unit rate
remains the same, higher leaseout rate should return with higher
storage income. More cargoes flows mean more works in the
terminals thus more handling fee income. The leaseout rates and
cargo throughput of DZIT during the last two years are as follows:

Operational statistics

EERHRT

Liquid product terminal and REEMBER
transshipment services EH R

Number of vessels visited SREMEEE

— foreign — 4Nt

— domestic N

Number of trucks served to pick up BREY.Z
cargoes HEBEHH

Number of drums filled EREE

Transshipment volume (metric ton) e { N 7))

- oil —

~ petrochemicals —Aitm

Terminal throughput (metric ton) EEAFTE(AE)

— port jetty throughput — AT E

— loading station throughput —HBEAFHE

Storage services KPR

Leaseout rate - oil and petrochemical HAX—RR &
products (%) AILER(%)

L'ON

ZIBE R E P L FE - RIER P
B2 @A R EEREAT RN - B
s WERATFREEYELIHE
(MIBBLKBE R B R E SRR AR
B IRER RIS B o ko - BB EER R P i A
ER - OINErF 852 MR mERIE - I
ST ARG AR E A -

FERBER
HEERNEEERBENEIEXRRIER
BRREMLEBRRER/FAZ  LHEEXDTS B

FRABRERKN - BESDE BIRERE
TEERK  AtRBERATES - ¥
BEAMEFEE  RMACLENTEHEERE
BEOT

2020 Change %
—_— 7 — 7 ﬁi

95 180 -47.2

666 434 +53.5
64,634 67,517 -4.3
16,462 16,250 +1.3
25,071 84,470 -70.3
49,777 96,805 -48.6
4,165,000 4,718,000 -11.7
2,632,000 2,551,000 +3.2
1,533,000 2,167,000 -29.3
97.8 98.5  -0.7 points®h
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WAATTHIR + BETEAERRSIN)

The major operational statistics of DZIT in 2021 declined were
mainly affected by the impact of the consumption tax on some oil
and petrochemical products and the pressure of the relocation of
factories by the customers. Despite that the Group introduced some
high-quality new customers in some local state-owned enterprises
at the beginning of the year which mainly store refined oil products
and pick up cargos by vessels that drove the number of domestic
vessels visited increased by 53.5% as compared to last year, China
government began to levy consumption tax on some products
during the year, that resulted in the reduction in the number of
trucks served to pick up cargoes. Coupled with certain customers
plan to relocate factories and reduce the production, the Group's
overall transshipment volume and terminal throughput decreased by
58.7% and 11.7% respectively as compared to the last year. During
the year, the average leaseout rate for both oil and petrochemical
tanks maintain was 97.8%, representing a slight decrease of 0.7
percentage points over the last year.

Trading Business

The Group operates in trading of oil and petrochemical products
carried out in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and Hong
Kong. Shanghai Diyou Industry Co., Ltd. (“SHDY"), an indirect
subsidiary of the Company, is principally engaged in trading of
oil and petrochemical products and holds a refined oil wholesale
operating licence issued by the Ministry of Commerce of the PRC
and is also a qualified supplier for major energy companies such as
CNOOC, Sinopec etc. Besides, SHDY actively develops and expands
the end customers of filling stations and provides petrol and diesel
supplies to third party filling stations during the year. The Group has
further expanded the trading business carried out by the Group’s
subsidiary in Hong Kong to increase the Group’s customer base and
business scale during the year.

The operational statistics of trading business during the last two
years are as follows:

Operational statistics
BT

Number of sale contracts entered BRI HESREAE
Sales volume of oil and petrochemicals & & A{LE @
products (metric ton) SEEZ (AME)
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EEENWR DM

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WAPSTTHIR « BAEFAZRIN)

During the year, China government began to levy consumption tax
on some refined oil products such as light cycle oil, mixed aromatics
and diluted asphalt, which hindered the Group's expansion of light
cycle oil trade business. In addition, as China strengthened the
supervision of taxation on the upstream and downstream distribution
of refined oil products, the market price became more transparent
and the price difference between the north and the south shrank. As
a result, SHDY reduced its back-to-back orders considerably during
the year, leading to a decrease of over 25% and 50% in the number
of sales contracts entered into and sales volume respectively during
the year. In order to improve unit profit and minimize the impact
of the consumption tax on the sale volumes, the Group changed
its business strategies, and vigorously expanded and developed the
end customers of filling stations, which not only facilitated SHDY’s
business operations to bring into play the advantages of centralised
procurement, reduced procurement cost and gained stable profit
through the way of centralised procurement, retail and wholesale,
but also helped to enhance the market risk resistance and obtain
higher profit by leveraging on market price fluctuation. Besides,
the Group actively expanded its import trade to drive the trading
business carried out by the Group’s subsidiary in Hong Kong. During
the year, the Group entered into 93 sales contracts with a total sales
volume of approximately 447,000 metric ton.

Retail Business

The Group owns a filling station which was situated in Zengcheng
district, Guangzhou city, the PRC with a site area of approximately
12,500 square metres. Its floor area, fuel island configuration,
equipment level and construction standards all meet the standards
of local flagship filling stations. The filling station has commenced
its operations since April 2020 and in order improve the operational
efficiency, during the year was leased out to an independent third
party by the Group for rental income. The Group actively expands
its share of the refined oil retail market by increasing its business
segments through various means, including but not limited to
leasing, signing of key fuel supply agreement and providing brand
management services. Currently, there are eight filling stations
under the brand “Hans Energy” located across Guangdong Province
and Guangxi Province in the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WAATTHIR + BETEAERRSIN)

SEGMENT REVENUE

During the year, the Group manages its operations by three existing
reportable segment revenue from the business of (i) trading, (ii)
terminal storage and (iii) retail. The breakdown is as follows:

2 EBIA

FA - AEBURE=ERBENEHES
(IR RS + UR(iNTEXBH A W
ERNERAEITER - BBASTAT

Trading Terminal Storage Retail
BERR 3£
201 2020 2021 2020 2021
-g5--f “E--F “5°%F “E--F
§'000 §'000 $'000 ) §000
i i S % i
Sales of oil and HERRR
petrochemical AltER
products 1,791,052 100.0 2299128 1000 - - - - - - - - 1,791,052 908 2,299,128 926
Storage income HRMA = = - - 1280M 762 121435 739 - - - - 1280 65 121435 48
Transshipmentand ~ EEREf
other handing e
income WA - - - - 3570 213 41,086 250 - - - - 35710 18 41,086 17
Port income EORA - - - - 1,518 09 1832 11 - - - - 1,518 0.1 1832 01
Interconnection income  BEBEMA - - - - 261 16 - - - - - - 261 0.1 - -
Retail revenue from Ry
operating TERA
afilling station - - - - - - - - 13328 1000 18425 1000 13328 07 18425 08
1791052 1000 2299128 1000 167,978 1000 164353 1000 13328 1000 18425 1000 1972358  100.0 2481906  100.0

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group's total revenue
decreased from $2,481.9 million to $1,972.4 million, a decrease by
20.5% as compared to the last year. During the year, total revenue
from sales of oil and petrochemical products was $1,791.1 million,
accounting for 90.8% of the Group’s total revenue, decreased
by 22.1% as compared to the last year. The decrease was mainly
attributable to the decrease in the number of sales contracts entered
and sale volume in SHDY as a result from the consumption tax on
some refined oil products imposed by China government at the
beginning of the year. During the year, revenue from the provision
of terminal, storage and transshipment activities for liquid chemicals
products in DZIT was $168.0 million, a slightly increase by 2.2% on
a year basis. The increase was mainly attributable to the appreciation
of average exchange rate in Renminbi yuan (“RMB") during the
year. Excluding the appreciation effect, revenue from the provision
of terminal, storage and transshipment activities for liquid chemicals
products in DZIT decreased by about 4.7% during the year. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the impact of the consumption
tax on some oil and petrochemical products by China government
and the relocation factories by some customers that reduced the
Group's overall transshipment volume and terminal throughput
during the year. Revenue from operating a filling station decreased
from $18.4 million to $13.3 million, a decrease by 27.7% on a year
basis. The decrease was mainly attributable that the Group leased
out the filling station to an independent third party for rental income
from August 2021, resulting that retail revenue from operating a
filling station only accounted for seven months during the year.
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[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (JAZ T3~

OUTLOOK

The Group's overall operating profit continued to improve in 2021.
While operating income maintained its growth, net assets of the
Company increased significantly as a result of appreciation of
financial investments. This reflects that the Group’s diversification
has begun to play a positive role. On this basis, it is expected
that the Group will achieve better operating results and greater
profitability in the coming year.

Actively promoting new terminal storage construction projects
In 2022, the Dongzhou Petrochemical storage facilities will continue
to maintain a high leaseout rate to ensure the continued stability
and growth of revenue from the terminal storage business. The
new structure of project companies and the shareholding allocation
plan have been agreed with corresponding parties for the second
phase of the Dongzhou Petrochemical project in 2021, namely,
the construction of liquefied natural gas (“LNG") contingency peak
adjustment storage, gasification and transmission facilities on the
existing reserve land and corresponding modifications to ancillary
facilities to the terminal. We are now making the every effort to
push the process of the project approval works from the local
government to complete as soon as possible. Since the handling and
storage charges for LNG and other liquefied gases are several times
higher than those for oil and liquid chemicals, the completion of
this project will significantly increase the revenue and profitability of
Dongzhou Petrochemical.

Continuing to develop the trading and retail business

In 2021, the international trading business operated by the Group's
Hong Kong subsidiary commenced, which compensated for the
decline in trading volume of the domestic refined oil products due
to the influence of China’s policies and market price fluctuations,
leading to an increase in the overall trading volume and gross profit
of the Group. In 2022, the Group will continue to expand its scale
of operation by exploring new trading customers and product
categories. For the filling station business, the Group adjusted its
business model by leasing out its self-operated filling station assets
to an independent third party, which freed itself from the tedious
daily management and operation of the retail segment, and focused
on expanding its market share through the signing of fuel supply
agreements and providing brand licensing franchises. Through this
approach, the number of franchised filling stations under the brand
“Hans Energy” reached eight as of the end of 2021. In 2022, the
Group will continue to sign new franchising agreements to expand
its share in the refined oil retail market.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR

New energy industry is an important investment direction for
the Group

At the end of 2021, the Group completed the Tranche 1 subscription
of the shares in Bravo Transport Holdings Limited (“BTHL"), the
parent company of New World First Bus Services Limited (“NWFB")
and Citybus Limited (“Citybus”). The Tranche 2 Completion took
place on 28 March 2022, and immediately after the Tranche 2
Completion, the Group acquired a total of 7% of the entire issued
share capital of BTHL. Thereafter, the Group holds approximately
15.56% of the entire issued share capital of BTHL. The principal
considerations for the increased investment in BTHL are as follows:
on the one hand, the bus companies are good investment targets
because of their stable cash income and huge appreciation potential.
On the other hand, to act in concert with the HKSAR government’s
goal of achieving carbon neutrality, NWFB and Citybus propose
to develop hydrogen fuel cell buses plan. This is highly consistent
with the strategic intent underlying one of Hans Energy’s future
development directions of exploring new energies (especially
hydrogen energy) supply chain related business, which will enable
realization of mutual benefits and synergized development. In 2022,
the Group will increase its research and investment in the hydrogen
energy supply chain field and strive to screen out hydrogen energy
supply and storage projects that can be used in Hong Kong, and
provide fuel supply solutions for the introduction and promotion of
the use of hydrogen fuel cell buses and other hydrogen fuel vehicles
in Hong Kong, thereby contributing to the achievement of the goal
of “Carbon Neutral” in Hong Kong.

ZE-—FFR EERERERAT
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BABTTHIR © BEFERRERRSIN)

FINANCIAL REVIEW
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s financial
performance are set out as below:

Revenue A

Direct costs and operating expenses ERERAREERY

Gross profit EF

Earnings before interest and tax B B BAT A A
("EBIT") (TEBIT])

Depreciation and amortisation WE R

Finance costs BRRE AR

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation KFIE - B8 - I8 K
and amortisation (“EBITDA") A ZF([EBITDA)

Gross profit margin (%) EFE(%)

Net loss margin (%) FIEER(%)

Basic and diluted losses per share (cents) — FRXEAR LESEEE (1)
Revenue and gross profit margin

During the year, the Group’s revenue was approximately $1,972.4
million (2020: $2,481.9 million), representing a decrease of 20.5%
over the last year. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
decrease in revenue from sale of oil and petrochemical products
carried out by SHDY by 22.3% over the last year. During the year,
total revenue from trading of oil and petrochemical products
was $1,791.1 million, accounting for 90.8% of the Group’s total
revenue. During the year, the gross profit was approximately $104.4
million (2020: $66.4 million), an increase of 57.3% over the last
year and gross profit margin was 5.3%, increased by 2.6 percentage
points on a yearly basis. The increase was attributable to the increase
of trading activities to the end customers of filling stations with
higher gross profit margin.
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BHE_ZT-_—F+-HA=+—HIEFE"
REENPBRBHIIOT
Changes
(¢
%
%
1,972,358 2,481,906 -20.5
(1,867,945) (2,415,509) -22.7
104,413 66,397 +57.3
46,780 11,553 +304.9
76,227 74,303 +2.6
54,934 49,895 +10.1
123,007 85,856 +43.3
5.3 2.7 +2.6 points®h
-0.7 -1.6 -0.9 points®;
(0.41) (1.07) -61.7
WA RERZE

FR - AEEHRALAE19.724F (=
T TF 248198 L) MEF T K
205% °c TEREZERN LBHBELEED
mmEAEMBEERAREF TR
223% c FA - HmEALERE SR
WABITONMET - EEASEERIAR
90.8% ° FA + EFHA1.044EL(ZF
ZEF 6,640870)  REAFIENS7.3%
FEFEAE53% @ ZFILIN2.61EE D2 - 12
EMERETYEZEHRENRE S/ HNH I
BInEPRE BRI INFTER °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR

Direct costs and operating expenses

During the year, the Group’s direct costs and operating expenses
were approximately $1,867.9 million (2020: $2,415.5 million),
representing a decrease of 22.7% over the last year, of which cost
of inventories from oil and petrochemical products were $1,759.5
million (2020: $2,309.3 million), accounting for 94.2% of total
direct costs and operating expenses. The decrease of direct costs
and operating expenses was consistent to the decrease of revenue
during the year.

EBIT and EBITDA

During the year, the Group’s EBIT was approximately $46.8 million
(2020: $11.6 million), increased by 304.9% over the last year.
The increase was mainly attributable to the increase in net fair
value gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVPL") by approximately $73.4 million, and increase of gross
profit by approximately $38.0 million offset by the increase in loss
allowance of trade and other receivables of approximately $13.7
million and increase of equity settled share-based payment expenses
by approximately $56.0 million. As a result of the increase of EBIT,
EDITDA also increased to $123.0 million (2020: $85.9 million) for
the year, increased by 43.3% over the last year.

Finance costs

During the year, finance costs amounted to $54.9 million (2020:
$49.9 million) which were mainly incurred on the Group’s
outstanding bank loans. The increase was mainly attributable to the
increase of bank borrowing interest rate during the year and the
appreciation of average exchange rate in RMB as compare to last
year.

Taxation

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended 31
December 2021 is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable
profits of the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a
qualifying corporation under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime.
No Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided for the year ended 31
December 2020 as the Group sustained a loss for Hong Kong Profits
Tax purposes for the year. The applicable tax rate of the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2021 was 25%
(2020: 25%).

Basic and diluted losses per share
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the basic and diluted loss
per share was $0.41 cents (2020: $1.07 cents).
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LIQUIDITY, GEARING AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's total cash and cash
equivalents amounted to approximately $118.2 million (2020: $353.2
million). Most of the funds were held in HK dollars, RMB and US
dollars.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had total assets of
approximately $2,286.7 million (2020: $2,020.5 million) and net
current assets of approximately $354.3 million (2020: $665.4
million). The change was mainly attributable to the subscription of
shares in BTHL with an amount of $244.6 million settled by cash and
bank balances, the net fair value gains on financial assets at FVPL
approximately $70.0 million and the fair value gains on unlisted
equity securities at fair value through other comprehensive income
approximately $309.3 million during the year. The current ratio as at
31 December 2021 of the Group was 2.02 (2020: 2.75). The change
was mainly attributable to the decrease in cash and bank balances
and the increase in short-term bank borrowing.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had outstanding bank
borrowings of $768.2 million (2020: $789.8 million). The total equity
of the Group as at 31 December 2021 amounted to approximately
$1,352.4 million (2020: $986.2 million). The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase of investment revaluation reserve by
approximately $309.3 million. The gearing ratio (defined as total
liabilities to total assets) as at 31 December 2021 was 40.9% (2020:
51.2%). The Group will continuously consider various financial
methods to improve our existing financial position and reduce the
degree of leverage of the Group.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group met its
working capital requirement principally from its business operation
and financed with facilities provided by bank. Management is
confident that the Group should have adequate financial resources
to meet its future debt repayment and support its working capital
and future expansion requirements. Due attention will be paid to
the capital and debt markets as well as the latest developments of
the Group in order to ensure the efficient use of financial resources.
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ZEBEENNEREFRELT7,0008 7T
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS AND FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

0]

7

Subscription of shares in Bravo Transport Holdings
Limited

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated
21 August 2020 in relation to, among others, the previous
subscription of shareholding interests in Bravo Transport
Holdings Limited (“BTHL") by Templewater Bravo Holdings
Limited (“TWB Holdings"”), Glorify Group Limited (“Glorify”)
(a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and Ascendal
Bravo Limited (“ABL") pursuant to the BTHL Share Subscription
Agreement. Following the completion of the issue of such BTHL
Shares pursuant to the BTHL Share Subscription Agreement
and as at the date hereof, BTHL is held as to approximately
90.85%, approximately 8.56% and approximately 0.59% by
TWB Holdings, Glorify and ABL, respectively.

On 3 December 2021, Glorify entered into the Sale and
Purchase Agreement with TWB Holdings and ABL, pursuant
to which Glorify has conditionally agreed to acquire, and
TWB Holdings and ABL have conditionally agreed to sell, an
aggregate of 700 BTHL Shares, being 695 BTHL Shares from
TWB Holdings and 5 BTHL Shares from ABL, respectively and
together representing 7% of the entire issued share capital of
BTHL at the total consideration of $350,000,000 (equivalent to
US$44,929,397).

Upon Tranche 1 Completion, BTHL will be owned as
to approximately 85.99%, approximately 13.45% and
approximately 0.56% by TWB Holdings, Glorify and ABL,
respectively. Upon Tranche 2 Completion, BTHL will be held
as to approximately 83.90%, approximately 15.56% and
approximately 0.54% by TWB Holdings, Glorify and ABL,
respectively.

Tranche 1 and the Tranche 2 Completion took place on 8
December 2021 and 28 March 2022, respectively and all the
conditions precedent for Tranche 1 Completion and Tranche
2 Completion were fulfilled. As at 31 December 2021, Glorify
holds 1,344.91 BTHL Shares, representing approximately
13.45% of the entire issued share capital in BTHL. As at the
date of this annual report, Glorify holds 1,555.91 BTHL Shares,
representing approximately 15.56% of the entire issued share
capital in BTHL.

Further details of the aforementioned transaction are set out in
the announcements of the Company dated 3 December 2021
and 28 March 2022.
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(i)

(iii)

SEZAERIN)

Provision of financial assistance

Pursuant to the BTHL Shareholders’ Agreement, each of Glorify
and ABL has agreed to pledge 51% of the BTHL Shares held by
each of them from time to time, to TWB Holdings as a back-
to-back arrangement for TWB Holdings’ granting of a share
charge over a total of 5,100 BTHL Shares held by TWB Holdings
in favour of the vendor under the acquisition agreement
referred to in the announcement of the Company dated 21
August 2020.

Accordingly, upon each of Tranche 1 Completion and Tranche
2 Completion, Glorify shall deposit with TWB Holdings, share
certificates representing 51% of the Sale Shares acquired
by Glorify at each of Tranche 1 Completion and Tranche 2
Completion, for the purpose of topping up Glorify’s obligations
to pledge 51% of the BTHL Shares held by it.

Subscription of limited partnership interest

As at 31 December 2021, total capital contribution into the
limited partnership was approximately $22 million (equivalent
to approximately US$2.8 million) as set out in note 32 to the
financial statements.

Save for those disclosed in this annual report, there was no other
significant investments, nor there was no any other material
acquisitions or disposals during the year. The Group did not have
any future plans for materials investments nor addition of capital
assets as at the reporting date.
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE RATES AND
PRICES AND RELATED HEDGE

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held predominately
in HK dollars, RMB and US dollars. Operating outgoings incurred
by the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are mainly denominated in
RMB, which usually receives revenue in RMB as well. Management
considers that the Group exposed to fluctuation in exchange rates
are not significant. Prices of oil products are affected by a wide
range of global and domestic factors which are beyond the control
of the Group. The fluctuations in such prices may have favourable
or unfavourable impacts on the Group. However, the Group mainly
operated on a back-to-back sale and purchase model and has been
vigorously developing the establishment of end customers of filling
stations (including branded filling stations) to reduce procurement
costs by centralising procurement, retail and wholesale, which
not only prevents risk of oil price fluctuations but also enhances
profitability. Accordingly, management is in the opinion that the
Group's exposure to foreign exchange rate and price risks are not
significant, and hedging by means of derivative instruments is
considered unnecessary.

Save for the above disclosed, there was no other significant risks of
exchange rates and price during the year ended 31 December 2021.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of approximately
230 employees (2020: 230), 187 (2020: 205) of which worked
for the terminals. The Group remunerates its employees based on
industry practices and individual performance and experience. Every
year, the Group devises a budget which states total salary and bonus
plan for the year to encourage the Group’s employees to contribute
their best efforts and to make maximum economic benefits to the
Group. In accordance with the relevant government regulations in
the PRC, the Group is required to cover social insurance, including
but not limited to retirement, medical, workman compensation
and unemployment insurance as well as housing fund for every
qualified employee in the PRC. With these insurance policies and
staff benefits, the Group hopes to provide a reasonable welfare
for each qualified employee. On top of the basic remuneration,
discretionary award or bonus (in cash or other forms in kind) as may
be determined by the Board may be granted to selected employees
by reference to the Group’s as well as individual’s performances.
Details are set out in the section of “Directors’ Report” under the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” and “Share Award
Scheme”.
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CHARGE ON GROUP’S ASSETS

The Group has provided the lender with certain of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and interests in leasehold land and
buildings held for own use as collaterals for the banking facilities
granted. Details are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

COMMITMENT
Details of commitments are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2021, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Directors do not recommend any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EEREHREBEASHRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. David An, aged 62, has been the Chairman and an executive
Director of the Company since July 2002. He has many years of
experience in China business particularly in the provision trading of
petroleum products and petrochemicals, properties investments and
developments in China.

Mr. Yang Dong, aged 61, has been an executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since July 2016. Mr.
Yang joined the Company in 2012. Prior to that, he held various
senior key positions in the subsidiaries of China Petroleum &
Chemical Corporation such as the deputy general manager in China
Petrochemical International Co. Ltd. and deputy chairman and
executive director in Sinopec Kantons Holdings Limited (Stock code:
934), the securities of which is listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). He has extensive experience
in international trade of petroleum and chemical commodities. Mr.
Yang graduated from Beijing Normal University with a degree in
Economics. He also holds a Master’s degree in Project Management
from University of Management and Technology.

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 56, has been an executive Director of the
Company since August 2007. Mr. Zhang joined the Company
as Chief Operating Officer, PRC in 2006. He has many years of
experience in petroleum and petrochemical industry. He has
expertise in petrochemical specialized technology and is familiar
with financial accounting policy and system of the PRC. Mr.
Zhang also has in-depth knowledge in large petrochemical project
management. He had held various key positions such as the chief
financial officer of the Singapore branch, deputy general manager
and chief financial officer of the Hong Kong branch of China
Petrochemical Corporation. Mr. Zhang graduated from Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics and obtained the qualification
of engineer.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Wai Keung, aged 65, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since July 2002. He is also
the Chairman of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Mr. Li graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
and holds a Master’s degree in Business Administration from The
University of East Asia. He is a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Li is now an independent non-
executive director of Shenzhen Investment Limited (stock code:
604), China South City Holdings Limited (stock code: 1668) and
Centenary United Holdings Limited (stock code: 1959); and Mr. Li
is an independent non-executive director of Midland IC&I Limited
(stock code: 459) from 29 March 2022, the securities of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Li had worked for Henderson Land
Development Company Limited. He was a chief financial officer of
GDH Limited and Guangdong Holdings Limited until 31 December
2019, an executive director and company secretary of Guangdong
Land Holdings Limited (stock code: 124) until 20 February 2020
and a non-executive director of Guangdong Investment Limited
(stock code: 270) until 28 March 2020, the securities of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Apart from the abovementioned, Mr.
Li is the standing committee member of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference Guangdong Provincial Committee, and an
advisor of Management Accounting of Ministry of Finance, the PRC
from April 2021.

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony, aged 50, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since May 2005. He is also
the Chairman of Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Chan is a Certified Public Accountant and owns a certified
public accounting practice. He has extensive experience in general
assurance and business advisory services in both Hong Kong and
the PRC. Moreover, Mr. Chan has extensive experience in public
listings in Hong Kong and Singapore, mergers and acquisition as
well as corporate finance. He holds a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from the Manchester Business School. Mr. Chan is
now an independent non-executive director of Honbridge Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8137), the security of which is listed on the
Stock Exchange. He resigned as an independent non-executive
director of Wai Chun Mining Industry Group Company Limited
(stock code: 660) and Wai Chun Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1013) with effect from 6 November 2020, the securities of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Besides, he was no longer
a joint company secretary of Zhejiang Canguan Instrument Group
Company Limited (stock code: 1743) as the security of which was
delisted on the Stock Exchange with effect from 5 July 2021.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chung Chak Man, William, aged 63, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director of the Company with effect
from 15 March 2022. Mr. Chung has extensive experience in
business management in the public transportation industry. Since
January 2021, he has been the vice chairman of Bravo Transport
Services Limited (“Bravo Transport”), which is the holding company
of Citybus Limited (“Citybus”) and New World First Bus Services
Limited (“New World First Bus”) and the vice chairman of Citybus
and New World First Bus. Mr. Chung has been a director of Bravo
Transport since 1 April 2019, a director of Citybus since March
2004, and a director of New World First Bus since February 2010.
He was previously the managing director of Citybus and New World
First Bus from April 2019 to January 2021. From March 2004 to
March 2019, Mr. Chung was the head of operations of Citybus and
New World First Bus. He was also an executive director of Kwoon
Chung Bus Holdings Limited (stock code: 306), the security of which
is listed on the Stock Exchange, from June 2008 to May 2014. Mr.
Chung is a chartered fellow of the Chartered Institute of Logistics
and Transport in Hong Kong (the “CILTHK") and has been serving
the CILTHK as a council member since October 2016. He has been
a non-official member of the Road Safety Strategic Engagement
Working Group in the Road Safety Council since August 2019, and
a member of the Accessible Transport and Travel Committee in the
Hong Kong Society for Rehabilitation since November 2019. Mr.
Chung holds a Master of Business Administration from the University
of South Australia.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Xiao Hui, aged 53, is the director and chairman of
Dongguan Dongzhou International Petrochemical Storage Limited
("DZ International™”). Mr. Li has extensive knowledge and experience
in technology and operating management of oil and petrochemicals
storage. He also holds a Master’s degree of corporate management
from Liaoning Shihua University (formerly named as #JIE7 5t £55%).

Mr. Huang Bo Heng, aged 45, is the director and general manager
of DZ International. He graduated from Guangdong Petroleum
School (BRAMER) in 1997. and is now studying at China
University of Petroleum (East China) with a major in petrochemical
technology. Mr. Huang has solid knowledge and many years of
experience in technology, construction project and operating
management of oil and petrochemicals storage. He is now fully
responsible for the production and safety of DZIT.

ZE-—FFR EERERERAT

EENEREBEAESRHE

EENKE 635 RZEZZF =R
THABEZAAERRARBIIENITES -
BAETEARERTENEFEEHFE
ERE AT -—F— A HIETE
EBREAERAR([EERRE]) (BRE
ERAT([HE]) Rttt RE B+ AR
BRAG(FHEDBOZERAR)MEEE
UERBERFENEERE EXEE =%
—NFHEA—BREFEEIRHNES -
BE-ZTNF= AREABEMNES I
B ZTF_AREAFEMNES -
BN _E-AENAE T - —F— A
AHERTEMNERRLE - R_FZN
FZAE_T-NE=ZA - BREARWEE
METEREERE - FIRZTT\FN
AE-Z—NFRAEIEAELTE£EE
BAF(BRMDARSE : 306)NEITESE » %
DRIZHBERBRET - EBAERESE
Enyrse((E5EEMRES )Nk
T B AT+ ARETESEGY
mEemEE e T—NE/\ARE
TERTEZTERLTEREBELETE/N
HEFFEAKE YA -ZT—NF+—A
BECEBERSEEREGRIREEZE
EMEE - BEAERBERAENTIEE
BT o

BREEE
FTHREALE  S35% REmRMEERAS
tRRERAR(RMNERDESRES
& o FRAEABE LA FRMMRE
EETHALENBLER RITRFAE
BAMETRE(AREEIELHSER)BXE
ERIRT R

BERELE 455 RMEEREZRE
B FR—NANEFREXRNEROHES
R REBRERPEAORAR(ER)A
HETRMEE - EAEHEL B RO
il - TIRIAE RZEEETHARAER
EMER BAZFEENER - KA
E2HAEERMNOLEENEENZE -

21



Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEASHE

Mr. Deng Zhi Gang, aged 48, is the director and deputy general
manager of DZ International. Mr. Deng obtained a Master’s degree
in Business Administration from University of San Francisco. He has
many years of experience in trading and marketing in the business
of storage for oil and petrochemical products.

Mr. Cui Ming, aged 65, is the director and consultant of Shanghai
Diyou Industry Co., Ltd (“SHDY"). Prior to that, Mr. Cui was the
deputy general manager of the sales department of FA{LEER
7). He has been engaged in the sales of petroleum products for a
long time and has extensive experience in the sales and marketing
management of petroleum products.

Mr. Han Ming, aged 50, is the general manager of SHDY. Prior to
that, Mr. Han graduated from Heilongjiang Institute of Commerce,
where he majored in oil storage and transportation operation. Mr.
Han has many years of experience in business operation and import
and export customs of cargoes.

Mr. Nie Yu Hua, aged 54, is the director and financial controller
of DZ International. Mr. Nie is an International Certified Internal
Auditor, a member of the Chinese Institute of Certificate Public
Accountants and has professional accountant qualification in
PRC. He has over 15 years financial management experiences in
large state owned enterprises, and has worked as a senior project
manager in a renowned accounting firm.

Ms. Lam Lai Wan, Bondie, aged 46, has been the company
secretary of the Company since February 2017 and was appointed
as Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from 30
December 2021. Ms. Lam joined the Company in April 2008 and
is responsible for accounting and financial management, corporate
governance and company secretarial duties. Ms. Lam has extensive
experience in accounting, auditing and financial management.
Prior to joining the Company, she had worked for auditing and
accounting at reputable international accounting firms and listed
companies. Ms. Lam is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada. Ms. Lam graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a bachelor’s degree in Accountancy.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its
business in compliance with the principles and code provisions (the
“Code Provisions”) set out in the corporate governance code (the
“CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). The board of Directors
(the "Board”) is of the view that throughout the year, the Company
has complied with the CG Code except for the deviations explained
in the relevant part of this annual report.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of the CG
Code.

THE BOARD

Roles and Responsibilities

The Company has formalised and adopted written terms on the
division of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the
management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies and
plans with a view to enhance shareholder interests while the day-to-
day operations of the Company are delegated to the management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”), with a view to ensuring
that Board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
followed.

Each Director is normally able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making request to the Board.
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The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the chief executive and the
senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the chief executive and the senior
management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience
necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its business
needs.

As at 31 December 2021, the Board comprised five members,
including three executive Directors and two independent non-
executive Directors.

The composition of the Board during the year was set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. David An (Chairman and Member of Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Yang Dong (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Liu Zhijun (resigned on 23 October 2021)

Mr. Zhang Lei

Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs")

Mr. Li Wai Keung (Chairman of Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee and Member of Nomination Committee)

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony (Chairman of Nomination Committee and
Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Woo King Hang (resigned on 22 December 2021)

The following Director was appointed after the end of the financial
year and up to the date of this annual report:

INEDs

Mr. Chung Chak Man, William (Member of Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee)
(appointed on 15 March 2022)
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None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, every board of directors
of a listed issuer must include at least three INEDs. Pursuant to Rule
3.11 of the Listing Rules, the issuer shall appoint a sufficient number
of INEDs to meet the minimum number required under Rule 3.10(1)
and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules within three months after failing
to meet the requirements. Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules,
the audit committee shall comprise non-executive directors only and
must comprise a minimum of three members.

Following the resignation of Mr. Woo King Hang on 22 December
2021, the Board comprises five members, including three executive
Directors and two INEDs. This falls below the minimum number of
INEDs and members of the Audit Committee requirement under
Rules 3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

Following the appointment of Mr. Chung Chak Man, William as an
INED and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee with effect from 15
March 2022, the Board has six directors, three of whom are INEDs.
Accordingly, the Company is in compliance with the requirements
of Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Audit
Committee comprises three members, all of whom are INEDs.
Accordingly, the Company is in compliance with the requirements of
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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INEDs

The INEDs bring a wide range of business and financial expertise,
experiences and independent judgement to the Board. Through
active participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing
issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving on Board
committees, all INEDs make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
INED in respect of his independence pursuant to the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
has assessed his independence and concluded that all INEDs are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment and succession planning of
Directors.

Each of the INEDs has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of three years from their date of appointment.

Pursuant to the Company’s memorandum and article of association,
all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years at the Company’s general meeting and any Directors
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting after his/her appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting.

Pursuant to Article 116 of the Company’s memorandum and articles
of association, Mr. Zhang Lei and Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony shall
retire by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 99 of the Company’s memorandum and articles
of association, Mr. Chung Chak Man, William shall hold office until
the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible, offer
himself for re-election.
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Every newly appointed Director will receive comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment,
so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully
aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. Reading material on relevant topics will be issued to
Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Code Provision
C.1.4 on Directors’ training. During the year, all Directors attended
seminars and training sessions arranged by various professional
institutes and bodies. In addition, relevant reading materials
including the updates on the business, operations, corporate
governance, legal and regulatory matters have been provided to all
Directors for their reference and studying.

The participation by individual Directors in the continuous
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professional development programme during the year ended 31 {AR|ES2MSEHEE R ANLEN
December 2021 is recorded in the table below: T
Attending
seminars/
conferences/
Reading materials webcasts
HEHNE
Name of Directors EERA FEER g8 HLEE
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. David An EES e v/ v
Mr. Yang Dong R 4 v
Ms. Liu Zhijun BIEELL(R=F=—F
(resigned on 23 October 2021) +A=+=ZHAFET) v v
Mr. Zhang Lei REE A 4 v
INEDs BUHFHTEE
Mr. Li Wai Keung FREEE 4 v
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony PRIRIE A4 v v
Mr. Woo King Hang S ERE (R =T —F
(resigned on 22 December 2021) += A== HEHF) v v/
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Board Meetings EEgeR

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance BBRRESHERY

Ten Board meetings were held during the year ended 31 December #HE_ZT_-_—F+_A=1+—HILFENX
2021. ERTTRESESEH -

The individual attendance (either in person or through other REBE-—_ET-_—F+_F=+—8I1%F
electronic means of communication) record of each Director [+ SEEREZE - ELZEE - H
at the meetings of the Board, the Nomination Committee, the ZE&@REZZESSZMNEALRE (E:HR
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee during the year B Es:FBEME F@ ) L8k s 7m0
ended 31 December 2021 is set out below: T

Attendance/Number of meetings held during the tenure of directorship
RESEHALFR CETERRY

Annual Extraordinary

Nomination Remuneration Audit General General
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting Meeting
Directors Bz EZE REZEE FWZEE ENZEE RREFAE RRHBAAS
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. David An HELE
(Chairman of the Board) (BEE21F) 010 NATER "n NATER 1 on
Mr. Yang Dong VRS %
(Chief Executive Officer) (1754%) 1010 NARER  NATER  NATER n i
Ms. Liu Zhijun HFELL(—F——F
(resigned on 23 October 2021) +A=F=AFH) 46 NATER  NATER  NATEE n i
Mr. Zhang Lei RELE 1010 NATER NATEF NANEA 01 o
INEDs BUFBTEE
Mr. Li Wai Keung FR®EE 1010 22 11 33 11 i
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony BRiRE LA 1010 2R [ 33 1 1/
Mr. Woo King Hang e E(CE——F
(resigned on 22 December 2021)  F= A=+ HEHF) 9/10 20 7N 33 il 17

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held KREE&M &I - FERFFEIFEEFEE
meetings with the INEDs without the presence of executive Directors X C.2.71§  EHITEETEBZIBERT
during the year pursuant to the Code Provision C.2.7. BB FRITERRITEE
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days
before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the
Directors apprised of the latest developments and financial position
of the Company and to enable them to make informed decisions.
The Board and each Director also have separate and independent
access to the senior executives whenever necessary.

Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes of
all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are
normally circulated to Directors for comment within a reasonable
time after each meeting and the final version is open for Directors’
inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a
Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Company’s memorandum and articles
of association also contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.

Company Secretary

Ms. Lam Lai Wan, Bondie is the Company Secretary. According to
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, she has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December
2021. The biographic of Ms. Lam is set out in the section headed
“Profile of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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Board Diversity Policy
The Board adopted the board diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”)
on 29 August 2013.

All Board appointments will be based on merits, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates for Board
membership will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, experience, cultural and
educational background, expertise, skills and know-how.

The Nomination Committee will review the Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of such policy.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six
Directors, of which three of them are INEDs.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ") should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

The Company complies with the Code Provision C.2.1, the positions
of the Chairman and CEO are segregated and are held by Mr.
David An and Mr. Yang Dong respectively. These positions have
clearly defined separate responsibilities. Mr. David An will focus
on the overall strategic planning and business development of the
Group, whereas Mr. Yang Dong will be responsible for the overall
management, administrative functions and day-to-day business
operations of the Group.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of the CG
Code.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are posted on the Company’s website and Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited’s website and are available to
shareholders upon request.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expenses.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of the annual report, the Nomination Committee
comprised three INEDs, namely Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony (Chairman
of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Li Wai Keung and Mr. Chung
Chak Man, William.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of Directors, and assessment of the independence of the
INEDs.

The Nomination Committee will reference to the Board nomination
policy (the “Nomination Policy”) adopted by the Group on 21
December 2018 for selecting and recommending candidates for
directorships.

Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee will evaluate, select and recommend
candidate(s) for directorships to the Board by giving due
consideration to criteria, having due regard to the benefits of
diversity on the Board, including but not limited to gender, age,
experience, cultural and educational background, expertise, skills and
know-how, sufficient time to effectively carry out their duties, their
services on other listed and non-listed companies should be limited
to reasonable numbers, qualifications including accomplishment
and experience in the relevant industries the Company’s business
is involved in, independence, reputation for integrity, potential
contributions that the individual(s) can bring to the Board and
commitment to enhance and maximise shareholders’ value.
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Nomination Process

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for
the appointment of a Director in accordance with the following
procedures and process:

(a

32

By giving due consideration to the current composition and size
of the Board, develop a list of desirable skills, perspectives and
experience at the outset to focus the search effort;

To consult any source it deems appropriate in identifying or
selecting suitable candidates, such as referrals from existing
directors, advertising, recommendations from an independent
agency firm and proposals from shareholders of the Company
with due consideration given to the criteria;

To adopt any process it deems appropriate in evaluating the
suitability of the candidates, such as interviews, background
checks, presentations and third-party reference checks;

Upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship,
the Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by
way of written resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the
recommendation to the Board for appointment;

To make the recommendation to the Board in relation to
the proposed appointment and the proposed remuneration
package;

The Board will have the final authority on determining the
selection of nominees;

In order to be eligible to be elected as Director at any general
meeting, the candidate should be recommended by the Board;
or a notice in writing by a member of the Company given
his intention to propose such candidate, and also a notice in
writing by the candidate of his willingness to be elected; and

In the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors by giving
due consideration to the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring Director(s) including the attendance
of Board meetings and, where applicable, general meetings,
and the level of participation and performance on the Board;
and whether the retiring Director(s) continue(s) to satisfy the
criteria, thereafter recommend retiring Director(s) to the Board
for re-appointment. The Nomination Committee and/or the
Board shall then make recommendation to shareholders in
respect of the proposed re-election of Director(s) at the general
meeting.
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The Nomination Committee convened two meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2021 to (i) ensure that the Board has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to meet the
requirements of the business of the Company; and (ii) review and
recommend the re-appointment of Directors standing for re-election
at the Company’s 2021 annual general meeting.

Remuneration Committee

As at the date of the annual report, the Remuneration Committee
comprised three INEDs, namely Mr. Li Wai Keung (Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony and Mr.
Chung Chak Man, William.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages and the remuneration policy and structure
for all individual Directors and senior management; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions.

The human resources department is responsible for collection
and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for
consideration. The Remuneration Committee consults the Chairman
and/or the CEO about these recommendations on remuneration
policy, structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year ended 31
December 2021 to review and make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of the executive Directors during the
year ended 31 December 2021.
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Audit Committee

As at the date of the annual report, the Audit Committee comprised
three INEDs, namely Mr. Li Wai Keung (Chairman of the Audit
Committee), Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony and Mr. Chung Chak
Man, William. All of them possess the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former
partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(@) To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items before submission to the Board;

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and
terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the Board
on the appointment, reappointment and removal of external
auditors;

(c) To review the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems;

(d) To review the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control measures, including the functions of
account and financial reporting, reviewing the adequacy of the
Group’s human resources, staff qualifications and experiences,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting functions; and

(e) To review arrangements by which employees of the Company
may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional
advice if considers necessary.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended
31 December 2021 to (i) review audited annual financial results
for the year ended 31 December 2020 and unaudited interim
financial results for the six months ended 30 June 2021; (ii) review
financial reporting, risk management and internal control and
compliance procedures; and (iii) review the scope of work and
make recommendations on the appointment of the auditors of the
Company.

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.
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Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
Code Provision A.2.1.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board reviewed
and monitored the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development of
directors and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code
and disclosure in this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made to all Directors and all of them have
confirmed that they have fully complied with the Model Code and
there was no event of non-compliance throughout the year ended
31 December 2021.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms
no less exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are likely
to possess inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company throughout the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements and
Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
announcements and other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021.
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The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 95 to 102.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company
in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year
ended 31 December 2021 was set out in note 5(c) to the financial
statements of this annual report.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

Responsibility

The Company has maintained an internal control system and
its implementation has been considered effective by the Audit
Committee and the Board. In addition, the Audit Committee has
communicated with external auditors of the Company to understand
if there is any material control deficiency. Nevertheless, the Company
will review the need for an internal audit function on an annual
basis.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control system and has overall
responsibility for reviewing and maintaining an adequate and
effective risk management and internal control systems to safeguard
the interests of the shareholders and the assets of the Company and
reviewing its effectiveness on an annual basis.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure
with defined lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of
responsibility and authority to the senior management.

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework

The Group’s risk management framework adopts an integrated
bottom-up and top-down risk review process. The top-down risk
review process covers overseeing, identification, assessment and
mitigation of risk at corporate level while the bottom-up risk review
process covers identification, assessment and mitigation of risk
at business unit level and across functional areas. The integrated
risk review process is to enable comprehensive identification and
prioritization of all material risks throughout the Group, escalation
of material risks at the right managerial level, effective risk dialogue
among the management, and proper oversight of risk mitigation
efforts.
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The Group's internal control framework, covering all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls
is established. The internal control framework also provides for
identification and management of risk.

The management is accountable to the Board for operating and
monitoring the system of internal control and for providing assurance
to the Board that it has done so. The Board forms its own view on
effectiveness after due and careful enquiry based on the information
and assurances provided to it.

The Company improves its business and operational activities by
identifying the areas of significant business risks via a regular review
and taking appropriate measures to control and mitigate these risks.
The management of the Company reviews all significant control
policies and procedures and highlights all significant matters to the
Board and the Audit Committee.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Controls Effectiveness
During the year under review, the Group has performed the risk
management and internal control review of the Group. The Board
and the Audit Committee have reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group's system of internal controls on all major operations and
considered the Group’s internal control system is designed to
provide reasonable assurance, thereby minimizing risks and allowing
the Group’s business objectives to be achieved optimally. The Board
and the Audit Committee considered that the risk management and
internal control system was operating effectively during the year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard the interests and rights of shareholders, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholder meetings, including the election of individual directors.
All resolutions proposed at the shareholders’ meetings are voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules. The poll results are also posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company immediately
after the relevant shareholders’ meetings.
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Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders
Pursuant to Article 72 of the Company’s memorandum and articles
of association, general meetings shall be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more members of the Company deposited
at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
or, in the event that the Company ceases to have such a principal
place of business, the registered office specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting, the requisitionists
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may convene the extraordinary
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association or the Cayman Islands Companies Law
for shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the
Company to convene a general meeting in accordance with the
procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer
to the procedures posted on the Company’s website.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.

BERBERRESIAE
RIEARARABZERE ARG MR ET721(E -
ERDNBMEMMBSHIA ERREAAQFZ
%ﬁzﬁ“%m%&@mﬁ'TTﬁ 5B E
BN M SRR EARE %L%E
&mk BRZATHREZEBENK
ﬁWFDEIZAiﬁfigA*E%E
AT E A (WA EF AT AR B
AEg ERE)RIDR+H 22— B ZEXA

FAREREAE -

WESFeRFEBRKAPRT-+—XA
ﬁ&ﬁgﬁﬁﬁg?’megiZAi
BESRETREREL BN EEBFE
ZE@Ai'ﬂM%%$amﬁk$%ﬂ

ARASHRERBERIAT - HZA
BIA® /B ke Bk B R EHE % =
BNBH  MRELEFZATREFE
TR 2 Fa & RS A AL
%Y -

MERRAELIEZ2ES

AAaEBERRARBRASFASHEER
AEHEBERERRRAREAE E8)E
FRER - BEHRABREZBRRARIE
BIERFTEIEFF ERA AR ARBERE -

IR ALEES
BT 2 R2fF

FLHTERAR

MESERHENR

RAEEGREEN  BRRAIRARAE
HEBEE -

BT -

ARR—RIAEXIEABRNELEH -

38 HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address:  Unit 2608, 26th Floor, Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Email: info@hansenergy.com.hk

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has set out the procedures and internal controls for
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to compile
with Code Provision D.2.4(e).

There are guidelines to the Directors, officers and all relevant
employees of the Group to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent
the Company from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements.
It also includes appropriate internal control and reporting systems to
identify and assess potential inside information.

Key procedures in place include:

e define the requirements of periodic financial and operational
reporting to the Board and Company Secretary to enable them
to assess inside information and make timely disclosures, if
necessary;

e controls the access to inside information by employees on a
need-to-know basis, and safeguarding the confidentiality of the
inside information before it is properly disclosed to public; and

e procedures of communicating with the Group's stakeholders,
including shareholders, investors, analysts, etc. in ways which
are in compliance with the Listing Rules.

The Group has also established and implemented procedures to
handle enquiries from external parties related to the market rumours
and other Group's affairs.

To avoid uneven dissemination of inside information, the
dissemination of inside information of the Company shall be
conducted by publishing the relevant information on the Stock
Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The shareholders’ meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board.
The Chairman of the Board, all INEDs, and the chairmen of all
Board committees (or their delegates) and where applicable, the
independent Board committee, are available at the general meetings
to meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

Under the Code Provision F.2.2, the chairman of the Board should
attend the annual general meeting. The Chairman of the Board and
some of the Directors were unable to attend the last annual general
meeting held on 2 June 2021 due to business engagement. They will
use their best endeavour to attend all future shareholders’ meetings
of the Company.

During the year, the Company has not made any changes to its
memorandum and articles of association. The Company places great
emphasis to enhance communications and relationships with its
investors as the Company’s policy to maintain timely and effective
communications with their shareholders. This is crucial aspect of
good corporate governance, and part of the statutory and regulatory
regime. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue
with existing shareholders and potential institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.
Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and timely
manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains a
website at www.hansenergy.com, where extensive information and
updates on the Company’s business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are posted.
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The Board hereby presents the annual report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the
financial statements.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group’s business are set out in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” from page
4 to 18 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopted the dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on
21 December 2018. According to the Dividend Policy, in deciding
whether to propose any dividend payout, the Board shall also take
into account, inter alia:

e the Group's actual and expected financial performance;

. shareholders’ interests;

e  retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the other members of the Group;

e the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity
and financial covenants to which the Group is subject;
e possible effects on the Group’s creditworthiness;

e any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed
by the Group's lenders;

e the Group's expected working capital requirements and future
expansion plans;

e liquidity position and future commitments at the time of
declaration of dividend;
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e  taxation considerations;
e  statutory and regulatory restrictions;
e general business conditions and strategies;

e general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position
of the Company; and

e other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update,
amend and/or modify the Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy
shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the
Company that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/
or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time
or from time to time.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 103.

Taking into account of the cash requirement for the repayment of
bank loan of the Group and its business development, the Directors
do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

RESERVES

The amounts and particulars of material transfers to and from
reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are set
out on the consolidated statement of changes in equity and in note
29 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution represented the share premium and accumulated losses
(net of treasury shares held under the share award scheme) which
in aggregate amounted to approximately HK$586 million (2020:
approximately HK$649 million).
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 220. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in share capital of the Company during the
year, together with the reasons thereof, are set out in note 29 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. David An (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Dong (Chief Executive Officer)

Ms. Liu Zhijun (resigned on 23 October 2021)
Mr. Zhang Lei

INEDs

Mr. Li Wai Keung

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony

Mr. Woo King Hang (resigned on 22 December 2021)

The following Director was appointed after the end of the financial
year and up to the date of this annual report:

INEDs

Mr. Chung Chak Man, William (Member of Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee)
(appointed on 15 March 2022)

Pursuant to Article 116 of the Company’s memorandum and articles
of association, Mr. Zhang Lei and Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony shall
retire by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 99 of the Company’s memorandum and articles
of association, Mr. Chung Chak Man, William shall hold office until
the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible, offer
himself for re-election.

The Directors’ biographical details are set out in the section headed
"Profile of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

A list of directors who have served in the board of the Company’s
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the
date of this annual report is kept at the Company's registered office
and is available for inspection by the members of the Company
during the business hours.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND APPOINTMENT LETTERS
Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of twelve months which shall continue
thereafter unless and until either party serves the termination notice
by giving not less than three months’ written notice to the other.

Each of the INEDs has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of three years commencing from the date of
appointment, which can be terminated by either party giving not
less than one month notice in writing to the other party. Each of
the INEDs is subject to the provisions for retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association. The term of
office of each of the INEDs is the period up to retirement as required
by the Company’s memorandum and articles of association.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
annual report, no Directors are considered to have interests, either
directly or indirectly, in a business which competes or is likely to
compete with the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing
Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors is
currently in force and was in force throughout this year. In addition,
the Company has taken out and kept in force appropriate Directors’
and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers
of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND

SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of
Directors and chief executives of the Company and their associates
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which have
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Approximate
percentage in

Directors’ Report
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Mr. David An Founder of a discretionary trust 2,548,203,980 64.40% - 2,548,203,980 64.40%
BlELE SRERAIRA (Note A##1)
Beneficial owner 218,390,000 5.52% 636,427,600 854,817,600 21.61%
ERAEAA (Note #7z22)
Note: GER

1. Mr. David An (“Mr. An") was taken to be interested in those shares by
virtue of being a founder of a discretionary trust. Those shares are held
directly as to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme Wise Investments Ltd.
("Extreme Wise") and 2,338,430,000 shares by Vand Petro-Chemicals
(BVI) Company Ltd. (“Vand Petro-Chemicals”). Both companies are
wholly-owned by Julius Baer Family Office & Trust Ltd. (“Julius Baer")
which is a trustee of the discretionary trust. By virtue of the SFO, Mr.
An is deemed to be interested in the 2,548,203,980 shares.
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2. The interest in underlying shares of the Company held represented
243,763,800 and 392,663,800 share options carrying the rights
to subscribe for 243,763,800 and 392,663,800 shares granted by
the Company to Mr. An on 23 December 2020 and 14 April 2021
respectively under the share option scheme of the Company adopted
on 28 December 2012 subject to the independent shareholders’
approval at the general meeting. The independent shareholders of
the Company approved the said grants at the extraordinary general
meeting on 25 January 2021 (the “"EGM") and the annual general
meeting on 2 June 2021 (the "AGM") respectively. By virtue of
the SFO, Mr. An is deemed to be interested in an aggregate of
636,427,600 underlying shares subject to 636,427,600 new shares will
be issued and allotted by the Company upon the exercise of the share
options granted and such exercise will not result in the Company not in
compliance with the public float requirement under the Listing Rules.
Details of Mr. An’s and other Directors’ interests in the share options
granted by the Company are set out in the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” of this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions), or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which are required, pursuant
to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures of the Company”, “Share Option Scheme”
and “Share Award Scheme”, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2021 were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debts securities (including debentures) of
the Company granted to any Director or their respective spouses or
children under the age of 18, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiary, or
holding company or a subsidiary of the Company’s holding company
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Director had a
material interest, whether directly and indirectly, subsisting at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Company did not enter into or have
any management and administration contracts in respect of the
whole or any principal business of the Company.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were no transactions which were required to be disclosed as
connected and related party transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INEDS

The Company had received from each of the INEDs the annual
written confirmation of his independence pursuant to the Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all INEDs are
independent.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, shareholders (other than Directors or
chief executives of the Company) who had, or were deemed to
have interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company which have been disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register of interests required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:
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Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

RAERXBDRG RAEABRODHEFR

RABEREE0.10B T ZEBER

Approximate Number of

percentage in underlying Approximate

number of shares shares percentage to

Number of  held to the issued pursuant to the issued

Shares held share capital share options share capital

Name of shareholders (Note 1) of the Company (Note 2) Total interests of the Company
iR RIZERE

ERAT kil R

FisRH#E ERTRAMN = ERITREMN

RRE® (Hret1) BRI (Hfiz2) LY A BRBEDL

Mr. An B0 £ 2,766,593,980 69.92% 636,427,600 3,403,021,580 86.01%

Julius Baer 2,548,203,980 64.40% - 2,548,203,980 64.40%

Vand Petro-Chemicals 2,338,430,000 59.10% - 2,338,430,000 59.10%

Extreme Wise 209,773,980 5.30% - 209,773,980 5.30%
Notes: Bt

1.

The shares are held directly as to 218,390,000 shares by Mr.
An personally, as to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme Wise and
2,338,430,000 shares by Vand Petro-Chemicals. Both companies are
wholly-owned by Julius Baer which is the trustee of a trust and Mr.
An is a founder of the discretionary trust. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. An
is deemed to be interested in the 2,766,593,980 shares. Mr. An is a
director of Extreme Wise, Vand Petro-Chemicals and the Company.

The interest in underlying shares of the Company held represented
243,763,800 and 392,663,800 share options carrying the rights
to subscribe for 243,763,800 and 392,663,800 shares granted by
the Company to Mr. An on 23 December 2020 and 14 April 2021
respectively under the share option scheme of the Company adopted
on 28 December 2012 subject to the independent shareholders’
approval at the general meeting. The independent shareholders of the
Company approved the said grants at the EGM and AGM respectively.
By virtue of the SFO, Mr. An is deemed to be interested in an aggregate
of 636,427,600 underlying shares subject to 636,427,600 new shares
will be issued and allotted by the Company upon the exercise of the
share options granted and such exercise will not result in the Company
not in compliance with the public float requirement under the Listing
Rules.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company has
not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or the chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the year, apart from the “Share Option Scheme” and “Share
Award Scheme” of the Company as disclosed below, no equity-
linked agreement that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered
into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the
year are set out below:

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme approved on 28
December 2012 (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”) which will
expire on 27 December 2022. In order to enable the continuity
of the share option scheme of the Company, the Board proposes
to adopt a new share option scheme (the “2022 Share Option
Scheme") subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders in
the forthcoming 2022 annual general meeting. Details of the 2022
Share Option Scheme are set out in the circular enclosed with this
annual report to be despatched to the shareholders.

The summary of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is stated as follows:

1. Purpose:
The purpose of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to recruit and retain high-caliber employees and
attract resources that are available to the Group and to provide
the Company with a means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to such
persons who contribute or may bring benefit to the Group.

2. Participants:
Under the 2012 Share Option Scheme, the Board may at their
discretion grant options to any eligible participant including
any employee, Director, consultant, advisor, agent, business
affiliate, business partner, joint venture partner, strategic
partner, or any supplier or provider of goods or services to the
Company or any subsidiaries of the Company from time to
time to subscribe for the shares of the Company (the “shares”).
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Total number of shares available for issue under the 2012
Share Option Scheme and percentage of issued share
capital:

The maximum number of shares with respect to which options
may be granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes shall not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company on the date of adopting
the 2012 Share Option Scheme. The limit may be refreshed
at any time by obtaining approval of the shareholders of the
Company in a general meeting from time to time, provided
that the new limit must not be in aggregate exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the
relevant shareholders’ approval in general meeting. However,
the maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other
scheme of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of
the issued shares from time to time.

On 30 August 2018, the Company had granted 127,500,000
options carrying the rights to subscribe for an aggregate of
127,500,000 shares, of which 3,000,000 options had been
lapsed, 2,000,000 options had been forfeited, 49,000,000
options have been exercised by the relevant grantees on 30
October 2020 respectively, with 73,500,000 options remain
outstanding.

On 23 December 2020, the Company granted 5,000,000
options carrying the rights to subscribe for 5,000,000 shares
to Mr. Zhang Lei ("Mr. Zhang"), an executive Director and
243,763,800 options carrying the rights to subscribe for
243,763,800 shares to Mr. An, the chairman of the Board,
an executive Director and a substantial shareholder of the
Company. The said grant of options to Mr. An was subject to
the approval by the independent shareholders at the EGM.
Upon the completion of the grant of the options to and
acceptance thereof by the grantees, the Company had utilised
100% of the maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options were to be granted under the 2012
Share Option Scheme. Accordingly, the Company sought the
approval by its shareholders for the refreshment of the 2012
Share Option Scheme mandate limit (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit”). At the EGM held on 25 January 2021, the independent
shareholders of the Company passed the resolution to approve
the said grant of options to Mr. An and the shareholders of the
Company passed the resolution to approve the refreshment of
the Scheme Mandate Limit.
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Immediately after the EGM, the total number of shares
available for issue pursuant to the 2012 Share Option Scheme
under the refreshed Scheme Mandate Limit were 395,663,800,
being 10% of the total number of issued shares as at the date
of passing the resolution approving the said refreshment at the
EGM.

On 14 April 2021, the Company granted 3,000,000 options
carrying the rights to subscribe for 3,000,000 shares to Mr.
Woo King Hang (“Mr. Woo"), the then independent non-
executive Directors and 392,663,800 options carrying the
rights to subscribe for 392,663,800 shares to Mr. An, the
chairman of the Board, an executive Director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company. The said grant of options to Mr.
An was subject to the independent shareholders’ approval
at the AGM. Upon the completion of the said grant of the
options to and acceptance thereof by the grantees, the
Company had further utilised 100% of the shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
2012 Share Option Scheme pursuant to the refreshment of
the Scheme Mandate Limit at the EGM. As such, the Company
has sought the approval by its independent shareholders for
the refreshment of the Scheme Mandate Limit. At the AGM
held on 2 June 2021, the independent shareholders passed
the resolutions to approve the said grant of options to Mr. An,
and the independent shareholders of the Company passed the
resolution to approve the refreshment of the Scheme Mandate
Limit.

As at 31 December 2021, total number of shares available for
issue, save for those granted but yet to be exercised, pursuant
to the 2012 Share Option Scheme were 395,663,800 shares,
being 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the
date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant:

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue on the last date of
such 12-month period unless approval of the shareholders
of the Company has been obtained in accordance with the
Listing Rules. Options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive Directors in excess of 0.1% of the
issued share capital of the Company or with a value in excess
of HK$5 million in the 12-month period must be approved in
advance by the shareholders of the Company.
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The periods within which the shares must be taken up
under an option:

Subject to the 2012 Share Option Scheme, the share options
may be exercised at any time during the exercise period. All
options granted prior to the termination of the 2012 Share
Option Scheme and not then exercised shall continue to be
valid and exercisable subject to and in accordance with terms
of the 2012 Share Option Scheme.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised:

Options may be exercised at any time from date of grant of the
share option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant as
may be determined by the Directors.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments of calls
must or may be made or loans for such purpose must be
paid:

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price is determined by the Directors, provided that
it shall be at least the higher of (i) the closing price per share
as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange
on the date of the grant of the share options; (i) the average
closing price per share as stated in the daily quotation sheets
of the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the grant of the options; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

The remaining life:

The 2012 Share Option Scheme remains in force for a period
of 10 years from adoption of such scheme and expires on 27
December 2022.
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Details of the equity settled share-based transactions are set out in
note 28 to the financial statements and the movements of the share
options during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set as below:
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During the year
cse Jutstandr il Qutstanding
Date 0 Exercise price 1 Janu: Exercised/ g
Eligible person period HKS  Note 2001 Granted lapsed Forfeited
:‘:; 7iz73 0420E -77:T17E
Executive Directors ~~ H#78%
Mr. An B 231122020 25/01/2021 - 2211212025 0400 1 - 243,763,800 - 243,763,300
1400412021 141042022 - 1310412027 0340 2 392,663,300 - 392,663,300
Mr. Yang Dong iSita 30/08/2018  30/08/2019 - 29/08/2028 023 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000
M. Lu Zhijun resigned on 85 &4t (K -F-—%

23 October 2021) FAZFZHEE) 30082018 300812019 - 29/08/2028 023 18,000,000 - - 18,000,000
Mr. Zhang RRE 231122020 23/12/2020- 2211212025 0.400 5,000,000 - 5,000,000
INEDs BUHiES
I, Li Wai Keung REAE 300082018 30/082019- 29082028 0236 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony BiRESE 30/08/2018  30/08/2019 - 29/08/2028 023 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Mr. Woo fesignedon %4 (R-F--#

22 December 2021) FIAZFZAERF) 140402021 1400412022 - 131042027 0340 3 - 3,000,000 - (3,000,000) -

49,000,000 639,427,600 - (3,000,0000 685,427,600
Employees s 30/08/2018  30/08/2019 - 29/08/2028 023 29,500,000 - - - 29,500,000

78500000 639,427,600 - (3,000,0000 714,927,600
Notes: M

1. On 23 December 2020, 243,763,800 options carrying the rights to 1.

subscribe for 243,763,800 shares were granted to Mr. An subject to
the independent shareholders’ approval at the EGM. The independent
shareholders approved the said grant of share options at the EGM.
The exercise price of each option is HK$0.400 per share. The options
were vested on 25 January 2021 and exercisable from 25 January 2021
to 22 December 2025. The closing price per share on 22 December
2020, being the date immediately before the date on which such share
options were granted was HK$0.390.
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2. On 14 April 2021, 392,663,800 options carrying the rights to subscribe
for 392,663,800 shares were granted to Mr. An subject to the
independent shareholders’ approval at the AGM. The independent
shareholders approved the said grant of share options at the AGM.
The exercise price of each option is HK$0.340 per share. The options
shall be vested on 14 April 2022 and exercisable from 14 April 2022 to
13 April 2027. The closing price per share on 13 April 2021, being the
date immediately before the date on which such share options were
granted was HK$0.340.

3. On 14 April 2021, 3,000,000 options carrying the rights to subscribe
for 3,000,000 shares were granted to Mr. Woo. The exercise price
of each option is HK$0.340 per share. The options shall be vested
on 14 April 2022 and exercisable from 14 April 2022 to 13 April
2027. The closing price per share on 13 April 2021, being the date
immediately before the date on which such share options were granted
was HK$0.340. On 22 December 2021, Mr. Woo resigned as an
independent non-executive Director. The 3,000,000 options granted to
him was forfeited by the Company immediately after his resignation.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, a total of 639,427,600
share options were granted by the Company (2020: 5,000,000) and
3,000,000 share options were forfeited by the Company (2020: Nil).
During the year, no share option was exercised (2020: 49,000,000)
and lapsed (2020: Nil) by the relevant grantees. Subsequent to the
balance sheet date, 3,500,000 share options were lapsed by the
relevant grantee. As at the date of this annual report, the number
of share options outstanding under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
was 711,427,600.

Share Award Scheme

The Company has adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 15 April 2019 (the “Adoption Date”). The
summary of the Share Award Scheme is stated as follows:

1. Purpose:
The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to retain
participants and to encourage them to make contributions to
the growth and development of the Group.

2. Participants:
Pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme (the “Scheme
Rules”), the Board may grant an award to anyone (other than
any excluded participant) who is an employee, Director, or
consultant of any member of the Group.
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3. Administration:

The Share Award Scheme is subject to the administration of
the Board in accordance with the Scheme Rules. The Board has
a discretion to determine the terms of the award. The Board
may engage one or more trustees in the process of granting,
administrating and/or vesting any awards, and the Board may
at its discretion delegate such powers and/or functions relating
to the administration of the Share Award Scheme to the trustee
as the Board thinks fit.

4. Duration:
The Share Award Scheme will terminate on the 10th
anniversary of the Adoption Date or such earlier date as the
Board may determine.

5.  Maximum limits:
The number of shares which may be held by the trust at any
one time (taken together with all unvested awarded shares
granted under the Scheme Rules) shall not be more than 5% of
total numbers of issued shares (i.e. 197,831,900 shares) at the
date of grant of the award.

6. Operation:

The Board may, from time to time remit funds to the trustee
for the purposes of the Share Award Scheme, and such money
will form part of the trust fund. The Board may instruct the
trustee to purchase the number of shares underlying the award
from the open market (either on-market or off-market) and the
trustee shall hold such shares on trust for the participants until
they are vested in accordance with the Scheme Rules.

7. Vesting:
The Board has a discretion to determine the terms of the
award, including the grantor of the award, the number of
shares subject to the award, the vesting conditions, the date
when the award will vest, and whether the award will carry
rights to dividends paid between the date of the award and the
vesting date.

As at 31 December 2021, the number of the Company's shares held
for the purpose of the Share Award Scheme was 58,590,000 (2020:
58,590,000 shares).

On 6 January 2022, the trustee purchased a total number of
20,000,000 shares of the Company on the market at a total
consideration of approximately HK$3,234,000 for the purpose of
the Share Award Scheme. As at the date of this annual report, a
total number of 78,590,000 shares of the Company was held by
the trustee and no grant of awards has been made under the Share
Award Scheme. Further details of the share purchase pursuant
to Share Award Scheme are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 6 January 2022.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the percentage of the
aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
comprised approximately 86.4% (2020: approximately 67.7%)
of the Group’s total turnover and the percentage of the turnover
attributable to the Group's largest customer were approximately
33.9% (2020: approximately 29.6%) of the Group's total turnover.
The percentage of the aggregate purchases attributable to the
Group's five largest suppliers comprised approximately 88.2%
(2020: approximately 44.3%) of the Group’s total purchases and
the percentage of the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier were approximately 33.6% (2020: approximately 12.7%) of
the Group's total purchases.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close associates
or any shareholder which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
interest in the share capital of any of the five largest customers or
suppliers of the Group.

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had banking facilities which
were secured by certain of the Group's property, plant and
equipment and interests in land and buildings held for own use
under operating leases. Details of Group’s bank loans during the
year are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Details of the emolument policy for the employees of the Group as
at 31 December 2021 are set out in the section of “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report on page 17.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 7 and 8 to the
financial statements, respectively.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS
Details of retirement benefits plans of the Group as at 31 December
2021 are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S LISTED
SECURITIES

Except as disclosed in elsewhere in this annual report, during the
year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities.

PUBLIC FLOAT

During the year ended 31 December 2021, based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2021, there were no material contingent
liabilities in respect of outstanding litigation or legal proceedings
that need to be disclosed (2020: Nil).

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Safety and Environment

Since the products handled by terminals are hazardous, safety and
environment protection measures and equipment are regarded as
the most vital and critical importance to the success of the Group.
The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. As a responsible
corporation, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group
has complied with all relevant laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection during the year ended 31 December 2021.
For the financial risk management, please refer to the note 30 to the
financial statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS
The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and the risk of non-compliance with the applicable
rules and regulations. To the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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EEHRE

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS, CUSTOMERS AND OTHER
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and shareholders. The Group
will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good
relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The Company has not changed its external
auditor in any of the preceding three years.

By order of the Board

Yang Dong

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 31 March 2022
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Hans Energy Company Limited (the “Company”), together with its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), is pleased to present this Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (the “Report”) to provide an
overview of the Group’s management on significant issues affecting
the operation, and the performance of the Group in terms of
environmental and social aspects.

Preparation Basis and Scope

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the
rules governing the listing of securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) —
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” and has
complied with “comply or explain” provision in the Listing Rules.

This Report summarises the performance of the Group in respect
of corporate social responsibility, covering its operating activities
which are considered as material by the Group - (i) trading of oil
and petrochemical products and operating of a filling station (the
“Trading and retail business”), and, (ii) offering value-added services
in its own ports and storage tank farms (the “Terminal storage
business”) in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). With the
aim to optimise and improve the disclosure requirements in the
Report, the Group has taken initiative to formulate policies, record
relevant data as well as implement and monitor measures.

Reporting Period
This Report demonstrates our sustainability initiatives during the
reporting period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021.

Contact Information

The Group welcomes your feedback on this Report for
our sustainability initiatives. Please contact us by email to
info@hansenergy.com.hk.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, who (a) have invested
or will invest in the Group; (b) have the ability to influence the
outcomes within the Group; and (c) are interested in or affected by
or have the potential to be affected by the impact of the Group’s
activities, products, services and relationships. It allows the Group
to understand risks and opportunities. The Group will continue to
ensure effective communication and maintain good relationship
with each of its key stakeholders.

Stakeholders are prioritised from time to time in view of the Group's
roles and duties, strategic plan and business initiatives. The Group
engages with its stakeholders to develop mutually beneficial
relationships and to seek their views on its business proposals and
initiatives as well as to promote sustainability in the marketplace,
workplace, community and environment.

The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence gained
from the stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous interest
in the Group’s business activities. The Group has identified key
stakeholders that are important to our business and established
various channels for communication. The following table provides an
overview of the Group's key stakeholders, and various platforms and
methods of communication are used to reach, listen and respond.
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Stakeholders
EEA

Government and Market regulator

B B T35 B

Shareholders and Investors

BERRZEE

Employees

—E—FFH EBREFRERAE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Issues of concern

BxEE

Compliance
Promote regional economic
development and employment

=L
R R AR B R S LR

Return on the investment
Information transparency
Protection of interests and fair
treatment

& B

AFERAE

e R AT EFRE

Employee rights and interests
Working environment

Health and safety

Career development
opportunities

R BRER M

TERIR

REEZ 2

BEEREE

RS dHEREAEHS

Engagement channels
SHRE

On-site inspections

Research and discussion through
work conferences, work reports
preparation and submission for
approval

Annual and interim reports,
announcements

BRI
FERITIEFGRMERAR - &
BRI TIEHRE A8t
FHREPH®RSE 2F

Annual general meeting and
other shareholder meetings
Annual and interim reports,
announcements
BEAF R M EMRREZ
FENPHRE  AF

Conference

Training, seminars, briefing
sessions

Cultural and sport activities
Intranet and emails

&
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Stakeholders Issues of concern Engagement channels
s A BXEIE SHERE
Customers —  Safe and high-quality service —  Website, brochures, annual
—  Stable relationship reports
—  Information protection and —  Email and customer service
privacy hotline

—  Business ethics

—  Feedback forms
- Regular meeting

B - ZEREERD - W NMBFRER
-  IRTEEE - BEREPREERE
- BiURRERFLEE - REXRE
- BERBERE - TEHEg=
Suppliers —  Long-term partnership —  Business meetings, supplier
—  Honest cooperation conferences, phone calls,
- Fair, open interviews
— Information resources sharing -  Review and assessment
—  Risk reduction —  Tendering process
HrEm - RHEBHEBE - XKem HERgE - s
- HEAEE RN
- RFARA - HBRFHE
- BiRRHE=E - BEERF
- ERER
Peer/Industry associations —  Experience sharing —  Industry conference

—  Cooperation
—  Fair competition
[T/ % R0e - BBH=E
- A
ChiE

- ATBF

Community - Community involvement
—  Social responsibilities
o) - fMER2E
- HEEHR

Through general communication with stakeholders, the Group
understands the expectations and concerns from stakeholders.
The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more informed
decisions, and to better assess and manage the resulting impact.

The Group have adopted the principle of materiality in the ESG
reporting by understanding the key ESG issues that are important
to the business of the Group. All the key ESG issues and key
performance indicators (KPIs) are reported in the Report according
to recommendations of the ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of
the Listing Rules) and the GRI Guidelines.

—  Site visit

e

- EBHMER

—  Charity and social projects
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The Group have evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG
aspects through the following steps:

Step 1: Identification - Industry Benchmarking

e Relevant ESG areas were identified through the review of
relevant ESG reports of the local and international industry
peers.

e The materiality of each ESG areas was determined based on
the importance of each ESG area to the Group through internal
discussion of the management and the recommendation of
ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules).

Step 2: Prioritization — Stakeholder Engagement
e The Group discussed with key stakeholders on key ESG areas
identified above to ensure all the key aspects to be covered.

Step 3: Validation — Determining Material Issues

e  Based on the discussion with key stakeholders and internal
discussion among the management, the Group’s management
ensured all the key and material ESG areas, which were
important to the business development, were reported and in
compliance with ESG Reporting Guide.

As a result of this process carried out in 2021, those important ESG
areas to the Group were discussed in this Report.

ESG GOVERNANCE
Board’s oversight of ESG issues
Board’s overall vision and strategy in managing ESG issues

The board of directors (“Board”) has a primary role in overseeing
the management of the Group’s sustainability issues. During the
year, the Board spent significant time in evaluating the impact of
ESG-related risks on our operation and formulating relevant policy
in dealing with the risks. The oversight of the Board is to ensure the
management to have all the right tools and resources to oversee the
ESG issues in the context of strategy and long-term value creation.

ZE-—FFR EERERERAT

B - HEREARRE

AEBEEEBATHRFERE
ERTHNERMEREBEN!

Hek

LB BE-TRER

e ZERFTEWLERRAEZNHBIR
B aEgRERWE - #REEAR
% HeRERHE

o RERERE HEMBEREEHA
SENERNE  BBEERBNNELE
wmARIRE e RERAMERESI(LE
AR RIMTER27 ) O HEB 2 - ARERE
FEERRE HEMEARENER
o

HR2  RERGE -HEBZASH

o AEECHMBLMTBRE HELE
JREIE T B AETTRI - PARE
RHREFMABRED

SR3:BRA-EETEESEH

o REEIBRIANNRALERE
ZEHAET®R - ARENEERERE
RATBHEREREFEZNRER KL
BEXRIR - L8 REARED TR
EWETRE HERERREE

Gl

RMRE—T - —FETRER - BUAR
TP EHAREAETEE MR
% e MEREE

B 48 RERRE

EESHRE - HERERSENESE
EZEEEERE  HERERSEHELY
HERES KR
S22 ) EBEAEETHER
REEMNEETEREIEAR - FR -
EXeRBAERENGRE HELE
ABEEREAREZENTE - UHIE
HEABRRAREZERR - EET2NEE
ERTHRAREEEHE —VAENTAR
B AEEXRBNRPEEAETES
RIE HeRkERER -

63



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BB HEREREE

ESG working group

The Group attaches great importance to ESG work. Under the
leadership of the Board of the Company, each subsidiary has set up
a dedicated safety and environmental protection department (“ESG
Working Group”) to implement specific safety and environmental
protection work, so as to comply with government requirements,
implement the concept of “safety and environmental protection” in
its operation and fulfil its social responsibilities.

The ESG Working Group is primarily responsible for reviewing and
supervising the ESG process, and risk management of the Group.
Different ESG issues were reviewed by the Working Group at the
meeting, which holds once per year. During the reporting period,
the ESG Working Group and the management reviewed the ESG
governance and different ESG issues.

Board’s ESG management approach and strategy for material
ESG-related issues

In order to better understand the opinions and expectations of
different stakeholders on our ESG issues, materiality assessment is
conducted each year. We ensure various platforms and channels
of communication are used to reach, listen and respond to our key
stakeholders. Through general communication with stakeholders,
the Group understands the expectations and concerns from
stakeholders. The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make
more informed decisions, and to better assess and manage the
resulting impact.

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG
aspects through the steps: (1) material ESG area identification
by industry benchmarking; (2) key ESG area prioritization with
stakeholder engagement; and (3) validation and determining material
ESG issues based on results of communication among stakeholders
and the management. Hence, this can enhance understanding of
their degree and change of attention to each significant ESG issue,
and can enable us to more comprehensively plan our sustainable
development work in the future. Those important and material ESG
areas identified during our material assessment were discussed in
this Report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS A.

Based on ISO14001, the standard of management system for
environment, the Group has established a set of management
systems regarding environmental protection, including but
not limited to “Atmosphere Pollution Management System”,
“Waste Management System” and “Wastewater Management
System”.

The Group’'s objectives on environmental protection are
to eliminate and reduce the impact of its operation on the
ecological environment and endeavours to save resources and
protect the environment. The Group is in strict compliance with
the “Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China” and other relevant laws and regulations, and had no
material non-compliance regarding environmental issues during
the reporting period.

EMISSIONS A1.

Air Pollutants Emission

Emission control is essential for mitigating the impact on
the environment and protecting the health of employees.
The Group’s emission complies with “Emission Limits of
Air Pollutants (DB44/27-2001)" (KR;5 2 ¥ HERMR(E) and
“Emission Standard of Air Pollutant for Bulk Gasoline Terminal
(GB 20950-2007)" (f#m B AR5 R B HUISEAE). The decrease
in air pollutants emission in 2021 was mainly attributable to

less frequent business travels and transportation by vehicles,
the use of gasoline recovery device, the volatilized gasoline was

collected, resulting in the decrease in pollutants emission as
well as effective implementation of fuel saving strategies by our
terminals during the year. Furthermore, the Group targets to
reduce the emission of air pollutants by 10% by 2025. The air
pollutants emission during the reporting period is as follows:

Trading and

retail business

TEEH

Air Pollutants

ARITHRN

Nitrogen oxides (NO,) AEILYINOY kgF %= 1.65

Sulfur dioxide (SO,) Z &S0y kgF 5 0.28

Particulate matter (PM) SOFHLF(PM) kgT7 0.27
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Terminal
storage business
BHEAREL

1,532.62 1,534.27 2,487.34

33.66 33.94 4472

163.11 163.38 249.79
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As most of the products stored are highly volatile, the
Group has implemented “VOCs One Enterprise One Policy
Comprehensive Improvement Program” (VOCs —{b—RAR & B
YA 77 28) to control volatile organic compounds (VOCs) emission
from source and production processes. Key measures to
mitigate the leakage of the volatile chemicals are implemented
as follows:

e  External floating roof tanks' are used to store gasoline,
diesel and other volatile chemical products.

e Nitrogen blanketing? is used in the tanks to ensure stored
product is separated from the air, vapour generated in the
tank is collected and treated with activated carbon.

. To reduce the non-methane hydrocarbon (NMHC)
emission, oil-gas condensation recovery devices are
installed to achieve a recycling rate of 98%.

e All the volatile organic compounds (e.g., gasoline, alkane
solvents) are stored in specific containers and sealed
properly to avoid leakage.

e Using gasoline recovery device to collect volatilized
gasoline, the recovery ratio is over 95%, in order to
reduce air pollutants emission.

Apart from measures adopted to reduce VOCs, the Group
lowers the emission of SO, by using low-sulfur diesel (National
VI standard) for the boiler.

External floating roof tanks (FTE=\1FHE) are storage tanks
commonly used to store large quantities of petroleum products.

They eliminate breathing losses and greatly reduce the evaporative loss
of the stored liquid.

Nitrogen blanketing (¥ 2 &) is widely used in many industries
to prevent fires, explosion, degradation of products during their
production, storage and transportation.
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Greenhouse Gas ("GHG") Emission3

Climate change is gradually concerned by the community. The
Group manages the carbon neutral by minimising the energy
consumption and water consumptions as these activities cause
significant emission of greenhouse gas. Policies and procedures
adopted on resources saving are mentioned in the section
“Use of resources”. With a sense of promoting the use of
clean energy and green environment, the Group has switched
its fuel consumption to fossil fuel with lower carbon content
such as Liquefied Petroleum Gas (“LPG"). The decrease in GHG
scope 1 emission in 2021 was mainly due to the reduction
in business travels and transportation by vehicles, as well
as effective implementation of fuel saving strategies by our
terminals during the year. In light of the increase in the usage
of boiler for terminal storage business, leading to increase in
consumption of low-sulfur diesel, the GHG scope 2 emission
increased in 2021. The Group will strive to reduce the emission
of GHG by 10% by 2025.

The GHG emission during the reporting period is as follows:

Trading and

GHG Emission
BER LR

Scope 14

retail business

#E14 tonnes of CO,-¢ 13.69

ZEfLiRE =2
tonnes of CO,-e
—EfiREEY

tonnes of CO,-e
—EfLhE 2

Scope 2° EES 108.83

e

Total & 122.52

GHG emission
intensity

mEREHN

tonnes of CO,-¢/ 3.22

employee

“EEEn,/
B8

tonnes of CO,-¢/
thousand tonnes of
terminal throughput
—EfiE e,/
[EE A& T

3 The calculation of the greenhouse gas emission is based on the
“Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard” from Greenhouse
Gas Protocol.

4 Scope 1: Direct emission from sources that are owned or controlled by
the Group.

5 Scope 2: Indirect emissions from purchased electricity consumed by the
Group.
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Terminal
storage
business
BHRTEER BEEHRES
22261

278.28

4,888.48 2,872.26

5,124.78 3,150.54

Trading and retail
business:
BORTERH -
1.30

1.93 Terminal storage
business:

BEAREY

1.21
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Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

Wastes generated are handled with a comprehensive procedure
to mitigate the impact to the environment. The Group has a
strict classification system for different types of wastes. Each
type of waste has specific storage location and collection
procedures. There is a precaution implemented for the leakage
of waste to prevent pollution.

Hazardous wastes such as hazardous wastewater, waste oil
cleaning rag and organic solvents are handled according to
the latest policies of “National Hazardous Waste Inventory”.
These wastes are separately stored and handled with ledger
for record. The Group engages qualified recycling companies
to perform waste disposal and treatment so as to minimise the
impact on the environment.

During the year, the effective implementation of hazardous
waste management strategies led to a decrease in the
amount of hazardous waste generated in 2021. The Group
has set comprehensive reduction target by 10% reduction in
hazardous waste generation by 2025.

The hazardous wastes generated by the Group during the
reporting period are as follows:

Trading and
Waste Disposal retail business
BEENRE
Hazardous wastes ~ E£HBZE  tonneslf -
generated BEY
Hazardous wastes ~ E£H)FE  tonnes/thousand -
generated FEEYEE  tonnes of terminal
intensity throughput
W/ ERALE
T

BERBEEEY
MEAMEEYEBEZEEFEEI
WIEHIRIBETE - AEEHTRESE
%@W“ﬁﬁﬁ TEEHIE o BiEEE
VB TENFROE RN ERF - B
YRR E IEH B A LS
;‘Qo

BEEEM(WMEZSK  BEEER
mRAEEEE ) RE(ERERERY
FEONRIMB KRR - REFBEEY
B FFERERDEECREE - NUE
LEk - AEBEZESEROWAFE
BEEVMERENEE  WREHIRE
HIR 2L o

FRN - BRERBESEEYEERE
BY T —FEANBEEEDE
SR  AEBBERIYZEZHEBBER
ZBER_E_RFSEEREE
MEERA10% ©

RERRAEEELEETEEDD
BERAT

Terminal
storage

business

BHRTEEY BEAREK

80.83 80.83 96.01
0.031 Trading and
retail business:

BHRTEER

Terminal storage
business:
BERHES -
0.04
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The Group has put effort on waste-free initiatives in reducing
non-hazardous waste. The Group has launched waste recycling
and implemented different measures to reduce the wastes
generated in the office. For example, used paper and plastic
materials are collected in the office for recycling purpose. Waste
electrical and electronic equipment is separately collected.
With these measures, the Group hopes to ease the pressure
on landfill space and bring benefits to the environment. The
amount of non-hazardous waste generated in 2021 remained
stable. The Group has set comprehensive reduction target by
10% reduction in non-hazardous waste generation by 2025.

The non-hazardous wastes generated by the Group during the
reporting period are as follows:

RS dHEREAEHS

REBHNHETROEZTERZYNT
BEERYEZ - ARECHPERYO
WHMETTNEERARERAEESE
HIBERY) - PlEnER AEWERE RN
MR RBBEME - LERK AR - 8B
BERNETREIFNE - NEEH
PREZSRGATEERRNE N K
RIBEERGEE - —T_—FELEW
BEEEVBERFEE - A%ED
RUEZEBBERR §ER-_F_-A
FRINESERMEEM10%

RREEAEEESEZEZMN
EIR N

Waste Disposal
BENRE

Terminal
storage
retail business business
BIRTEER BEEHER

Trading and

Non-hazardous EEHEE  tonneshf 0.11
wastes generated  EEY)
Non-hazardous EAREZ  tonneslemployee 0.003
wastes generated ~ EEWHE  W/EE
intensity

tonnes/thousand

tonnes of terminal

throughput

W/ ERALE

Tz
Non-hazardous EMAEE  tonneshl 0.26
wastes recycled BEEY
Non-hazardous  EIM(A)EERE  tonnes/employee 0.007
wastes recydled  ENTE /1§ 8

intensity

—E-—FFR EDERERAT

6.68 6.79 6.78

Trading and
retail business:
BHREELH
0.005
0.003 Terminal storage
business:
BREHES
0.003

- 0.26 0.03

- Trading and
retail business:

BOREEEY

0.001

Terminal storage
business:

TREREY
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Wastewater

The terminal and warehouse areas are equipped with drainage
system to collect wastewater. Impermeable layers are applied
to all pipes and treatment facilities to avoid leakage of
wastewater. Rainwater and wastewater are collected by two
separate systems to prevent pollution to groundwater.

The Group also cooperated with the Environment Faculty of
South China University of Technology GERIIE T KEIR1E
%) to develop a sewage treatment facility, which treats
wastewater with microorganisms. During this year, around
4,980.00 m3 (2020: 17,479.70 m3) of wastewater was
discharged and treated. After the treatment, the water which
meets satisfactory quality standard, is used in fire services and
planting. Not only the emission of wastewater to land and
water bodies is reduced, but also the water can be reused to
save the water resource. This system is simple and the cost
of maintenance and operation is low. Therefore, it is widely
admired and accepted by government departments and peers.

Noise

Noise is mainly generated from the operations of blower of
boilers, pumps and compressors, etc. Appropriate acoustic
insulation is applied to those machines. Regular maintenance
is also conducted as to reduce the noise generated due to
wearing of the components in those machines.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group has adopted policies and guidelines to improve the
efficiency in energy, water and other material consumption,
including “Energy Saving Management System”.

Energy

The energy consumption of the Group mainly comes from fossil
fuels and electricity. The Group promotes the idea of “green
office” to reduce the electricity consumption as follows:

e  The temperature in the office is set at 26 Degree Celsius
in summer.

e No heating is supplied in winter according to the
characteristic of weather in South China.

A2.

75K

SR B B R A YIS R AAE
GIK e FRE BB REREREEE T E
KE -~ By 1E5K8E » 7K K57k E
FARR B 7 R AU SR - DA LE)5 34t
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ANEEREERE T ABRIBERS
VERIZES/KERIZRRIE - EFERMAEY
BRIBIEIK o RAFE » J5KBEIK R
BEXA498000 HFK(ZE-Z
F 1 17,479.705 5 K) - RIEEE
HE R RERERNKS B ED R
T RIEE o B MER A M RE KK
HEROSK - M AR BRAKIAEEKE
TR o LR E BMEENBIERAN
& A EEBUNEFMRFEZEEER

A
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BETI2RNMESEAE  RAEE
BENEBIF - ZERBBEEERS
K TREMEE B RZFH
EREVERIHIERME L MRS -

BIRER
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KR EM R ERES e  BIE &
REEERS] -

BEIR
AEERERBRI 2R AR R
B AEBEHEEIZERAE IR
2 WBIEE R - FFBAT ¢

s EXRRRAEMRERE/BR
26/F ©

o REFEEHEBRRIRNEL  £X
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e All electronic appliances have to be switched off when
leaving the office.

e After all staff leave the office, security guards double
check the electronic appliances and ensure all of them are
switched off.

The Group also checks the oil usage frequently to minimise the
chances of oil leakage which lead to energy wastage.

In light of using the gasoline recovery device, the volatilized
gasoline was collected and re-transformed to gasoline for the
terminal storage business, resulting in the purchased electricity
consumption increased in 2021. The decrease in both petrol
and diesel consumption in 2021 was mainly attributable to the
reduction in business travels and transportation by vehicles, as
well as effective implementation of fuel saving strategies by
our terminals during the year. The Group has set inclusive total
energy consumption reduction target by 10% by 2025. During
the year, the energy consumptions are as follows:

Trading and

Energy Type retail business
RERER Ly BHRTERK

Purchased electricity BEE MWhFETF R & 133.81
Petrol ki MWhT 8 F LB 51.78
Diesel Lesh MWhF{EF FLE -
LPG RICEBE  MWhTETRE -
Total energy REREEE MWhTETRE 185.59
consumption
Energy consumption EEEEREZE  MWh/employee 4.88
intensity FETREEE
MWh/thousand
tonnes of terminal
throughput
TETRE, ER
BHETME

——FFR ERRERAERAT

RS dHEREAEHS

o HFMMAEREMREMASES -

s FEBIMMAMAER REA
BAKEER  BERMEERY
B -

AEETEEEREMMER  EE
RRRBEHEE - ARRERLR -

ENTREAHERRA T MR LK E
=i ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬂ’]?ﬁﬁ”ﬂlg BIEER
Ul R —FEESNHEREE
BRIEN o ZT = —F 7B REERE
FEHRY  DEZARFARAA
BEREBERMZBITIZAD - LR
R A M EE AR RR - NEE
BERVER BERZZ_AFHK
BERBERBRERIEK10% » FREERE

FEERIAT
Terminal
storage
business
ISR REHR
5,712.50 5,846.31 3,433.86
193.73 245.51 251.30
618.74 618.74 722.94
147.92 147.92 117.22
6,672.89 6,858.48 452532
Trading and
retail business:
BHRTEER
2.06
257 Terminal storage
business:
TERHER -
1.73
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Water

Water is another important resource used for the daily
operation. In order to monitor the usage of water, meters
are installed in different locations and water consumption is
recorded regularly. Staff are responsible for managing the
water usage and checking the water system. If leakage of
water pipe happens, repair will be immediately carried out to
reduce the wastage of water resource.

In the workplace, the water pressure is adjusted according
to the actual water usage. To encourage water-saving, water
usage of each staff in the staff quarter is recorded and the staff
has to pay water bills by themselves. Owing to the times of
cleaning the storage tanks increased for the terminal storage
business, the water consumption increased in 2021. The Group
has set a reduction target of 10% in water consumption by
2025. The water consumption during the reporting period is as
follow:

Trading and

Water Consumption retail business

KRR BHREERE

7K

KEFARAREEENS —EEZER -
BERMKE  KECETEET
% FHIRSEAKE - BIAEERE
AXKEBEKZEL - WKERHESR
R BRI TAS - U KEIR
HPRE o

TS EKEREERAKER
£ o RBEESOAK  SLHRETH
MEBERBETIMAK  BTARABTTXN
KE - MRIBRARER BT TR
HRBUEN » —F - —FAEREEE
me AEEERIBEF  EAR_-T
“HFARICHRERIE10% © 1R
EHREICERBERAT

BRRHES

Water consumption /K5 & VEV 878

Water consumption JGEFEZE  mYemployee 23

intensity YhK/ BB

m3/thousand tonnes
of terminal
throughput
IHK/ ERER
=TH

Nitrogen

Nitrogen is an important resource for facilitating the storage of
highly volatile substances. It provides a protective layer of gas
on the substances, which is named as blanketing. The process
is controlled automatically instead of manually to avoid wastes.
The usage of nitrogen is monitored to ensure there is no
leakage.

Terminal
storage
business
99,127 100,005 84,643
Trading and
retail business:
BIRTEEK
4
38 Terminal
storage business:
SR RER -
33
a

ARBYREFREIFEEMENER
BIR - BAEWE DA EREBRER -
WRAHKE - ZEFTIEEBMIEA
FHEH - ARRE - ARERES
FEARI SRR

HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2021



A3.

A4.

—-—=

—E—FFR

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group’s terminal is near to the waterbody with high
biodiversity and rich fisheries resources. Based on the Group's
internal policies, efforts have been made to minimise the
impact of activities on the environment. For example, two sets
of oil spill monitoring and alerting system have been installed in
the water body near the terminal. The system is able to detect
oil spill accidents occurred when the oil tanker is berthing or oil
products are loaded.

Our terminals are also monitored by staff under 24-hour real-
time video surveillance system. If oil spill accidents are detected,
the signal from the alarm system can reach the responsible
staff and prompt remedies can be carried out to reduce the
impact on the environment.

To strength the pollution control, the Group has cooperated
with a company specialised in handling oil spill accidents to
equip adequate facilities (e.g., oil boom) to prevent the spread
of oil leakage in the sea.

CLIMATE CHANGE

Governance

Our group addresses climate-related risks based on the nature
of the risk to our operations. The physical impacts of climate
change, including extreme weather events, or damage to
facilities have immediate operational impacts and are treated
as operational risks. Long-term challenges, such as emerging
ESG issues and climate-related risks and opportunities, may be
discussed by the Group’s ESG Working Group.

Supported by our ESG Working Group, our Board oversees
climate-related issues and risks regularly during board meetings
and ensures that they are incorporated into our strategy.

ERRFEERAT

A3.

A4.
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To ensure our Board to keep up with the latest trend of
climate-related issues, climate competence training will be
provided to ensure it has the necessary expertise and skills to
oversee the management of climate-related issues. Our Board
also seeks professional advice from external experts when
necessary to better support the decision-making process.

Our ESG Working Group provides effective governance for
integrating and addressing ESG issues, including climate
change, within our business. The ESG Working Group is
responsible for approving operational emissions targets for the
Group and commissioning an ESG benchmarking, as well as
gap analysis exercise to identify gaps in both disclosure and
policy relative to the best practice standards. Moreover, the
ESG Working Group works closely with the Group’s different
operation departments, with an aim to develop consistent and
enhanced approaches on addressing ESG risk issues and report
to the management.

Strategy

Climate change risk forms part of our overall risk profile
through its role in increasing the frequency and intensity of
certain diseases, and the health and mortality impacts resulting
from natural disasters. We assess the overall level of risk by
taking into consideration a range of diverse risk factors across
the many categories in our services range. This diversity of risk
is combined with our business strategy and broad geographic
footprint helps us mitigate risk and provide protection against
the impacts of short-term climate change effects.

Our products and services continue to provide protection for
people in our communities against weather and heat-related
disease. Besides, we continue to explore opportunities to
engage our business partners and encourage them to develop
climate resilience and reduce their operational carbon footprint
by taking into consideration of different climate-related
scenarios, including a “2°C or lower scenario” through the
following steps:

RTHEREZSEMR CRIRERE
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Step 1: Set Future Images Assuming Climate Change Effects
As climate change measures proceeds, there is a possibility that
the industry will be exposed to substantial changes, such as stricter
policies including the introduction of and increases in carbon
pricing, as well as advances in technology and changes in customer
awareness.

In light of these climate change effects, based on the International
Energy Agency (“IEA") scenarios and others, we developed multiple
future images as the external environment that will surround our
Group. With regard to the IEA scenarios, we put focus on the 2°C
scenario (2DS) and pictured future images in case where climate
change measures do not progress and where such measures
progress further “Beyond 2°C scenario”.

Step 2: Consider the Impacts

We considered the impacts on our Group for each of the future
images developed in Step 1. We believe that in such a society, it will
be possible to expand carbon dioxide reduction effects.

With regard to effects on raw material procurement and production,
introduction of and increases in carbon pricing is anticipated in
accordance with the global advance of climate change measures,
leading to the possibility of higher raw material procurement and
production costs.

On the other hand, in the case where climate change measures
are not adequate throughout society, production interruptions and
supply chain disruptions are likely to increase as a result of higher
frequency and intensification of natural disasters such as flooding.
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Step 3: Respond to the Strategies

Our Group will begin promoting the reduction of non-renewable
energy in our daily operation. This strategy will allow for flexible
and strategic responses to each demand for the regions where the
emission factors of purchased electricity consumptions are high. By
promoting real carbon emissions reductions throughout the world
through comprehensive energy-saving policies and introduction of
renewable energy, we are working to achieve zero carbon emission
in our business.

We minimize carbon emissions through comprehensive energy-
saving and introduction of renewable energy. With respect to
renewable energy in particular, we have set a new target, achieve a
reduction rate for purchased electricity in coming few years.

With regard to the ongoing confirmation of the suitability and
progress of the Group’s strategies, we believe that we will have
opportunities for stable funding and sustainable increases in
corporate value through appropriate information disclosure,
dialogue with institutional investors and other stakeholders.

Risk Management

Our Group identifies the climate change related risks or to test the
existing risk management strategies under climate change with the
aid of risk assessment. Hence, the areas where new strategies are
needed could be identified.

The risk assessment takes a standard risk-based approach using
national data, local information and expert knowledge, which can
identify how climate change may compound existing risks or create
new ones. The risk assessment is conducted through the following
steps:

Step 1: Establish the context
e Objective/goal

° Scale
e Time frame

e  Climate change scenario for most climate variables and sea
level
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Step 2: Identify existing risk (past and current)
e |dentify the record of occurrence of climatic hazard in the past
in the area

e  Risk management strategies in place to tackle future occurrence
of the hazard

Step 3: Identify future risk and opportunities
e Explore climate change projections for the selected time
frame(s) and emission scenario(s)

e Identify potential hazards

e Investigate whether any existing risk from Step 2 may get
worse under future projected changes

e |dentify new risks that can emerge under future projected
changes

Step 4: Analyse and evaluate risk

e |dentify a set of decision areas or systems (i.e., geographical
areas, business operation, assets, ecosystems, etc.) that has the
potential to be at risk in future

As outlined within the Governance section above, the Group has
robust risk management and business planning processes that are
overseen by the board of directors in order to identify, assess and
manage climate-related risks. The Group engages with government
and other appropriate organizations in order to keep abreast of
expected and potential regulatory and/or fiscal changes.

We continue to raise awareness of climate change in regard to
monitoring of carbon and energy footprint in our daily operation.
However, there remains gaps in understanding how such climate
risks and opportunities may impact our operations, assets and
profits. Our Group assesses how the business addresses climate
change risks and opportunities and takes the initiative to monitor
and reduce their environmental footprint.
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Significant Climate-related Issues BERRMBREEBEE

During the reporting period, the significant climate-related physical ~RIREHIR] - LR LAl 28K E
risks and transition risks, which have impacted and/or may impact — BI7E()&E&E - ER LR - (i EERE
our Group's business and strategy in (i) operations, products and  {E#E - (jii)iEfE RERES) - (V)FFERE ¢
services, (ii) supply chain and value chain, (iii) adaptation and R (V)B &R 2I A EM XK RFEAEAR
mitigation activities, (iv) investment in research and development, RIEFEERERLI:BERE @ LWREES
and (v) financial planning, as well as the steps taken to manage ERBAZTWOT :

these risks, are as follows:

Climate-related risks description Financial impact Steps taken to manage the risks

RGN R R s ipys-7 EERBRAENNSR

Physical Risk

BREE

Acute physical risks

- Increased severity and frequency of extreme - Operating cost increases - Planned to adopted scenario
weather events such as cyclones and floods, - Capital cost increases due to analysis to disclose an
strong wind. Hence, staff are easily injured. In the damage of facilities organization’s planning
addition, under the extreme weather events, under future scenarios, most
the costs of transportation, communications notably one with in a “2°C
and living increase, which may lead to scenario”.
financial loss. -  Established a natural disasters

- Increased likelihood and severity of wildfire, emergency plan.

which may hinder the operations of factories.
Financial loss occurs due to the interruption
of supply chain, logistics and transportation.

BERERER
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Climate-related risks description

IR AR B L B

Physical Risk
BERER

Chronic physical risks

- Prolonged hot weather may increase the
energy consumption.

- Climate change brings uncertainties to
the environments of production and sales.

Although direct losses will not be incurred by

the company, this may still affect and limit
the product sales and services significantly.

- Prolonged climate change may detriment the
human's health. Continuation of temperature

rise can increase the fatality rates and
incidence rates of some diseases, especially
the one related to cardiac and respiratory
system; the spread of some climate-sensitive
diseases such as malaria and dengue fever
may increase.
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Financial impact

gt 7

Revenue reduces from
decreased production capacity
and the negative impacts of
workforce.

ERE TRAEB NI
& SHATHK

RS dHEREAEHS

Steps taken to manage the risks|

EEERRRNS R

Planned improvements,
retrofits, relocations, or other
changes to facilities that may
reduce their vulnerability to
climate impacts and increase
the climate resilience in long
term.

Engagement with local or
national governments and
local stakeholders on local
resilience.
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Climate-related risks description

SRR R B

Transitional Risk
B E
Policy risk

As a result of energy efficiency requirements,
carbon-pricing mechanisms increase the
price of fossil fuels, or policies to encourage
sustainable land use, hindering the area of

expansion, which increase the operation cost.

Mandates on and regulation of existing
products and services as of the tightened
environmental and safety laws and standards
of oil. We have to spend much compliance
cost to update or maintain the equipment to
fulfil the new regulations.

B R
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Financial impact
ip)3-2 2

Operating cost increases due to —

increased insurance premiums
for the factories.
Risk of trade increases.

BERE LT SEERAE -

ill
B SR BRIE N

Steps taken to manage the risks

EEREBRMNSR

Planned to be involved in
carbon trading and adoption
of clean energy in the
operations to reduce the
carbon emissions.

Monitor the updates of the
relevant climate-related
environmental policies,

to avoid the unnecessary
increase in cost and
expenditure due to the
violation of the climate-
related environmental
policies.

BB EENRS - W
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TRRRAREEENS
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Climate-related risks description

IR AR B L B

Transitional Risk

BEmR

Legal risk

- Exposure to litigation. We have to adapt the -
tightened law and regulations issued by the
government due to climate change, and they
have the risk of litigation once they failed to
obligate the new rules.

- Enhanced emissions-reporting obligations.

We may have to spend much time on fulfilling
the report standards to comply the new
obligations.

EERR

- EEFLER - RAFZERBFEARGE -
b mBMEGERERIFR G - a0AR B
HE - AIREE AR AR E

- BEFHEREE - ROATEREE SRR
ERERER| - ABIEEE

Technology risk

- Developing the low carbon energy-saving
products and energy saving technologies, the
capital investment and R&D expense increase
consequently.

- More green building strategies with low-
carbon, energy-saving technologies are
adopted by industry peers. Lagging behind
may weaken our competitive edges.

AT

- FABEREREDRESERR HREAR -
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Financial impact

gt 7

Operating cost increases for
high compliance costs and
increased insurance premiums
for the Group.

BRRARSRAKENRE
20 EEERA LT

Capital investment in
technology development
increases.

RAMFIZMBEARKRE LTt

RS dHEREAEHS

Steps taken to manage the risks

EEERRRNS R

Monitored the updates of
environmental laws and
regulations and implemented
GHG emissions calculations
in advance.

ARRIARIR IR R
R’ WREBITRERE
e E A

Planned to invest in the
innovations of energy saving
products.

Examined the feasibility and
benefits of applying the latest
low-carbon and energy-
saving technologies into our
operation.

HE AR HEER
=E 8RR
T B A AT AT I R 2
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HEREARE

Climate-related risks description

SRR R B

Transitional Risk

BEmEE

Market risk

- More customers are considering climate-
related risks and opportunities, which may
lead to changes in customers’ demand for
products.

- Uncertainty in market signals. “How
environmentally friendly the product is”
becomes one of the factors to affect the
product selling price.

-  Increased cost of raw materials. More
environmentally-friendly raw materials may be
much expensive, which may increase the cost.

AR
- TOEPEEREHERRMKE AR
)ExTEqu’JﬁﬁIﬁﬁﬁE&
- SRS o [ ERNTHIREESE K
%%EDD%EH’\JI%Z—
- J%iﬁﬂﬂzﬁtﬁ c ELHRBEEZORMH
RAAIREE RSP E - HEEMAA

Reputational risk

- Unable to fulfil the expectations of the
customers, damage the Group's reputation
and image.

- Stigmatization of our business sector, such
as more stakeholder concern or negative
stakeholder feedback on the product
designed in a less environmentally-friendly
way.

*ﬁgﬁﬂﬁA

- REg
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Financial impact

Lupd-Z

Revenue decreases for the
change in revenue mix and
sources.

Operating cost increases as
abrupt and unexpected shifts
in energy costs.

Production cost increases due
to changing input prices and
output requirements.

q&ﬁné‘ﬂm H1RE EE&(%
B
RERANBE B RA R FRE 2 b
HEBE - EEENA LT
BRANEREREEERTH
REF  ABEERAS LT

WA

Revenue decreases from
decreased demand for goods
and the decrease in production
capacity.

Operating costs increases from
negative impacts on workforce
management and planning.

%ifm @E&%ﬁgﬂxﬁﬁ
ERR BT

Steps taken to manage the risks

EEREBRMNSR

Tightened the control of the
environmental hazardous
materials in our products and
studied the application of
recycled materials.

MEHREARREOWHE
REE - URESREAE
BIH

Supported the green
productions.

Fulfilled the social
responsibility by organizing
more activities or executing
actions to demonstrate how
we place importance on
climate change.

XFREBLE
BRE LR HEENT
BIHEEE  BRAKE
HRIRB(ENER
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During the reporting period, the primary climate-related
opportunities and the corresponding financial impacts were as

follows:

Detailed description of climate-related opportunities

KIRAEREBEF

Resource efficiency

—  Reduce more packaging material usage
—  Reduce water usage and consumption
BE R

- RIERsRDHE

- RO RIKERMER

Energy source

—  Use of lower-emission fuel sources
—  Use of supportive policy incentives
—  Use of new technologies

CE

- EREBERRE

- ERRFEERAR
- AR

Products and services
—  Development of climate adaptation and insurance risk

solutions
—  Ability to diversify business activities
E R AR 7
-  BREBRRKENRBREROERS R
- EBZITHEE
Markets

- Access to new markets

s
- RETH

—E—FFH EBREFRERAE
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RS dHEREAEHS

RBEHR - E2RIRBEEE RBRED
MR EWNT

Financial Impact
prs 2

Operating cost reduces through efficiency
gains and cost reductions

BB MERKA - FEREERA

Operating cost reduces through use of
lowest cost abatement

Returns on investment in low emission
technology increases

BB AR AR AR SR AR 2 B AR
8=y (i¥7 00 ¢EEs ] CIE Habiy

Revenue increases through new solutions
to adaptations needs, such as insurance risk
transfer products and services

BBYIATHEEHFRR T R(NRRERE
oR = M AR TS ) S hni e

Revenue increases through access to new
and emerging markets

B EAE R 23 M BT 58 p A
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Detailed description of climate-related opportunities

R BEHEF I

Resilience

Participation in renewable energy programs and adoption
of energy-efficiency measures
Resource substitution or diversification

TEFERET]

84

2HEBA R R RIRNEREIE -
BRERIEEZHA

Metrics and Targets

Our Group adopts the key metrics to assess and manage
climate-related risks and opportunities. The energy
consumption and greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions indicators
are the key metrics used to assess and manage relevant
climate-related risks where we consider such information is
material and crucial for evaluating the impact of our operation
on global climate change during the year. Our Group regularly
tracks our energy consumption and GHG emissions indicators
to assess the effectiveness of emission reduction initiatives,
as well as set targets to contribute our effort to have minimal
impact on global warming.

The details of time frames over which the target applies and
base year from which progress is measured are described in the
section A1: "Emissions” and section A2: “Use of Resources”
of this Report. Our Group adopts absolute target to manage
climate-related risks, opportunities and performance.

SOCIAL ASPECTS

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group highly considers employees as important assets and is
committed to improve in these four areas: employment, health
and safety, development and training and labour standard.

Financial Impact
upis %

Market valuation increases through resilience
planning, such as infrastructure, land and
buildings

Reliability of supply chain and ability to
operate under various condition increases
Revenue increases through new products
and services related to ensuring resiliency
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EMPLOYMENT

The Group has established and implemented a set of human
resources management policies and procedures in place with
the aim to provide good and safe working environment to
its staff in order to comply with “Labour Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China”. It sets out the Group’s standards
for staff recruitment, promotion guidelines, remuneration scale,
holiday and statutory paid leaves, parental leaves and working
hours.

All employees are treated equally and their employment,
remuneration and promotion opportunities will not be affected
by their nationality, race, age, religion and marital status.

The Group also advocates harmonious and work-life balance
culture among the employees through organising diversified
activities, including annual dinner, annual gathering, sport
days and birthday parties, etc. These activities can help the
employees to relax and enhance communications among
them. During the reporting period, no concluded case (2020:
nil) regarding employment was brought against the us or our
employees.

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the
employee compositions (in percentage of employees) by
gender, age group, geographical region, employment category
and mode were as follows:

Employee compositions

B1.

—FFH

(==FElpY

By gender Q]|

e Male e M

e  Female o It

By age group REHRER

e Age 30 or below e 30pREkIAT
e Age 31-40 e 31-40B%

e Age41-50 e 41-50B%

e Age 51 or above o  S1pRakAE
By geographical region EihE

e Hong Kong o FHE

e  The PRC o

By employment category RIERERE S

e Senior management
e Middle management

s PRERE
o PREERE

e General o —f&

e Contract/short term o A% EH
By employment mode EEEEN

e Full-time o 2I¥

. Contract/short term

ERRFEERAT

o AKN/EH

RS dHEREAEHS
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) HEBRMABEMEENE LR
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MEEAKX (EEEHEB A L)W
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81% 83%
19% 17%
32% 34%
37% 34%
23% 23%
8% 9%
4% 4%
96 % 96%
6% 7%
11% 10%
82% 82%
1% 1%
99% 99%
1% 1%
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The employee turnover rate during the year by gender, age
group and geographical region are as follows:

Employee turnover rate

BEMAKLLE

By gender R

e Male e 5

e Female o

By age group RERHER

e Age 30 or below o 30BREKIAT
e Age31-40 e 31-408%

e Age41-50 o 41-50%%

e Age 51 or above o SIEREKIAE
By geographical region RitE

e Hong Kong o« HE

e  The PRC e M
Overall et

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Upholding the belief that safety is the first priority, the Group
is committed to providing a healthy and safe workplace for all
its employees and the community. The Group has established
“Health, Safety and Environment Policy Statement” in
accordance with the requirement of “Occupational Health
and Safety Management System” (OHSAS18001) and
ISO45001:2018. The Group continues to improve the working
conditions and monitor the effectiveness of safety related
controls. The Group complies with related health and safety
laws and regulations such as “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases”, “Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, “Provisions on the Supervision and Administration of
Occupational Health at Work Sites”, etc. In 2021, no concluded
case (2019: 1 case, 2020: nil) regarding health and safety was
brought against us or our employees.

Care to Employees

Every employee is required to have a medical check annually.
Employees are provided with safety training and personal
protective equipment (helmet, goggles, masks, etc.) in the
workplace. Occupation hazards assessment is conducted
by third party regularly to monitor the performance on
occupational safety. To ensure the staff to have better health
protection, the Group provides medical insurance for the staff
annually.

RIS  FRARI R HEE S
BERKLENT :

19% 12%
16% -
33% 16%
13% 5%
11% 9%
11% 5%
32% -
18% 11%
19% 10%
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The Group is committed to providing all employees with a
warm and comfortable working and living environment. The
Group has set up self-managed staff quarters and canteens
with a view to providing sound rest space and healthy
catering to its employees. Drinks are also freely provided to all
employees in hot season to prevent them from having heat
stroke. Furthermore, the Group offers various activities for the
staff, such as annual trip, annual gathering and birthday meal,
to advocate the work-life balance and harmony. Such activities
can strengthen the relationships between the staffs and allow
them to be more relaxed.

The Group promotes the implementation of an employee-
caring scheme, “Global support for individual suffer scheme”
([—FHEH  NFHXE]E), which encourages all staff to
make voluntary donation to any individual employee who has
suffered serious illness or disease. During the year, an employee
in need has received a donation of RMB18,166 through this
scheme.

Safety Precaution in Workplace
Safety of employees in workplace is crucial. Key safety
precautions are implemented as follows:

e Toxic gas detector, audible and visual alarm and
emergency cut-off valve are installed in each berth.

e Parameters of all flammable and explosive substances
are carefully and closely monitored (e.g., temperature,
pressure, flow volume) during transfer. All parameters
information is transferred to PLC (Programmable Logic
Controllers) in the terminal control centre for monitoring
the frontline operation.

e Worker, who enters the tank, must wear protective
clothes and make sure that the toxic gas concentration
does not exceed the acceptable level.

e  Emergency shower, eyewash facilities and breathing
apparatus are provided.

During the year, there were 2 work injury cases (2020: nil,
2019: nil) and 246 lost days (2020: nil, 2019: nil) due to minor
injuries during business operations. There was no work-related
fatality case (2020: nil, 2019: nil) during the year. Employees
were given paid sick leave for their recovery. Overall, no
employees had serious accident during the reporting period.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group continues to provide comprehensive and suitable
trainings to employees to promote a learning culture based
on the Group’s “Training Management Procedure” and other
related internal policies. The Group analyses the employees’
training and operation needs to prepare training and budget
plan yearly. The Group provides diversified on-the-job trainings
to employees, particularly safety trainings, with the aim to
improve the quality of the employees’ safety and to establish a
corporate safety culture.

Generally, there are both internal and external trainings for
employees. Every new employee needs to receive a three-
month training including general knowledge and skills about
storage tanks. Assessment is conducted after the training. Only
the new employees who pass the assessment can start their
work in their position. Continuous assessment is conducted
to keep track on the performance of the current employees.
The Group also offers on-the-job training, which based on the
operation needs and annual training plan. It aims to enhance
the performance and skill of employees. External training
mainly includes certification training for specialists (e.g. safety
management personnel, engineers, accountants, etc.). The
Group invites related government departments and institutions
to deliver training to ensure employees can perform duties with
relevant qualifications.

With continuous trainings and assessments, the safety
knowledge of the employees can be strengthened and the
safety awareness can be enhanced. This can decrease the
occurrence of work-related accidents.

During the reporting period, the percentage of employees
received training by gender and employment category was as
follows:

Percentage of employees received

training

ZIHEE R DL

By gender R

e Male o 5

e Female o I

By employment category RERERNES
e Senior management o ERERE
e Middle management o HRERE
e General . —%
Overall st
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During the reporting period, the composition of employees
received training by gender and employment category was as
follows:

Composition of employees received

training

ZoHE 84K

By gender tge |

e Male o FH

*  Female o Mt

By employment category REFERE S
e Senior management s RREERE
e Middle management s HRERE
e General s —f&

Furthermore, the average training hours by gender and
employment category during the reporting period was as
follows:

Average training hours received per

employee

BREENTIZIIRE

By gender =R

e Male o FHi

e  Female o M

By employment category RERERNE S
e Senior management s EREEE
e Middle management s HREEE
e General e —K

B4. LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group respects the human rights of employees, especially
gender equality and is strongly against employment of child
labour and forced labour. The Group strictly complies with
“Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China”, Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong and other relevant laws and
regulations. Recruitment guideline clearly states that person
under 16 is not allowed to work in the Group and zero
tolerance to child labour and forced labour.

During the year, the Group was not subject to any punishment
by the government and was not involved in any lawsuit related
to child labour or forced labour.
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92% 89%
8% 1%
6% 1%
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83% 75%

AN - RIREHE - IR RERE
RED - PO

20 10
6 6
8 15
17 15
19 8

B4. % T XA

AEBEBEREBOARE - FHIZER
FE - BRNURHERAET RRHILE
T o AEBEERET(PEARKM
B Tx) - BRERRDLEMA
BIARKOER - HEBHESIERTIA6
BRATALTTAREAEEIE - A
PRRBEIRERHISET -

ZN S VNSRS e R )
B BEESEMARETIXSE
85 TEVRAA ©

89



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BB HERERRE

OPERATING PRACTICES

B5.

90

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

During the reporting period, the Group had 40 suppliers
(2020: 74 suppliers) which were located in the PRC. The Group
depends on suppliers to provide materials and components for
different storage facilities. The selection of suppliers is based
on a list of criteria, including compliance, price, quality, stability
of supply and after-sales services with completion of “Supplier
Assessment Form” in accordance with the Group's internal
policy “Material Procurement Management Regulations”.
Besides, the Group assesses the suppliers with a rating system.
The Group maintains a long-term relationship with suppliers
based on the result from supplier assessment. During the
year, the assessment result was satisfactory and there was no
significant risk related to supply chain in environmental and
social aspects.

The Group implements the “Organizational Risk Management
Procedures” and “Organizational Environment and Relevant
Management Procedures” to identify the environmental and
social risks in each section of the supply chain, and determines
the significant impacts of the supply chain to the environment
and society with the execution of the Group's internal policies
“Material Procurement Management Regulations” and the
“Supplier Management Procedures”. It is expected that the
risk of supply chain comprises of delay, termination and
accumulation of the supply of materials. The supply chain risk
assessment is carried out by the managers and supervisors from
the Procurement Department half-yearly. During the reporting
period, there was no non-compliance case of the supplier being
discovered.

To reduce the impacts of the Group's operation to the
environment, the Group used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers. The
Group implements the “Material Procurement Management
Regulations” during procurement, and requires the suppliers
to be certified with the quality management systems, such
as 1SO9000 or equivalent. Products with the certification of
environmental labelling would be more preferrable. Besides,
suppliers are required to conduct sampling test and inspection
for the products and services.
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B6. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

As a leading midstream player in providing storage service for
chemical products in South China, maintaining the safety and
quality of customers’ products in the warehouse is the utmost
concern of the Group. In order to continuously improve the
quality of service provided by the Group, we have set up an
internal policy — “Hazardous chemical storage Management
Procedures” and other related procedures in accordance
with the requirement of quality management system
(ISO9001). During the year, the Group was not subject to any
disputes relating to the storage service or punishment by the
government and was not involved in any lawsuit related to
product responsibility.

Complaints Handling

The Group upholds the feedback from the customers. The
Group implements the internal policy “Customers Complaint
and Services Management Procedures” to handle the
complaints from the customers. Department of commerce of
the Group is responsible for dealing the with complaints from
customers. Prompt response will be taken and the problem will
be identified to prevent similar complaints from happening.
During the year, one complaint (2020: 1) related to the
efficiency of goods unloading was received by the Group.

The Group responded to the cases immediately and explained
to the clients. The situation has improved after the adjustment
of the working schedule of employees and the increase in the
consumer service training.
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Quality Control

According to “Regulations on the Safety Administration of
Dangerous Chemicals”, the Group requires customers to
provide Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) for chemicals stored.
Besides, all storage tanks are labelled with UN Number (United
Nation Number) and other relevant numbers for identification.

When customers’ goods are delivered to the tank, the testing
company engaged by the customers will carry out sample
testing on the goods, verify the certification or testing report
provided by the suppliers and check if the name, specification
and technical information of the sample meet the national/
international standards. Only goods that pass the testing and
meet the related requirements can be stored in the Group's
warehouse.

Customer Information Protection

The Group upholds a belief that information security and
privacy is the key principle for operation. We comply with
relevant laws and regulations. According to Group's Staff
Handbook, employees are required to sign an agreement to
protect the privacy of clients and any other sensitive business
information. Employees who violate the agreement will receive
punishment and legal action will be taken. During the year, no
severe violation was found that posed a significant impact on
the Group.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group maintains a high standard of business integrity
throughout its operations and tolerates no corruption or bribery
in any form, the Group strictly complies with the “Chapter Il —
Crimes of Undermining the Order of Socialist Market Economy
Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Chapter VIII
— Graft and Bribery of Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in HKSAR" and other
relevant laws and regulations relating to anti-corruption.

B7.
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The Group has adopted “Compliance Policies” and stated
that the Group takes reasonable care to ensure that it will
not export, re-export, or otherwise divert customer’'s products
and other items in violation of any Trade Control Laws. All
the employees and external drivers who can get access to the
customers’ products are monitored. For example, the weight
of truck is checked when it enters and leaves the premises to
monitor any abnormal loading.

The Group has established related investigation and whistle-
blowing procedure for any corruption cases. The Group
has zero tolerance to any forms and degrees of bribery or
corruption behaviours in relation to the Group’s business
activities. During the year, no concluded case (2020: nil)
regarding corrupt practices was brought against us or our
employees.

The Group provided training sessions comprising of anti-
corruption, anti-bribery, anti-fraud, anti-blackmail and anti-
laundering to the directors and staff regularly. During the
year, 98% (2020: 96%) of the employees received the anti-
corruption training.

The number of employees received anti-corruption training and
the training hours by employment category were as follows:

Anti-corruption training
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REEE

Number of employees received ZIEE A
training

e Board of directors s EEFT

e Senior management s AREEE

e Middle management s HREREE

e General staff e —MRET

Total employees EEHA

Number of training hours ISR E

e Board of directors s EET

e Senior management s SREREE

¢ Middle management o HREEE

e General staff e —RET

Total training hours TSR B

—E—FFH EBREFRERAE

5 5
14 6
25 20

180 187
224 218
10 7
10 7
51 25
162 273
233 312
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group is committed to contributing to the society and
fostering positive relationship with the communities in which
the Group operates. The Group has related policies and
measures to understand the needs of the community, such
as villagers, employees and non-governmental organisations.
Contribution to the community and maintaining harmonious
relationship with the stakeholders in the region of operation
are crucial for the sustainable development.

During the year, the Group participated in a charitable activity
to help the community by making donation of RMB20,000
to Dongguan Charity Federation ("BZEMZEZ422") in June
2021 to support alleviation of poverty.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KPMG

Independent auditor’'s report to the shareholders of
Hans Energy Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hans
Energy Company Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 103 to 219, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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] B YRS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the

RRETER

MRRETFEERERMNFTRAE - R
RYERPR AV BRROETRAERD
FH - GLEFRIECERMBAEREEY
BRI E AR RRBETEREN - BRM

consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

TeYELERREHEBNER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Assessing potential impairment of property, plant
and equipment and interests in leasehold land

and building held for own use under the terminal
storage segment

Refer to accounting policy 1(h)(i) and note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter

BARETER

At 31 December 2021, the Group's property, plant and
equipment and interests in leasehold land and building
held for own use accounted for 30% of the total assets
of the Group. These assets principally comprised dock
and storage facilities and interests in leasehold land
and building held for own use.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
recorded a loss before taxation of HK$8.2 million. In
particular, one of the cash-generating units (“CGU")
with property, plant and equipment and interests in
leasehold land and building held for own use carried
at a value of HK$613 million as at 31 December 2021,
recorded a loss before taxation of HK$1.2 million.
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AEREARI B TYE - BERRE -
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R FER

B LB B RRAIE AR 1(h)) R HT:#(10)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

B ET W REZEE

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment
of property, plant and equipment and interests in
leasehold land and building held for own use included
the following:

e evaluating management’s identification of
CGUs and the amounts of property, plant and
equipment, interests in leasehold land and
building held for own use and other assets
allocated to each CGU;

BB - BEREE  UERRIEEACHEE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BRELEIE ()

AHMETREAR DB T - BMEKRE - UREER
RzEETREFEENETRE

Assessing potential impairment of property, plant
and equipment and interests in leasehold land

and building held for own use under the terminal
storage segment

Refer to accounting policy 1(h)(i) and note 10 to the BLR4FAMBEIRZA SR 1(N)LEATE(10)

consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

BENESNAEREZSEE

E e

Consequently, management considered that potential
impairment of property, plant and equipment and
interests in leasehold land and building held for
own use existed for this loss making CGU as at 31
December 2021.

Management performed impairment assessments
for property, plant and equipment and interests in
leasehold land and building held for own use using
the value in use model and compared the aggregate
carrying values of each separately identifiable CGU
to which the property, plant and equipment and
interests in leasehold land and building held for own
use had been allocated with the net present value of
the respective future cash flow (“discounted cash flow
analyses”) to determine the amount of impairment
which should be recognised for the year, if any.

At ERERBR-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—8" %
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EEARESRIRSRENREFEETHL (TR
(@iﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁﬂ) » ARETE S F NFERRRE SR
wE) -

p=11l

—E-—FFR EDERERAT

assessing and challenging management’s
impairment assessment models, which included
evaluating the impairment indicators identified
by management and assessing the impairment
assessment methodology with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

obtaining and reviewing the value in use
calculations prepared by management and on
which the directors’ impairment assessments for
property, plant and equipment and interests in
leasehold land and building held for own use
were based,;

challenging the key assumptions and estimates
adopted by management in the discounted
cash flow analyses by comparing the significant
inputs, which included future revenue and future
operating costs with the historical performance,
committed contracts on hand, the financial
budgets of the Group which had data been
approved by the directors and externally derived,
which included projected growth rates, projected
inflation rates and industry analyses published by
external research institutes;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BRETEEE)

FEBEERIBTYE BMERRE
AzHEEt REFRRNEETRE

URFER

Assessing potential impairment of property, plant
and equipment and interests in leasehold land

and building held for own use under the terminal
storage segment

Refer to accounting policy 1(h)(i) and note 10 to the FE2RT4EA A FFIRZ LTS B 1(h(0) R EE(10)

consolidated financial statements

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWESNAREZSEE

RRETEE

We identified assessing potential impairment of
property, plant and equipment and interests in
leasehold land and building held for own use as a key
audit matter because of the significant management
judgement required in making assumptions and
estimations, including estimations of future revenue,
inflation of operating costs and discount rates applied,
which can be inherently uncertain and could be subject
to management bias.
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assessing the discount rates applied in the
discounted cash flow analyses by benchmarking
against those of other similar companies in the
same industry;

evaluating the historical accuracy of
management’s value in use calculations by
comparing the forecasts at the end of the
previous financial year for revenue and operating
costs with the actual outcomes in the current
year and investigating reasons for any significant
differences between the forecast and actual
results;

engaging our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in evaluating the appropriateness of
methodology used by management and the
discount rate applied in the discounted cash flow
forecasts in the preparation of the discounted
cash flow forecast supporting the value in
use with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

performing sensitivity analyses for both the
discount rates and future revenue and considering
the resulting impact on the impairment
assessments and whether there were any
indicators of management bias in the selection of
assumptions.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SEMBRERREZEEREUIINMER
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other EEZZEHWHMEEAE - HME2 8T
information comprises all the information included in the annual EFHRFERANEIEE @ BETEBEEAH
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our 3R NI FIRZBEIHRE -

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover ¥ GAPMEHREN BRI TR ZE M
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance  {Z&. - BRI TE B R FRFAHESE

conclusion thereon. 4w o

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial #&RKFIEEEMBRENEIE - HMY
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, EHEZHEBHMISE - FELLBIEH - &
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially ~ Hith{Z B R B G A M BRERIRPIESE
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our  =H@I2F T T HEMNIS R FEE KB E
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be  LIFFAEEAEREFAMAIFT N

materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is ~ ERAKRPIEHITHITIE - MERMR AL
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required ~ Hhi{E BFAEE AR - RPIEER
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. HHFE o fEA | - BB EASRE -

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED EERASUMBEHRRERKENS(E
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated ZE=H/EGERETSSHMASHBHENS
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with BB 154 2 Bl & B BCRQ 7l EF A E
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of ERBEEETMT S NG HEHRE - I
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control ¥ H R A AF45E M BBREROBENZE
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation  HFAERFESL $5:R M E B AY B A SE SRR UL AT
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material FBHRRIBLEFHIESE -

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

—T- g% ESERARAT 99
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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B MRS
As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise  fEiRIE B BT LRI TR ETHBIEH -
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism — FAFER 7 HEHE - (RIS 7T HEERERE
throughout the audit. We also: & o« BA75 :
e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the BRI AN GT A BB A HREF 2k B AR 1 & BUAR

7

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and,
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Kong Wing Hung.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

31 March 2022
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Consolidated Income Statement B

mEEER

for the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-T-—F+-A=+—BIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TE3IR)

Revenue WA 3 1,972,358 2,481,906
Direct costs and operating expenses B 5k 7N [ 4844 & (1,867,945) (2,415,509)
Gross profit EF 104,413 66,397
Other income HAtblzs 4 28,645 37,688
Selling and administrative expenses  $4%& &1TIE A (156,309) (89,178)
Net fair value gains/(losses) on BARBEFABRZ

financial assets at fair value TMEEAABERST

through profit or loss (B1E) 558 70,031 (3,354)
Profit from operations REGRR 46,780 11,553
Finance costs BATS AR N 5(a) (54,934) (49,895)
Loss before taxation BB AEE 5 (8,154) (38,342)
Income tax Fris#i 6(a) (5.364) (994)
Loss for the year FREE (13,518) (39,336)
Attributable to: FE(L :
Equity shareholders of the Company AR AR (16,047) (40,095)
Non-controlling interests eI 2,529 759
Loss for the year FRAEE (13,518) (39,336)
Basic and diluted losses per share SREXRR#EEE 9 (0.41) cents 4l (1.07) cents 1l

The notes on pages 110 to 219 form part of these financial ~ ERE1108£2198 2 M5 R AR L E
statements. Bz 2 —8H o
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n Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEERER

for the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZT—-—4F+-A=+—HItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JATTHIR)

Loss for the year FREE (13,518) (39,336)
Other comprehensive income FRAHMSERE :

for the year:
Item that may be reclassified HigrgesFokes

subsequently to consolidated FEBmAmMIER

income statement:
Exchange differences on translation BREMBRRMBHREZ

of financial statements of PEH =%
subsidiaries 13,743 3,379
Item that will not be reclassified HigTesHnEs
subsequently to consolidated FEWEmENIEE ¢

income statement:
Increase in fair value of investments BAREFAEME W

at fair value through other ([BRAREFAEMEE
comprehensive income (“FVOCI") Wz ) 2 B R R EIE N 309,336 -
Other comprehensive income FREMZEKE
for the year 323,079 3,379
Total comprehensive income FRAEZERDBEHE
for the year 309,561 (35,957)
Attributable to: FE1G -
Equity shareholders of the Company ~ ZA&RAFIAZE 306,430 (37,974)
Non-controlling interests JEIEASRE RS 3,131 2,017
Total comprehensive income FREmMKBEEE
for the year 309,561 (35,957)

The notes on pages 110 to 219 form part of these financial FRE110EZ=2198 2 Kl sE A4 I 8
statements. Bz —8bo o
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Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Interests in leasehold land and
buildings held for own use

Investment property

Prepayments and other receivables

Other investments

Intangible assets

Interest in an associate

Interest in a joint venture

Goodwill

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables and
contract liabilities

Bank loans

Lease liabilities

Current taxation

Amounts due to related parties

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

—E-—FFR EDERERAT

Consolidated Balance Sheet

FRBEE

LUE =Y &
FEEMZHEL R
ES F

REME

B RR N H At FE WK IR
Hib &

BVEE
NN P
REERET
BE

RBEE

&

B 5 M AR FIA

Re MIRTTHES

REAE

B 5 R E AR TR K
BHEE

RITER

HEAE

BIEATHIR

& 1~ BRESE 77 3K0R

REBEEFE
BEERRBAM

SEEERER

at 31 December 2021 R—ZE-—#+—-A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 73R )

10 487,267 576,639
10 208,380 208,769
11 46,027 -
12 15,645 16,070
15 816,844 167,959
13 1,062 1,239
18 1,223 -
19 2,140 -
14 5,181 5,033
1,583,769 975,709

16 144,336 174,688
20 440,451 516,864
21(a) 118,160 353,219
702,947 1,044,771

22 53,741 127,861
23 206,066 162,218
24 4,430 6,487
25(a) 1,639 584
26 82,802 82,230
348,678 379,380

354,269 665,391

1,938,038 1,641,100
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

at 31 December 2021 R=ZE=—4+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BAZ T3 7R)

Non-current liabilities
Bank loans
Lease liabilities

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity attributable
to equity shareholders of
the Company

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 31 RZ-T_-—

March 2022.

Yang Dong
BE
Director

EF

The notes on pages 110 to 219 form part of these financial

statements.

106

FERBEB
RITER 23 562,109 627,560
HEaE 24 23,564 27,311
! 585673 654871
EEFE 1,352,365 986,229
BRKEE
IEEN 29(b) 395,664 395,664
=] 936,458 573,453
KA T REREERER
1,332,122 969,117
FEIERRER 20,243 17,112
R 1,352,365 986,229
FEZA=t+—HESE=gitE
AT -
Zhang Lei
RE
Director
B

BiR 2 —#D o

HREIN0BEE2198 2 HIsT AMHAMK I E 5
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity B
mERRBHR

for the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-ZT=—F+=-—A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TE3IR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARARREERS

Treasury

HIEEY

under share  Share-based Asset Non-
Share Share Special ~ Translation  Statutory award  compensation  revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve stheme reserve reserve profits interests equity

RERH
LR
ST
REEH
$000
v i
(Note 15)
( T‘An 5)

Balance at 1 January 2000 R=F=2£-F-A

i 373,264 no4n (251428) 4624 31947 (16,581) 14,700 - e 938,625 15,095 953,720
(Loss)profitfor the year ER(EiE) /57 - - - - - - - - 40,095) 40,095) 759 (39,3%)
Other comprehensive income 2 E4E - - - 21 - - - - - 21N 1,58 3379
Totd comprehensive income 2 EAEEE - - - 211 - - - - (40095 (7.974) 2017 (35957)
Issue of ordinary shareson ~ EBREL/TLER
placement (ote 290)~~ (B4£E2910)) 750 38806 - - - - - - - %36 X
Fquitysetted sharebased ~ [WEREEZRHZS
transaction - - - - - - 5% - - 59 - 59
Shares issued under share R EEREFEETH
option scheme (Note 29(0i) - BifA (Hf£E29(u)i) 4900 12,54 - - - - (5880) - - 11,564 - 11,564
Balance at 31 December 2020 R=E-F5+ -
and 1 January 2021 Zt-AR-%--F
-B-R2kH 395,664 761,827 (251,428) 6,745 31947 (16,581) 9416 - 31521 969,117 1712 986,229
(Loss)profitfor the year ER(5E)/E7 - - - - - - - - (16,047) (16,047) 2529 (13518)
Other comprehensive income £ 2EH% - - - 13,14 - - - 309,336 - AN 602 33,079
Total comprehensive income 2 A4 Z4E - - - 13,141 - - - 309,336 (16,047) 306,430 313 309,561

Equitysetted sharebased  [WEREEZRHZS
transaction - - - - - - 56,575 - - 56,575 - 56,575

Balance at 31 December 2021 R=3=-%+-F
St-R2EH 395,664 761827 (251428) 19,886 31947 (16,581) 65,991 309,336 15480 133212 20243 1352365

The notes on pages 110 to 219 form part of these financial #ARE1108E2198 2 M sT AL EE
statements. ko —ab5H o
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n Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
GEHERER

for the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZT—-—4F+-A=+—HItFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JATTHIR)

Operating activities TR
Cash generated from/(used in) RS, (FTA)

operations R 21(b) 148,069 (329,335)
PRC corporate income tax paid BB RSN (4,191) (2,229)
Net cash generated from/(used in) &2 EEFTE,(FrTH)

operating activities HE R 143,878 (331,564)
Investing activities RETE
Capital injection to an associate M—KEERNGIEE (1,204) -
Capital injection to a joint venture A—REEREIE (2,108) -
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash IR &IFR SR (380) 14,067 (67,347)
Payment for the purchase of property, EEAYIE - HE &

plant and equipment Bz (4,771) (5,601)
Payment for purchase of other BAEAMIRE 2

investments (269,179) (171,437)

Payment for the purchase of interests B E#H{EE R ZAE L
in leasehold land and buildings held LT

for own use - (7,675)
Proceeds received from the disposal of H&EWE - ERREL

property, plant and equipment B U FT1S IR 74 2
Prepayments for purchase of property, BAME « BERBRE

plant and equipment TEfIFRIA - (1,526)
Interest received BUF & 1,512 5,857
Net cash used in RETEFTA

investing activities HEFE (261,609) (247,727)

108 HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement .
mERERER
for the year ended 31 December 2021 #E-ZT-_—F+_-_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BA7TTFII/R)

Financing activities REEE
Interest paid ERFE 21(0) (53,154) (48,411)
Repayment to related parties B 70a 21(c) - (168,462)
Allotment of new shares in relation BREREZFIR MDA EE

to placement 29(b)(ii) - 56,306
Allotment of new shares in relation BETEREREZ

to exercise of share options SR Bid 3% 29(b)(iii) - 11,564
Proceeds from new bank loans FERTTE ISR 21(0) 120,445 89,846
Repayment of bank loans BEIEITER 21(c) (165,010) (50,539)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ~ BHMNHESHELHERELD  21(0) (6,499) (6,219)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ~ BEEHESHFEITLD 2100 (1,795) (1,472)
Net cash used in financing BMETHFTARESRE

activies (106,013) (117,387)
Net decrease in cash HERASEEEE

and cash equivalents WA REE (223,744) (696,678)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—B—BZHER

1 January RE&EEER 285,872 974,510
Effect of foreign exchange rate NEERSBHIHE

changes 993 8,040
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=—A=+—-HB=z2

31 December ReRRSEHEER 21(a) 63,121 285,872

The notes on pages 110 to 219 form part of these financial #EHRE110EE2198 2 MizH RAEMK L FET
statements. Bz —E5 o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ERAR B EE

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (WAPSTTHIR « BAEFAZRIN)

1

110

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group. Note
1(c) provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current accounting periods reflected in
these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the
Group's interest in an associate and a joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
other investments (see note 1(g)) are stated at their fair
value.

Non-current assets are stated at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

1

EXEFEE

(a)

(b)

BREH

I EPBRRIIRIBPAAERZ
(BRMBHEED( BB
WELER DRE - IR AR
EREAgMAS((HEGTE
NE B FIEER 2 ERE
B BmEER  (BEGHE
AN(TEB L) k2t
BREAREFRAUK(EART
GO ZWBERE - ILEFHEY
BHRENMTEBLHERZME
RARER EMAR( LR
A)ERZWBERE - AEER
RAZERSTTBERIENT

FEEFMASCEMETES
ISR EERNZEATAR - RA%
Bz EAest BEE R AR
HIRATERA o FHRE1 (IR ¥
RRFRZE IR R IERT 2 2R
(BN ER [ A F R 0 bt 55 B 755 ¥
KRR HIEAER) ol Bz

EARHRFERD 2 EH -
B R R

BE-T--—F+TZA=1—H
EFEZEEMBREBEAR
A R EHB AR (REA%E])
UEARERBEATRAED
Ed: £l

REMERERIRA A EEE
RESLRAEE - MR AR ED
BRAVE AR E (RFIEE1(9))BRIN

FERBEEREEEREAER
HERANEIRETIR -
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1

Notes to the Financial Statements

B S 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAEEHERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

(]

- —FFR

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group. None of these developments has had a
material effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented in these financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

ERRFEERAT

BEREBEKR(E)

(b)

(9]

B/ RRWBUEE(E)

R AEEMBRERERZ
MigHE  EEEFERATE
BRERALEE - 8fF - A
KXz 2R BEL AL - {4
R B - AR MR RR
TR BERS - WRZRER
RSN THEBAECEMRAE
e - BREGRBACE RaE
HihBERRRBR2EERAR
Z BREE I #i  E7E o BER
BRABEEB BT BMTR -

ARBFEL A MR REOE
T - MREGHEFTZEHR
[ERXEZHE - MBRTEER
T HAMMERR SN RBREE
R B AR ORISR - BB
19 5% 8 17 5B oA A ) X o 2R A e e

27
o ©

B et 2 5m 2LE TR 7E FE R BT 7
BRAEEAZENT B BHRE
E RIBy FT 1R 9 1) B K% (5T RO T
TN EZHR -

B BR2H

R ETMARCEAETHE
AP BHREENER] - EA%
EERI SR ERER - %
FRRVEHAKERRSBE
HRMRE RPN RETT
AFIRZERHHERTNERT
RELEATE -

AREE W BRI HARAE
ST AR AT R S R -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B ISR R M

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BB FEHERIN)

1

112

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Subsidiaries, controlled structured entities and non-

controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties)
are considered.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so
that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor
in deciding who controls the entity, such as when any
voting rights relate to administrative tasks only and the
relevant activities are directed by means of contractual
arrangements.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

AR ()

FFIER RS

B AR EANEEES 2 B
(BREABIEER) - EARKEX
RUFHLEBRMSHAE
H BARENEBEHERE
NEEZFORE - RIAREEE
HIHER - N AREEEHE
BRIE  E2ZEEEEER
(HARENEMTHE)

EREEBREREBRIER
SRORES BN T REFRE
BRZRTEHREEEHER - )
WMEEARERREERITHE
BREER - MENEKREE
EEBARTHFRE -

RHE AR 2 BB b
REEEHAGEMERE &
EZEHIRERIERAL - SER
MERZEHR  RXHEBAERE
NEEBEABRZMEE ZEM
REREN - HERRGETH
BRE BN - EEZBERR
HBEREZBERAT - KERHER
SFELZ RBRER - SRE
B Z JORE S

IR FFR AR B H IR
X & FE 4G 2 BT B 2 R AU
FRUET S - ANEE & EHE
& 2 BB A E SR REIMER -
BB P L FERE
ENAUBRBNERNANE
T ABEBAFME » AKE
ERRAAESIRENHER
A Al R B B FHE AR AR L 5T
EEAISEER R -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAEEHERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Subsidiaries, controlled structured entities and non-

controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-
controlling interests and other contractual obligations
towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with
notes 1(q) or (t) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary
at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(1)). A controlled structured entity that is directly
held by the Company is considered as branch/agent of
the Company and the assets and liabilities thereof are
accounted for as assets and liabilities of the Company in
the Company’s balance sheet.

FER EBRREERLA

BERERBEGE)
(d) MEBLT  FEFEBEEER

FERER(E)

RS ERAEERBRL
REzIA B B AR B R E (G 12
BmAFIIR o AEREEE 2T
BEDEFABEaRMEEEE
Wan R 2 ABRAF E 2w )
SERAEN MRS AN IE
EREREARBRRZEZD
i o REFEBRRRFBTEAZE
RAEZERAAZHEBEONE
£ BFaEUERENE(9)
HORGFAREERBREIAY
BafgE-

AEEFAL EEHRENE AT
ZHIENEB IR XA
I 147 & #E PR N IR AR
SHBERIELFE - URFRE
R EE) B REREEL S
B AW RHERR S HERE -

BAREEKE LB QR A
R ARBEERZHE AR
ZFEH#zE - AR EE
RIBER AR o« RIEHIERE
B R EZ AP 8 & AR B #O (E () 4
BIPRAAETAER - BZE
BEREREREENSHA LR
nEH(HER)RBERRRE
BEZREVIERZKA -

RARRZEEBBRA - 1M
JB R AR E LA LR E
BIR(EMEND) - BEEAR
NAFE RSB B R R
RARRMDRE/RIERE - B
BERBEBERARREERAER
FRIABARRRIEERARE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B ISR R M

[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TTHIR + BB FEHERIN)

1

114

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group's share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee's identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes
purchase price, other costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the investment, and any direct investment
into the associate or joint venture that forms part of the
Group’s equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post-acquisition change in the Group's
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see notes 1(f) and (I)(ii)). At
each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
is any objective evidence that the investment is impaired.
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAEEHERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the
Group's interest is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method, together with any other long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate or the joint venture, after
applying the ECL model to such other long-term interests
where applicable (see note 1(l)(ii)).

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control over
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant influence
or joint control is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset (see note 1(g)).

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in associates
and joint venture are stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 1(I)(ii)), unless classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(9)

Goodwiill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 1(I)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in
the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group'’s policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries, are set
out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to
purchase/sell the investment. The investments are initially
stated at fair value plus directly attributable transaction
costs, except for those investments measured at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL") for which transaction
costs are recognised directly in profit or loss. For an
explanation of how the Group determines fair value of
financial instruments, see note 30(f). These investments
are subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on
their classification.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

0}

- —FFR

Investments other than equity investments
Non-equity investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement
categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principal and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method
(see note 1(v)(iv)).

—  FVOCI-recycling, if the contractual cash flows
of the investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the investment is
held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both the collection of contractual
cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition in profit or loss
of expected credit losses, interest income
(calculated using the effective interest method)
and foreign exchange gains and losses. When
the investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.

—  FVPL if the investment does not meet the

criteria for being measured at amortised cost
or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair value
of the investment (including interest) are
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Other investments in debt and equity securities

(continued)
(ii) Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading BIRA R
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment
the Group makes an irrevocable election to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition
of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount accumulated in
other comprehensive income remains in the fair
value reserve (non-recycling) until the investment
is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling)
is transferred to retained earnings. It is not recycled
through profit or loss. Dividends from an investment
in equity securities, irrespective of whether classified
as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policy set out in

note 1(v)(iv).
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B S 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAEEHERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Property, plant and equipment

(i)

- —FFR

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 1()(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs (see note 1(x)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date
of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Buildings 20-30 years
— Dock and storage facilities 5-30 years
— Filling station facilities 20 years
— Office equipment 5-10 years
— Motor vehicles 5-10 years
— Leasehold improvements Over the term of

the lease
— Right-of-use assets Over the term of

the lease

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(i)

()

(i)  Construction in progress represents oil and gas
station under construction and pending installation,
and is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note
1(1)(ii)). Cost comprises direct costs of construction
as well as interest charges, and foreign exchange
differences on related borrowed funds to the extent
that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest
charges, during the periods of construction.

Construction in progress is transferred to property,
plant and equipment when the asset is ready for its
intended use. No depreciation is provided in respect
of construction in progress.

Investment property

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as right-of-use
assets which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses (see note 1(l)(ii)).

The Group’s investment property is rented out under an
operating lease. The investment property is depreciated on
a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life as 20-30
years. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
investment properties are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 1(1)(ii)).
Amortisation of club memberships is charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of 17 to 24 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.
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B S 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAEEHERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Leased assets
At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset
and to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits
from that use.

0]

- —FFR

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts
for each lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component for all
leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets
which, for the Group are primarily laptops and
office furniture. When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as an
expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Leased assets (continued)
(i) As alessee (continued)

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits is
accounted for separately from the right-of-use assets
in accordance with the accounting policy applicable
to investments in debt securities carried at amortised
cost (see notes 1(g)(i) and 1(1)(i)). Any difference
between the initial fair value and the nominal value
of the deposits is accounted for as additional lease
payments made and is included in the cost of right-

of-use assets.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see notes 1(h)

and 1(1)iD).
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B S 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAEEHERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Leased assets (continued)

0]

- —FFR

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the revised lease
payments and lease term using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification. The
only exceptions are rent concessions that occurred
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and met the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of
HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group has taken
advantage of the practical expedient not to assess
whether the rent concessions are lease modifications,
and recognised the change in consideration as
negative variable lease payments in profit or loss
in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the rent concessions occurred.

In the consolidated balance sheet, the current
portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined as
the principal portion of contractual payments that
are due to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Leased assets (continued)
(ii) As alessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the case,

the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognised in accordance

with note 1(v)(i).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the
sub-leases are classified as a finance lease or as an
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease
is a short-term lease to which the group applies the
exemption described in note 1(k)(i), then the Group

classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(I) Credit loss and impairment of assets

0]

ZEC—FFR

Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs"”) on the financial assets
measured at amortised cost (including cash and bank
balances, and trade and other receivables) and lease
receivables.

Other financial assets measured at fair value are not
subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

—  fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition or
an approximation thereof;
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HAEEAERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(I) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)

0}

Credit losses from financial instrument and

lease receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate;

- lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the balance sheet
date; and

—  lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items to which the ECL
model applies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)

)

0]
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Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
balance sheet date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(I) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)

0}

128

Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant increase
in credit risk is performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When the assessment
is performed on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk
ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each balance sheet date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss. The Group recognises an impairment
gain or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)

)

0]

—FFR

Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
1(v)(v) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each balance sheet date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

—  the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(I) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)

0}

(i)

Credit losses from financial instrument and
lease receivables (continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset and
lease receivable is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the
asset becomes one-year past due and the Group
determines that there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery, or the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal of
impairment in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

- investment property;

—  right-of-use assets;

— intangible assets;

- investment in an associate;

- investment in a joint venture;

—  goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
balance sheet.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAEEHERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(I) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

- —FFR

Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using the pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit). A portion of the carrying
amount of a corporate asset (for example, head
office building) is allocated to an individual
cash-generating unit if the allocation can be
done on a reasonable and consistent basis, or
to the smallest group of cash-generating units if
otherwise.
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132

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(I) Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable)
or value in use (if determinable).

Reversal of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to the profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAEEHERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

Credit loss and impairment of assets (continued)
(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the
balance sheet date (see notes 1(I)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill are not reversed in a
subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or
a smaller loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the balance sheet
date to which the interim period relates.

(m) Inventories

0]

- —FFR

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Inventories (continued)
(i) Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any writedown of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised

HAEEAERIN)

1 EXRSFHEEE)
(m) #&E(#&)
() #&E#E)
EREELE  REFE
#) B T {B 00 i R B M R
HIMXH - BEEMRE
AERFENEREETE
H P I8 1R I HURL X 5 18
HEMEIXE - ENFE
R B 1 @ & 7R T B [
ELHRBERSEIIER
XWIFES BN

as an expense in the period in which the reversal

occurs.

(ii) Consumable parts

Consumable parts held for repair and maintenance
purposes by the Group are stated at cost less any

provision for obsolescence.

(n) Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue (see note 1(v)) before being unconditionally
entitled to the consideration under the payment terms
set out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed for
ECL in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(I)(i)
and are reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional (see note 1(0)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(v)). A contract liability would also
be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable

would also be recognised (see note 1(0)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAEEHERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

- —FFR

Contract assets and contract liabilities (continued)

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset (see note 1(n)).

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are initially measured at their
transaction price. Trade receivables that contain a
significant financing component and other receivables are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. All
receivables are subsequently stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method and including allowance for
credit losses (see note 1(1)(i)).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL in accordance with the policy set out in
note 1(1)().
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HAEEAERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note

(a)

1(x)).

Employee benefits

0]

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a share-based
compensation reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the share options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.
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B S 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAEEHERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iii)

- —FFR

Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based compensation reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the share-
based compensation reserve until either the option
is exercised (when it is included in the amount
recognised share capital for the shares issued) or the
option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits/accumulated losses).

Share award scheme

For the share award scheme, the Group may
purchase its own shares through the trustee of the
share award scheme from the open market for the
shares to be granted under the share award scheme.
Shares held by a controlled structured entity of the
Group (see note 1(d)) to meet obligations under
share award scheme (see note 28(a)) are accounted
for as treasury shares in the consolidated financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAEEHERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables (including amounts due to
related parties) are initially recognised at fair value and are
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
invoice amounts.
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B S 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAEEHERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(v)

Z—FFR

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle
a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another
party, a separate asset is recognised for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually certain. The
amount recognised for the reimbursement is limited to
the carrying amount of the provision.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sales of goods, the provision of services or the
use by others of the Group’s assets under leases in the
ordinary course of the Group's business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(v) Revenue and other income (continued)

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than 12 months, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the effective
interest method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. The Group
takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration
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for any effects of a significant financing component if the

period of financing is 12 months or less.

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income

recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate

net lease payments receivable.

(ii) Port and transshipment income

Port and transshipment income is recognised upon

performance of the services.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B S 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAEEHERIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(v) Revenue and other income (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

ZEC—FFR

Sales of goods

Revenue arising from the sales of oil and
petrochemical products is recognised at the point
in time when the customer has the ability to direct
the use and obtain substantially all of the remaining
benefits of the products, which is usually when the
legal title is transferred to the customer.

Dividends

— Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is established.

— Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under
the effective interest method using the rate exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. For financial
assets measured at amortised cost that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate
is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset (see note

1(@).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the balance
sheet initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currencies of the Company and its
subsidiaries in Hong Kong are Hong Kong dollars. The
functional currencies of the Company’s subsidiaries in the
PRC are Renminbi Yuan ("RMB"). The Group adopted
Hong Kong dollars as its presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains or
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
company initially recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The results of operations with functional currency other
than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the translation reserve.

On disposal of an operation with functional currency
other than Hong Kong dollars, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAEEHERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x)

(y)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended
use are complete.

Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(y) Related parties (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

=

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAEEHERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(z) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group's most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
are as follows:

0]

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of non-
current assets, including property, plant and equipment,
investment property, interests in leasehold land and
buildings held for own use, intangible assets, interest in an
associate and interest in a joint venture, at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. When indication of impairment
is identified, management prepares discounted future
cash flow to assess the differences between the carrying
amount and value in use and provides for impairment loss.
Any change in the assumptions adopted in the cash flow
forecasts would increase or decrease in the provision of
impairment loss and affect the Group’s financial position.
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3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3
(a) Revenue
The principal activities of the Group are trading of
and provision of terminal, storage, warehousing and
transshipment services for oil and petrochemical products
and operating a filling station.
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0]

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by major service lines
Revenue from contracts with ~ FEB KR EZER|
customers not within the E155REE I
scope of HKFRS 15 REEFEFEHHKRA
Storage and warehousing income BT R & B A
Revenue from contracts with ~ FEB KR EZER|
customers within the E15REERN
scope of HKFRS 15 REEFEHHKRA
Port and transshipment income &0 R A
Sales of oil and petrochemical HEHmMEALER
products
Revenue from operating a FEEIIN: T ON
filling station
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by business lines and by geographic
markets is disclosed in notes 3(b)(i) and 3(b)(iii)
respectively.
(ii) Revenue expected to be recognised in the

future arising from contracts with customers in
existence at the balance sheet date

As at 31 December 2021, all sales contracts have
original expected durations of one year or less.
The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sales contracts
such that the performance obligations that are
unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) as of the balance
sheet date are not disclosed.
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128,011 119,999
39,967 44,354
1,791,052 2,299,128
13,328 18,425
1,844,347 2,361,907
1,972,358 2,481,906
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3  REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 WARSHBHREE)
(a) Revenue (continued) (a) WA(E)

- —FFR

(iii) In 2021, the Group has two customers (2020: One)
with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the
Group's revenues. Revenues from sales of oil and
petroleum products to these customers arose in the
PRC and amounted to approximately $1,324,000,000
(2020: $734,276,000). Details of concentrations of
credit risk arising from the Group’s major customers
are set out in note 30.

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by entities, which
are organised by business lines and geography. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has identified
the following three reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

— Terminal Storage: this segment represents the
Group's provision of terminal, storage and
transshipment activities carried out in Dongguan, the
PRC.

—  Trading: this segment represents the Group's trading

(b)
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of oil and petrochemical products business carried FEREBLSE BB
out in the PRC and Hong Kong. mMALER ET o
—  Retail: this segment represents the Group’s filling - T Ao AEEER
station related business in Zengcheng, the PRC. FR B 4 4 2 e i A B 3
% o

Reportable segments are aligned with financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessment.

ERRFEERAT

2HD BETFHAAEERFR
TTREEABRERD B MKR
AP EEN K -
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[Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TTHIR

HAEEAERIN)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

0}

150

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitors
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following basis:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of investments
in subsidiaries and other corporate assets. Segment
liabilities include trade and other payables and
contract liabilities and lease liabilities attributable to
the individual segments and bank loans managed
directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated
by those segments and the expenses incurred by
those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment (loss)/

profit is “(loss)/profit before taxation”, i.e. “adjusted
(losses)/earnings before taxes”. To arrive at
profit before taxation”, the Group’s (losses)/earnings
are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments, such as head office
or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning (loss)/profit before taxation, management
is provided with segment information concerning
revenue, interest income, finance costs, depreciation
and amortisation and recognition of loss allowance
on trade and other receivables.

“(loss)/

3

WA K7 B & (4
”Wﬁ¢@@

(b)

0]

DIEE - EEREE
HABO BRI LSS
HERME AKBESE
THEBABKRUATESE
ERZARESBEGEZ
¥5 BERAE:

AHWEEBREMEBRE
E BEEERRDE
E - BETEERKEB AR
ZEEREMABEE °
NEBEBES DI EN
2%%&ﬁm%ﬁ X I8 LA

EHBEREESRE
M&“%EE?@Z&H
%/T))\ °
WARZ 2B HRE
PEWAEEZWARZE
AWAEEZZHNZE
DEEGEEEREE 2
EEEeEmMOoRER]
WEDEL ©

R 26 (E18) % F At
ERzZAEB BTN (S
B),/HA ] BN RE
BRI ZEAZ(BR), /&
o BERIBFAT (&
B),/ %] AEBEZ (5
18) /BRI ESTERE
fIE\J"*BZIEE(ZZDﬁ Hhsk

DNRTTERAA) VEH A% -

BRESAEBEBRA (B
18),/ s Mz D ERE RSN -

EEEBMMERERMHERAK
A~ FEBBA S FHK
A FERBHRERE
5 I B At & W B RS 1B B
Bz EER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R R MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB EAERIN)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

0]

ZEC—FFR

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)
Information regarding the Group's reportable
segments provided to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 is

set out below.

Terminal Storage

ERAH

3 WARDEIEEE)
2 EwE(E)

(b)

Trading

g5

0]

PHEE BEEREEE)
BHE-_T-_—FR=-ZT=
TE+_A=+—HItF
E - BRERETFAERR
BETHREEABNUDE
BREFEDIBRIE Z A
EEARE D EBERET
MR e

Retail Total
E &t

Revenue from external HFREIA
customers

Inter-segment revenve  AHERA

Reportable segment revenue  FIHEHTMA

Reportable segment loss) T/ D HHE
proft before taxaton (&8)/ &7

Interest income FEMA

Finance costs B

Deprecition and FEREH
amortisation

Recognition of loss EIRAREREN
allowance on trade TEFREE
and other receivables

Reportable segment  HEAHAR
assets

Reportable segment  AHERHEE
liabilities

ERRRERAT

167,978 164353 1791052 2299128 13328 1845 1972358 2,481,906
4,564 84,146 26,103 9279 - . 30,667 93425
172,54 28499 1817155 2308407 13328 18425 2003025 2575331
(1,159) (3470 12315 8829 2,019 (2329 13175 3030
36 528 1,063 M 5 3 1,404 81
45,180 48,448 1,998 57 1,584 1114 54,762 49,619
64,197 64,530 2601 1305 3,025 1873 69,823 67,708
- - 13,788 60 - - 13,788 60
901,017 979,497 597,365 793,129 66,797 61,888 1565239 1794514
789,208 806,894 154,225 268,199 68,832 05013 1012265 1,140,106
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. Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB ERERSIN)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3
(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues,
profit or loss, assets and liabilities

WAR D EB®RE (&)
(b) DEHE(E)
(i) TERED YA ~ B
BERBEZHEK

Revenue ON
Reportable segment revenue BEERE T ON 2,003,025 2,575,331
Elimination of inter-segment R EH 7 BRI

revenue (30,667) (93,425)
Consolidated revenue RAUA 1,972,358 2,481,906
Profit py |
Reportable segment profit BT vl 13,175 3,030
Unallocated other income less R B E A AR EL A

other expenses - 10,741 21,394
Unallocated head office and AN e YN N gt

corporate expenses (102,101) (59,412)
Net fair value gains/(losses) on BEARERAERE

financial assets at fair value JEmEE

through profit or loss A EWRE

(B518) %5 70,031 (3,354)

Consolidated loss before taxation 4E& BT ATE B (8,154) (38,342)
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Notes to the Financial Statements .
g s e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB EAERIN)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 WARDEBRE (&)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 2 EIE(E)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, (i) AHESBBA -~ B -
profit or loss, assets and liabilities (continued) EENEBBZYHEE)

ZEC—FFR

Assets

Reportable segment assets

Elimination of inter-segment
receivables

Other investments
Unallocated head office and
corporate assets

Consolidated total assets
Liabilities
Reportable segment liabilities

Elimination of inter-segment
payables

Unallocated head office and

corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

ERRRARQA

aE
AREDEHEE
REH 7 BB 2 e WK IA

Hipig &
RO BCAEED K&

AHEDREE
ik baRi i
FERTRRIA

AOBEES LR ARAE

meMa

kv

TH

1,565,239 1,794,514
(168,579) (205,512)
1,396,660 1,589,002
816,844 167,959
73,212 263,519
2,286,716 2,020,480
1,012,265 1,140,106
(168,579) (205,512)
843,686 934,594
90,665 99,657
934,351 1,034,251
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ER R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB ERERSIN)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 WARSBREE)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DWWE(E)
(iii) Geographic information (iii) HEEFR
The following table sets out information about the TRET|BBEHE A B ()
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from EENIINTEEE ZW
external customers and (ii) the Group’s property, ARNAEBZWE - B
plant and equipment, interests in leasehold land BER#EE - FIEEBRAZHE
and buildings held for own use, intangible assets, ETHMEEFER BV
non-current prepayments, interest in an associate, EENMERBTEMNKE
interest in a joint venture and goodwill (“specified R—HEBE AR oS -
non-current assets”). The geographical location of R—EEELEZERZR
customers is based on the location at which the EHE([IETIERBEE])
services were provided. The geographical location FiEEzER - B
of the specified non-current assets is based on the TE B [ DA TR A AR 75 2 th Bh
physical location of the asset. BIKE - lEEIFRBEE
eI EE 2 BB
TEHBE RKIE ©
Revenues from external
customers
HBEF B ZWA

154

The PRC (including Hong Kong)  FREI(E3EEE) 1,972,358 2,481,906

Specified non-current assets

EEHFRBEE

Hong Kong FNES 6,075 12,126
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) ~ FFEI(TEHEEE) 760,849 795,624
766,924 807,750
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4 OTHER INCOME

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R R MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB EAERIN)

Interest income FEUTA 1,512 5,857
Net foreign exchange gain B 5 W 2 5 8 1,267 15,371
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE  BMENREZ
equipment E518 (1 (54)
Government grants (note(i)) BT 8 Bh (BRE()) 13,809 552
Rental income from investment property KEREMEZHEWA 3,645 133
Others (note(ii)) HAb (BIREG)) 8,413 15,829
28,645 37,688

(i)

ZEC—FFR

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
successfully applied for funding support from a scheme
in relation with the promotion of high-quality economic
development in Guangdong from the provincial
government of Guangzhou. The purpose of the funding
is to support the foreign investment of foreign-invested
enterprise in Guangzhou.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
successfully applied for funding support from the
Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-epidemic
Fund, set up by The Government of The Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region. The purpose of the funding
is to provide financial support to enterprises to retain their
employees who would otherwise be made redundant.
Under the terms of the grant, the Group is required not
to make redundancies during the subsidy period and to
spend all the funding on paying wages to the employees.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the amount
included a net gain of $2,269,000 (2020: $11,825,000)
earned from the facilitation of the execution of two (2020:
three) filling stations lease agreements by the Group.

ERRFEERAT

(ii)

REBEE2-_T-_—F+-_fF=+—
BILFE - AEERIDREMNT
BRBTRBREEREESE
ERRITEANAEES S - %
HEMENEIHIINELETERE
MIEE -

REE_ZT-_TF+_A=1+—
AIEFE - AEERINAEER
BIFTER & BUT 5% 3L BB P =
S THRILEIFTERBEED -
ZESHMENRADERHIK
YR U BRASHHEENE
T - BEBEEBKR  AEETE
BEIRNTEERE - WEGHA R
HAREZNEEMNIE -

REE-_T-—F+=-A=1+—
ALEE  ZeBEEAER
AEERND(ZE_FE : =17))
MBI EERENRLMATE
#)2,269,000 C( Z T =T F :
11,825,0007T) Z /FUk 25 ©
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PR ER R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB ERERSIN)

5 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 5 KREAIEE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: BRESRTEE B TS IBEE
B

(a)

(b)

(o)

*

156

Finance costs
Interest on bank loans
Interest on lease liabilities

Staff costs*

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, wages and other benefits

Equity-settled share-based payment
expenses (note 28(b))

Other items
Amortisation of intangible assets
(note 13)
Depreciation
— owned property, plant and
equipment
— investment property
- right-of-use assets* (note 10(c))

Recognition of loss allowance of
trade and other receivables

Auditor’s remuneration
— audit services
— review services
Cost of inventories
(note 16(b))

(a) BAEEARA
RITEFFE

(b)

(9]

S|
(SN
8

(AN

HERER

BT AR*

) TE BEAE FUR K
sTEIEE Z H3k
E2 N - N
HibtaF
ARS8 2 B 1D
= (BftsE28(b))

HbEE
B E
(MF7E13)
e
-BEME -
= e w5
—REmE
—(EREEE
(FEE10(c))
HRE S K EA
FEU R IE 2 518
s
% B
— WA R
— 2= BIRTS
BFEMRAR
(MF5E16(b))

Staff costs include $1,756,000 relating to depreciation of right-
of-use assets (2020: $1,762,000), which amount is also included
in the respective total amount disclosed separately above.

53,139 48,423
1,795 1,472
54,934 49,895
5,991 3,043
56,416 57,549
56,575 596
118,982 61,188
171 169
60,543 60,922
1,303 -
14,210 13,212
13,723 60
1,848 1,578
450 450
1,759,483 2,309,313

BIRABEMSRNERREE
B 37T 1,756,000 (ZF —F 4 ¢
1,762,0007T) * %K INET AR Lt
ERIHENSB BT -

HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED ~ ANNUAL REPORT 2021



6

-=
-

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R R MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB EAERIN)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 6 moEXEDIHFER

STATEMENT

(a) Income tax in the consolidated income statement (a) FEBERPZABHIE:
represents:

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax ~ BUEARIE — & FI1EHR

(note i) (Bf=ED 37 -
Current tax — PRC Corporate Income  BNEF{IE — Bl

Tax (note i) PS8 (P =T 5,929 994

Over-provision in respect of prior years &1 & AR R (602) _

5,327 994

5,364 994

Notes: BitEE -

(i) The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended ) BEZ-_—F+-A=+—
31 December 2021 is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated HIEFENBBFESHER
assessable profits of the year, except for one subsidiary of RZEEO N ERTUR T &
the Group which is a qualifying corporation under the two- 16.5%5HH - EAREEL —H
tiered Profits Tax rate regime. MR E RmAFEHEE T

A BIERBIBRIN o
For this subsidiary, the first HK$2 million of assessable MAMBARMES > aift2d
profits are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable & JT ) JE IR B s B A 8.25%
profits are taxed at 16.5%. BB BT 8RR TR A A
16.5%7 7 -
No Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided for the year ended HE_Z-_ZTF+_A=+—
31 December 2020 as the Group sustained a loss for Hong HIEFE - EFEREHRM
Kong Profits Tax purposes for the year. T BHRTEBRFRNELR
B B st S aRIERE
R -

(i) The applicable PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of the PRC iy BEZ-_—F+-A=+—
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2021 was HIEFE - REMBLRZE
25% (2020: 25%). AHRBEREMEHRNER25%

(ZZ=FTF 1 25%) °

:_fﬁﬁﬁﬁ E«@\Iﬁg/ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁl 1 57



. Notes to the Financial Statements
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB ERERSIN)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 6 GEEBRRPZABHR(E)
STATEMENT (continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) RERABERFTEHERHES

SAERZHROT ¢

loss at applicable tax rates:

Loss before taxation FRELATEE (8,154) (38,342)
Notional tax on loss before taxation,  {ZiE AR EEHREELE

calculated at the rates applicable in BEERE R

the tax jurisdictions concerned BRIAIERAE 2

BRWIA 1,022 (4,721)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses RA[3E 1L H > Fi i o 22 11,319 5,454
Tax effect of non-taxable income IERWAZ BTG & (13,357) (5,231)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not AIERZ REATRIE

recognised EBiEZRETE 7,572 7,782
Utilisation of tax losses previously BRLATARERZ

not recognised MIBEE (930) -
Over-provision in prior years BAEFERERE (602)
Others Hith 340 (2,290)
Actual tax expense ERFIANS 5,364 994
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7  DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R R MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB EAERIN)

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2021

Executive directors
David An

Yang Dong

Liu Zhijun (note i)
Zhang Lei

Independent non-executive
directors

Li Wai Keung

Chan Chun Wai, Tony

Woo King Hang (note iii)

R FFH ERRRERAT

BIES

qiE

RS

A E (Fin)

BUFHITES
%
fRiRfE
RSB (M Eiil)

EEME

RIB(EB R RHEDIDE38MNIERE A
BI(BBEEENEER) BHIF 2883

BLEEWET ¢
—E-—F
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
Directors' and benefits scheme Share-based
fee in kind contributions payments
- 2RR RIRGHE NiR A
EEne Bk % EfzYH
(note i)
i)
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tr Tr Tr
- 9,267 60 56,575 65,902
- 2,220 60 - 2,280
- 988 50 - 1,038
- 1,845 60 - 1,905
120 - - - 120
120 - - - 120
120 - - - 120
360 14,320 230 56,575 71,485
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PR ER R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (JAFTTHIR »

7

160

SETRHERIN)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 7 EEMe(#E)
2020 —EEF
Salaries,
allowances ~ Retirement
Directors’  and benefits scheme  Share-based
fee in kind contributions payments
\ ﬁ%;%%& RIKGTE NRR A
ESHE Bl e EfzY
(note i)
iE2))
$'000 $'000 §' 000 $'000
Fr T T
Executive directors HITES
David An Bz - 18,778 60 - 18,838
Yang Dong HE - 2,065 60 - 2,125
Liu Zhijun (note i) 2155 (Fizhi) - 1,330 60 - 1,390
Zhang Lei K& - 2,164 60 596 2,820
Independent non- BYFHTES
executive directors
Li Wai Keung Fgg 120 - - - 120
Chan Chun Wai, Tony HiRE 120 - - - 120
Woo King Hang (note ii) #ASiE (Fiatii) 120 - - - 120
360 24,337 240 596 25,533
Note i: 5T -
These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the ZERREARABREM R TER Y
directors under the Company’s share option scheme. The value of BREREE - ZEBREEESRE
these share options is measured according to the Group’s accounting REERIFE1OAIERD MR H 2 &

policies for share-based payment transactions as set out in note 1(r)
(ii) and, in accordance with that policy, includes adjustments to reverse
amounts accrued in previous years where grants of equity instruments
are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal terms and
number of options granted, are disclosed under the paragraph “Share
option scheme” in the directors’ report and note 28(b).

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no amount was
paid or payable by the Company to the directors or any of the five
highest paid individuals set out in note 8 below as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the years.

Note ii:

Liu Zhijun resigned as an executive director of the Company on 23
October 2021.

Note iii:

Woo King Hang resigned as an independent non-executive director of
the Company on 22 December 2021.

Note iv:

Mr. Chung Chak Man, William was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 15 March 2022.

HRET A E - WIREZRER SRR
BEFERGZRATHE  HPESETAE
ZETERBEABOR -

o

ZEBYN G 2 15 (BEE R IGRREA
EhZBRESE ) CAEEERE 2B
RERT I | — B M P EE28(b) R B EE

BE_ZT_—FR_FT_FTF+_
=+ —HIFE AR WEEHEH‘JUEH
BTN MRS AR RS HMAL
PERA LIS - ARSI RS INEAREH
EMMARK RS IIESBME - £ -
fﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂﬁ?%bﬂ&i%ﬁ&%ﬁiﬁ%ﬁiﬁ&
AENE o

BT :

% BN T —FTAZT=AEELR
T%ﬂﬂ§$

B i -

HYER-—_E-—F+-A -+ -HEE

RRABBYIFNITES ©

PaEiv -

EENEHER T - —_F=-A+RHAKZ
EARA ABETIFRITES -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R R MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB EAERIN)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2020: four) are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 7 and one (2020: Nil) is a
former director who resigned during the year. The emolument
in respect of the remaining individual and the former director
after resignation is as follows:

BaHMAL
RAEBARGERFMALS  =F
(ZZZ2F  IB) AT AERAE
=HEMERMETRE > Ak—%
(ZZ2ZZF : @) AT RFRFED
AEESE - B TATRAEESET
BZBEOT

Salaries and other benefits M K H b s
Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

R Z #ER

The emolument of the remaining individuals with the highest
emoluments is within the following band:

Nil — $1,000,000
$3,000,001 - $4,000,000

Z%1,000,0007T

LOSSES PER SHARE

Basic and diluted losses per share

The calculation of basic and diluted losses per share is based
on the loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of $16,047,000 (2020: $40,095,000) and the
weighted average of 3,898,048,000 ordinary shares (2020:
3,742,116,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

—E-—FFR EDERERAT

A R R AT &

3,000,001%4,000,0007T

4,716 768
70 32
4,786 800
B T AT ST U TEE
I*_l .
2021 2020
—EC-—-F —E-FTF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
N
1 1
1 —_
BRER
BREXREEESE

ERERRESHERIBREFRNEAR
A) 2 i AR IR R R4l 85 1816,047,000
TL(ZZ =Z4F : 40,095,0007T) KB
17 E AR b T 19 243,898,048,000
G (=T -ZF : 3,742,116,000
AR @A) ETE - BEETEWT ¢
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PR ER R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB ERERSIN)

9  LOSSES PER SHARE (continued) 9 BREB(E)
Basic and diluted losses per share (continued) EREXARBESR(E)

Weighted average number of BB METIIH

ordinary shares
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—RA—HREETLRERKR 3,956,638 3,732,638
Effect of treasury shares held under RIERR (D BT BB 1Y

share award scheme EFRO B E (58,590) (58,590)
Effect of ordinary shares issued in Al ERETHEBRR

placement (note 29(b)(i)) 2 (MFE29(b)i)) - 59,768
Effect of share options exercised BT EREN e

(note 29(b)(iii)) (B EE29(b)ii)) - 8,300
Weighted average number of ordinary R+=A=+—HH

shares as at 31 December ZERMEFETE 3,898,048 3,742,116

Loss attributable to ordinary EERBRRELER
equity shareholders (16,047) (40,095)

Basic and diluted losses per share SREARBEES (0.41) centsfli  (1.07) centsll
The diluted losses per share is the same as the basic losses per HREBE_ZE-—FR-F=F
share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in F+ZA=+—HULEFEVEL
existence during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. M EESSER OBEEBR - W

ER#ER B EGRERERENR
ﬁ o
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount

Cost:
At 1 January 2021

Eichange adjustments

Addtions

Disposals

Trensferto
nvestment property

At 31 December 2021

Accumulated
depreciation and
amortisation:

At 1 January 2021

Exchange adjustments

Charge for the year

Wiitten back on
disposals

Trensfer to
nvestment property

At 31 December 2021

Net book valug:
At 31 December 2021

Wog5--%
+-f=1-A

BHAER
B

RoEI-E
-f-H
Eiad
ERRE
REEREE

BRERENR

Wog3--%
+-f=1-A

FERE:

Wo3--%
+-f=1-R

R FFH ERRRERAT

Buildings

filling
station
facilities

Other
properties
leased for

own Use
(note (d)

EfER
AR
(i&to)
§1000
fn

Dock and
storage
facilities

L
KRl
§1000
n

]iilc]

equipment

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R R MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB EAERIN)

10 9% BERSKE

(a)

Motor
vehicles

i
§1000
r

Leaschold ~ Construction

SREEH IR

improvements  in progress

RRIR
§1000
n

Sub-total

Interests in
leasehold
EEN
buildings

held for
own use
(notes (b)
and (c))
=L

ZEEH

it 53 i

(Hitb)
R(c)
§1000

r

USES BB MM9 L6 6% DB 180 - NMEM BBUT 1S
I % Mmoo B i ;B u SR 1 1 V)
®» 60 - M - AT S 1 -
. . . . - o) - - (om) - (om)

- (ee)  (B36) - - - - - e - )
B9 U6 UG T4 I 36 SO0 WM 15T
MEs 10 TS 655 49 8T 189 -G8 a8 T3
0 n BN n m 9 ST T I Y.
2 8 s i 8 % S TR 7 I 7
) ) ) . - - S ] S

- ) - - - - - - )
111 W BB BN 5B 8 26 - THME W0 806
NS5 8T 4B s 33 3 118 -6 W0 65N
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB ERERSIN)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 10 YE- - BERSBEE)
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued) (a) EREEYERGE)

Interests in

leasehold

land and

Other buldings

properties held for

Flling ~leasedfor ~ Dockand on use
saton  ownuse storage Office Motor ~ leahad  Construction

Buldngs ~ faclis  (ote(d)  faclites equipment  vehices impoiemens  in progress

Cost: Bk
At January 2020 e

-5~ M -3 M2 S04 089 182 B4 176 2105 1370891
Dangeadstments B 5% 28155 1B 6 %! 613 - 5 B B4 9056
Addiions b - SNBegT M6 13% S B MW 6416
Disposdls e - SN K7 B A I/ - - - B - B
Transfer E= - 7133 - - - - - ) - - -
M3 December 2020 R-EF-FE

FoETHR O OUSS 8T8 A0d9 1l 6% 1288 1% o648 AT 15T
Accumulated BHiEREY:
depreciation and
amortisation:
At 1 anuaty 2000 i i

-A-8 8078 S518 S 388 I6M 18 SEN BW 69
Bhangeadustments B % 692 % CER 2 s - S M BM
Chagefortheyesr  FREFE 1,959 % T e 668 53 - - Rl 56 T
Witenbackon diposss - FHERAR - o0 - - 1] - Ba
A3 December 200 -EF-EF

oR=H-E 0 nes e 758 B4 4% 8T 18R SOGB4 TR
Net hook value: EERE:
M3 December 2020 R-E-BE

SESHR 296 UM R 466 4 4% - S STREN MBI TS

(b) The Group was granted the rights to use the land by the (b) ZREEEH K THER T it
PRC authorities with lease terms of 25 to 50 years. EAMERN - HEHR/25E50
& o
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 10 Y% - BERZRHEE)
(c) Right-of-use assets (c) FREEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets FREEEZAEEES S S
by class of underlying asset is as follows: BEREDFES AT ¢

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-THF
t=A=+—-8 +ZA=1+—"H
Note $'000 $'000
BT T Tt
Interests in leasehold land and BIEERZHEE
buildings held for own use T REFREES (i) 208,380 208,769

Other properties leased for own T ER AT BR A

use, carried at depreciated cost HEmaRAHEEDZE (i) 4,143 32,831
Prepayments, carried at R E AR
depreciated cost BB (iif) 1,725 1,991
214,248 243,591
The analysis of expense items in relation to leases RS ERIE SRS &G
recognised in profit or loss is as follows: EE AT

Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets by class of underlying asset:

Interests in leasehold land and
buildings held for own use

Other properties leased for own use

Prepayments

Interest on lease liabilities (note 5(a))

R FFH ERRRERAT

FREEERIEREE
DEBSWITERY ¢
BEERZEEL MR
EFiER 6,420 5,436
EtEREEYE 7,471 7,479
JaftFIE 319 297
14,210 13,212
HESEN S (MF5E) 1,795 1,472
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(c) Right-of-use assets (continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no
additions to right-of-use assets (2020: $58,317,000).

166

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 21(d) and
30(b), respectively.

M

(i)

Interests in leasehold land and building held for
own use

The Group was granted with land use rights for a
period of 25 to 50 years on leasehold lands and held
an office building located in the PRC. The Group is
the registered user of these lands and the building,
including the whole or part if undivided share in
the underlying land. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire the land use rights from
the government authorities and the building from
the previous registered owners, and there are no
ongoing payments to be made under the terms of
the leases.

Other properties leased for own use

The Group has obtained the right to use other
properties as its offices, staff quarters and other
properties where its filling station is primarily located
for its retail business through tenancy agreements.
The leases typically run for an initial period of 2 to 20
years. Lease payments are usually increased every 2
to 3 years to reflect market rentals.

10 W% BERREE)
ERAEEEE)
HE—Z - —F+=-A=+—H
IHFE VEAEFEHEEE
(ZZT—=4 :58,317,0007T) °

(9]

HERSROBBELEERE

BIE B 247 RS 9 B B M R
21(d)%230(b) ©

0}

(i)

HEERZAE L RE
FREE
AEEBRURFPENHEE
THER SHI25E 505 M
T ML TE — R
ARE - AEERZFL
WwREFHEMTEA
BREARKRD 2D
TR DEDE - B
— S BATMFIE - LREK
FE BER LU AR
A R GE A A W BE A2
FoRBEEGRRMER
M FIRFES AT ©

Hihg AEEYE
AEBEDEBEERZER
BEABEIHENEZR
EHHMBHAE  BIES
FEMMEHEMERN
FRE ABEZTE%
% ME—RYFAEERE
20 - MENHBAES?2
Z34F 3 AR TISTH
éc:o
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB EAERIN)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

(c) Right-of-use assets (continued)

(iii) Prepayments

10 % BERREGE)
(0 EREEEE)
(i) AR

Prepayments represent prepayment of coastal usage
right located in the PRC. The Group is granted with
coastal usage rights for a period of 8 years. Lump
sum payments were made upfront to acquire the
coastal usage right from the government authorities
and there are no ongoing payments to be made
under the terms of the lease.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Cost:
At 1 January 2020

Transfer from property,
plant and equipment
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2021

Accumulated depreciation

and amortisation:
At 1 January 2020

Transfer from property,
plant and equipment

Charge for the year
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2021

Net book value:

At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020

—E-—FFR EDERERAT

R
A
—A—H
EEYE  BE
By

[E 5 AR

JrA ——

+=-—A=+—H

ZHFER
By
i
—H—H
HEYE - BE
B
FEFE
(RS

= —

+=-—A=+—8H

BRMEFE -

R-B=-—%f

+=A=+-8

R-Z-EHF

t=A=+-H

11

Buildings

B
$'000
Fr

BN FRIBELR P ENE
HERRNENKE - K
SEHERESHERE B
HIBHF » XX —BATH
HIE - LABTE RER
BEERE  REBEEEK
FEEEAFIRFE A

REME

Right-of-use
assets — land
use rights
EREEE -
TR
$000

T

26,067 23,605 49,672
403 365 768
26,470 23,970 50,440
978 2,065 3,043
1,303 - 1,303
35 32 67
2,316 2,097 4,413
24,154 21,873 46,027
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HAEEAERIN)

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)
Particulars of the Group’s investment property is as follows:

The Group's investment property consists of a filling station in
the PRC that was classified as property, plant and equipment
in 2020. The Group leased out the filling station to an
independent third party in 2021 and classified the filling station
as investment property accordingly.

The investment property was stated at cost and the aggregate
fair value of the Group’s investment property at 31 December
2021 was approximately $47 million (2020: $Nil), a Level 3 fair
value measurement, based on a valuation carried out by an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected with
the Group, using income approach taking into account the
expected net operating income of the properties in the future
and capitalised into the value at an appropriate capitalisation
rate. The Group appoints an external valuer to conduct
valuation on the Group’s property, and the selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence and
maintenance of professional standards. The Group has adopted
the cost model under HKAS 40 to account for its investment
property, and accordingly, the carrying amounts of the
investment property were not adjusted to the revalued amount
at the year end.

The investment property is leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 31.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil).

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the
key inputs to the valuation of investment property:

Valuation technique

fhER

Filling station Income approach

iliy::bis WA

11

BEWE(T)
A BRI EMERENT -

AEBENREME BT E— @I
o ER-Z-TEHRAME K
B - AEER —T = —Fi§0
ISR T —2BLE =T - WAHE
Rz IR D R EME -

REMELKARSEE - MAEEIRE
MERE-_—F+_A=1+—HHK
N EEMEE%A47,000,000T (==
ZEF B WHBEB=ZLKARE
Eit=E - WEREAREE I &BH N
BN A EREEEMPTETMHER
EY O BREARERRBRANEET &
FEEYET RROTERLCERAF
B WIEEENENMLEERER A
BE - AEESEETINBHERN AR
EEMMEERGHE  BEZERE
MG B2 BUYUURESEHE
BEEKE - REBORMABBSE
ERIFA0HAI K A ER G HIEE Y
AR Bt #EYWEREETER
FARABRABKEGHESHE ©

BREMEIREEEHERTE=
77 HE-SHBEFHBENMES -

MRAEE » F—RNE R EHRE
AREHEEE  TEEAXELE
R F )

AT RERBABERMEIREY XM
BENERHARBOME -

Significant unobservable inputs
ERTABERARE

Annual increment rate of net income and
discount rate

SFA B F IR R RITIR &
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12 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 12 BENRERHEAERRE

Prepayment for purchase of property, EEME  BEK
plant and equipment REBETEFKIE 1,014 2,662
Prepayment for right-of-use assets FRABEEETEMNFIE
(note 10(c)) (BEE10()) 1,725 1,991
Other receivables H b ek 12,906 11,417
15,645 16,070
13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13 EBFEEE

Club memberships
2%

Cost: RS

At 1 January »w—H—H 3,897 3,858

Exchange adjustments M 34, 38 B 7 39

At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 3,904 3,897

Accumulated amortisation: S

At 1 January n—HA—H 2,658 2,464

Exchange adjustments e 3, 58 2 13 25

Charge for the year FETE 171 169

At 31 December w+=zZA=t+—48a 2842 2,658

Net book value: BREFE :

At 31 December wnt+—A=+—H 1,062 1,239
The amortisation charge for the year is included in AFEEZHBERGAGEERR
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated income [fTEREAIF -
statement.

T —FFHR EBRRERAR 169
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB ERERSIN)

14

15

170

GOODWILL 14 e
$'000
Frx
At 1 January 2020 RZT_TF—H—H 4,729
Exchange adjustments FE 3 A% 304
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 R-E-ZF+-_A=+—HEK-_T-—F
_ﬂ H 5,033
Exchange adjustments b H % 148
At 31 December 2021 RZE-Z—F+-ZA=+—H 5,181
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units HESEZEREERBEERRELE
(“CGU") identified according to country of operating and BN RIReEAEM([BeE
operating segment as follows: AEBA AT

Trading = 5,181 5,033
The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on REEEBMN A IE SR8 ENE A
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow BETESYE - ZEAEFHABLS T
projection which are prepared on the basis of reasonable STER - THRRBE A R R RIS
assumptions reflective of prevailing and future market NEAIRBREE - iﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁﬁw%
conditions. The cash flow is discounted using a discount rate FPTIREFB(ZZEZZF 1 10%) ©
of 10% (2020: 10%). The discount rate used is post-tax and IR AR AR RM TEARA
reflects specific risk relating to the relevant CGU. REEL BB EERE
OTHER INVESTMENTS 15 HfkE

Unlisted equity securities at AR ERT AEA
FVOCI (non-recycling) 2HEWEIELT
REANZEA (A mleEE) () 672,455 118,557
Financial assets measured at FVPL BARETABRZZ
TREE (ii) 144,389 49,402

816,844 167,959

Details on the fair value measurements of other investments ﬁ% HEMRENRAREFEFBHNHE
are set out in note 30(f). 30(f) -
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15 OTHER INVESTMENTS (continued) 15 HigEE)

(i) The unlisted equity securities are shares in Bravo Transport (i)
Holdings Limited (“BTHL"), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands and engaged in investment holding.

The Group designated its investment in BTHL at FVOCI
(non-recycling), as the investment is held for strategic
purposes. No dividends were received on this investment
during the year (2020: Nil).

(i) The financial assets represent interest in a limited (ii)
partnership. Dividends of $167,000 were received on this
investment during the year (2020: Nil).

16 INVENTORIES 16 F&
(a) Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet (a)
comprise:

ZEIELELMRAFSH BBravo
Transport Holdings Limited
([BTHLD) B9tn - B— MR RE
BRESTMR IO AR RKE
RAE -

NEE G HABTHLIIZ A E AR
NAEFAEMEE W (RA]
o) AAFEZERETIER
BRSE A - FRFZIE W EU
BB (ZZE_ZF + &) -

ZELCMEEABRAELNR
B - EFAMRREWERE
167,000 C(— 2T 4F : ) -

GREERBERAZEFERE

Oil and petroleum products Aol KA HE 140,298 171,269
Consumable parts JEFEMD 4,038 3,419
144,336 174,688
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised (b) BRAMIRFABZZFES
as an expense and included in profit or loss is as HAWWT :
follows:

Carrying amount of inventories sold B &F&SEREE 5(c)

1,759,483 2,309,313

—E-—FFR EDERERAT

171



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ER R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB ERERSIN)

17 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A CONTROLLED
STRUCTURED ENTITY
(a) Investments in subsidiaries
The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary
shares unless otherwise indicated.

17 REMBLAAR—BEZEFEEMLE
e
(a) REMEAA
UTIERBEHAREMNE
B BERRBEEEAFENN
BARIZHE - BRIERBHA -
BRIFTH 2 B BRI ST EA -

Attributable equity
Place of Particulars interest
Place of incorporation/ of issued and ElbhE
Name of subsidiary operation establishment paid up capital  Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
it/ BRAR
WEATEH By Rz E BRERAGHE E& IERR
Guangdong Petro-Chemicals Company Limited  HongKong ~ Hong Kong 20,000,000 shares - 100%  Investment holding
BERAIIERAT B B of $1 each RERRK
20,000,0008%
BRAEIT
Oriental Point International Limited HongKong ~ Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares - 100% Tradeof oil and
RREBERAT Bk Bk of $1 each petrochemical products
1,000,000% EEHmRALER
SREET
Timeslink Development Limited HongKong ~ Hong Kong 10,000 shares ~ 100% - Provision of administrative
BRERARLD B B of $1 each senvices
10,000% RETRER
SREEIT
Union Petro Chemicals (BVI) Company Limited  Hong Kong ~~ Briish Virgin lslands 100shares  100% - Investment holding
ERERRBLIARAT B ABRAEE of US$1 each REHR
1008
BREEIZT
Guangzhou Zhongshui Petrochemical The PRC The PRC RMB580,000,000 - 92%  Investment holding
Development Limited kel el AR 580,000,000 REER

EHmHERA TREARAA
(RENEERIFER
PR TERERA) (PEA(L)
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17 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A CONTROLLED
STRUCTURED ENTITY (continued)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

17 REMBARR -—BZESEELE
BE)
(a) BREMBWAT(E)

ZEC—FFR

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Place of
operation

aeny

Particulars
incorporation/ of issued and
establishment paid up capital
i/ EBR
Rz BHRRAHE

Place of

Attributable equity
interest

EiihE
Directly  Indirectly

BR 53

Principal activities

Dongguan Dongzhou International The PRC The PRC RIMB555,000,000 - 92%  Provision of terminal, storage
Petrochemical Storage Limited G EF AR 555,000,000 and transshipment services
("DZ International”) REESE - FERESRE

FEMRMERRARERAR
[(EHER])

Guangzhou Hans Energy Investment Ltd. The PRC The PRC RIMB580,000,000 - 92%  Investment holding
("GZ Hans") H H ARE580,000,0007T REAR

BNERERRERRAR
(TEMZR))

Shanghai Diyou Industry Co., Ltd ("SHDY*) ~ The PRC The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 91%  Trade of oil and

HEERELARAR( HEER)) HE HE (paid up capital petrochemical products

of RMB4,702,000) ERHmRALER
(Note 2)
AFRH50,000,0007
(BERBA
ARB4,702,0007)
(Rzt2)

Guangzhou Hans Industry & Transportation  The PRC The PRC RIMB5,000,000 - 60%  Operation of a filling station
Energy Co,, Ltd. Gl HE (paid up capital B

ENmERTRERERAA(ERIR)) of RMB410,000)

(Note 2)
AR5,0000007
G e
ARE410,0007)
ik}

ERRRARQA
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17

174

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A CONTROLLED
STRUCTURED ENTITY (continued)

(a)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Place of Particulars

Place of incorporation/ of issued and

Name of subsidiary operation establishment paid up capital

it/ BETR

[if: kL EEhY RS BRRRAGHE

Guangzhou Zengcheng Industry & The PRC The PRC RIMB1,200,000

Transportation Filing Station Co,, Ltd. ] e AR1,200,0007
BMEHB T MAERAT

([RIR])

Creative Apex International Holding Limited ~ Hong Kong ~ British Virgin Islands 1 share

EISERARERAE B AERNEHS of US$1 each

IRERAE T

Glorify Group Ltd HongKong ~ British Virgin Islands 1 share

B ABRAHE of US$1 each

IRERAEIZT

Note 1:  GZ Hans is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company
and F &A1k, DZ International, J£B T3, I T
and SHDY are limited liability companies. The official
names of A &A1k, DZ International, F£EB T and 1
¥ T3z are in Chinese and the English translations are
for reference only.

Note 2:  The amount represented the registered share capital
which is not fully paid up yet.

The following table lists out the information relating to
GZ Hans and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021
and, which are the subsidiaries of the Group which
have material non-controlling interests (“NCI”) as at 31
December 2021 and 2020. The summarised financial
information presented below represents the amounts
before any inter-company elimination.

17 REMBLARAKR —BZEFEEME
e
(a) REMBRT(E)

Attributable equity

interest

EfERE

Directly Indirectly  Principal activities

2t

100%

100%

BRET -

BRE2 -

BE IEXE

60%  Operation of a filing station
ek

- Investment holding

e

- Investment holding

RELR

BMNEBRFIGER
Al A RME
IZ%% N %/ELE\IQ ’ i?ﬁlfﬁ
kLgsarsRBERAE
NE e RAEAML - FMNE
IZ%% N %/@\Ii&iyﬁlﬁ
ZERBBRHPX - EX
WEEHSE -

2 ERIE AR R B
P o

TRESEAEMNED REKE
RERNZFZ—F+=-/A=1—
HEER  ZERRN-_T—
FR-ZB-ZEF+-A=+—H
RASEERE NIFERER
(T3EERRtER DRMB AR - T
N 2N BER 2EARHE
(EPNSIIGEIEEck
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17 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND A CONTROLLED
STRUCTURED ENTITY (continued)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

17 REMBARR -—BZEFEELE
BE)
(a) REMBRF(E)

2021 2020

—E-—F 3

$'000 $'000

T T+

GZ Hans and GZ Hans and

its subsidiaries its subsidiaries

EMNERR BINER R

HHE AR HHBAR]

NCI percentage IR ER B O 8% 8%
Non-current assets IEREEE 762,570 797,214
Current assets BB E 454,672 485,011
Current liabilities mENAE (326,571) (354,251)
Non-current liabilities IERBEE (629,565) (697,156)
Net assets BEFEE 261,106 230,818
Carrying amount of NCI PR RE(E 20,888 18,465
Revenue WA 1,966,579 2,481,275
Profit for the year F R T 23,153 18,022
Total comprehensive income FHKEREE 22,795 16,977
Profit allocated to NCI DiEE IR TR B9 1,852 1,442
Cash flows from operating activities ‘S EBELIR SRS 209,839 119,291
Cash flows from investing activities ~ & EBELHRSRE (6,573) (12,922)
Cash flows from financing activities MEEHELEESRE (253,569) (173,912)

(b) RE—BZEHEBUEER

(b) Investment in a controlled structured entity

The Company directly controlled a trust (the “Share Award
Scheme Trust”) that was set up in relation to the Group's
share award scheme adopted on 15 April 2019 (the “Share
Award Scheme”). Principal activities of the Share Award
Scheme Trust include purchasing, administering and
holding the Company’s shares under the Share Award
Scheme for the benefit of eligible employees (see Note
28(a)). The Company has the power to direct the relevant
activities of the Share Award Scheme Trust and it has the
ability to use its power over the trust to affect its exposure
to returns. Therefore, the Share Award Scheme Trust is
considered as a controlled structured entity of the Group.

—E-—FFR EDERERAT

RNAREEEHEAEER -
—NFWEA+HBRMNNEGD
HENAHEI([ R0 S8BT &8 )) B8
i &% 7L ([R5 L2 R T &l
1) o B EE B SN ES
SEBBERIERG SR EAS
BREIZFZBE  EELE
EARRFRGD (RHE28@)) ° &
AR A R, BRI 8IS
RSB BesmERE Y
ERNENFEHBIR - Bt -
Bfin SR E S AR B A S E
M ST SR TS -
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18 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18 MEE QAT ZER

Proportion of ownership interest

REERELY
Form of Place of Particulars of Group's Directly Directly
business incorporation issued and effective  heldbythe  heldbya Principal
Name of associate Structure and business paid up capital interest ~ Company subsidiary activities
ALK BRITR rEEZ HALE  HNEAR
BeNFER FERERA  FHRE BRREFHE BRER  EERE  EERA TEEH
Dongguan Fengneng ~ Incorporated  The PRC RMB100,000,000 RMB1,000,000 - 20%  Provision of LNG
NG Co,, Ltd. iRz HE (paid up capital of  AR1,000,0007 storage and
RELHERIAAR RMBS,000,000) operating NG
ERAR (Note 2) related business
AR 100,000,000 RERIAAR
(BEIRER R REERI
AR5,000,0007L) ARERBER
(FtzF2)
Note 1: The official name of the associate is in Chinese and the English MisE1 - ZBE AN E S BE AP
translation is for reference only. HENEEEHSE -
Note 2: The amount represented the registered share capital which is MisE2 : ZERmIg MR - HEREE -

not fully paid up yet.

The above associate is accounted for using the equity method B A RE R RERERE T
in the consolidated financial statements. TN -
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INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Summarised financial information of the associate, adjusted for B

18 REERT @R (E)
BEQRNMBEMMER TRI

-:bb

any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to the B ERgEERNERERELSA

carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements, are

disclosed below:

B WEESVBmRETOREEEY
AE -

Gross amount of the associate
Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity

Revenue
Profit
Total comprehensive income

Reconciled to the Company’s interests in
the associate

Gross amounts of net assets of the associate

Company’s effective interest

Company’s share of net assets of the associate

Carrying amount in the financial statements

——FFR ERRERAERAT

L INGEE
MBEE
FRBEE
irEA=Y
FEREAE
o

YA
il
2EN AR

BEAQARBE N TNEEHER

BERREEFERR
ARRH B R
ARREIGHE AR EEME

TABA TS R WO BRI (B

5,790
325

6,115

6,115
20%
1,223

1,223
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19 INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 19 REELEIER

Proportion of ownership interest

BRRRRILA

Form of Place of Particulars of Group's Directly Directly
Name of business incorporation issued and effective  heldbythe  heldbya Principal
joint venture Structure and business paid up capital interest ~ Company subsidiary activities

HMRLR BETR rEEL HALE  HNEAR
ERRRMS  EEE BRERAGHE ERER KA EiRE TEER
Dongguan Fengneng ~ Incorporated ~ The PRC RMB100,000,000 RMB1,750,000 - 35%  Provision of LNG
ING Terminal Co., &t HE (paid up capital of  AR#1,750,0007 terminal and
Ltd. RMB5,000,000) operating LNG
RRLHRILAAR (Note 2) related business
EEBRAA AR 100,000,007 RRIERAR
(BBREAR BEREERL
AEH5,000,0007) RARRBER

(Fn2)

Note 1: The official name of the joint venture is in Chinese and the W ZEELENERRBAF X
English translation is for reference only. HENHEZEHRSE -

Note 2: The amount represented the registered share capital which is MI5E2 RS BIEEMARA - EERER -
not fully paid up yet.

Note 3: Relevant activities of this entity require the unanimous consent MFE3 : REEM R EBHEEREHN—
of the shareholders and, thus, the Group has joint control BAE  MASEERE=HRE
over this entity with a third-party shareholder. Accordingly, it HZEREHAREHEN -
has been accounted for as a joint venture. It - EEWIEA—HAEELEA

The above joint venture is accounted for using the equity FEECEFRAEREREGEVE
method in the consolidated financial statements. WMRARR ©
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B RS R R MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB EAERIN)

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

19 REELXZER(E)

Summarised financial information of the joint venture, adjusted BECEMNTBERNMENR TR
for any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to the B CHEBENEAERELR
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements, are B WHRAMEREPAREES
disclosed below: Ak

Gross amount of the joint venture
Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Equity

Revenue
Profit
Total comprehensive income

Reconciled to the Company’s interests in
the joint venture
Gross amounts of net assets of the joint venture
Company’s effective interest
Company’s share of net assets of the joint venture

Carrying amount in the financial statements

——FER EDRHRARAT

SehEARE

MENVEE 5,735
JEMENEE 380
BB E -
ERBAR -
e 6,115

WA :
A -
2EWERTE :

HAQARNREEDENERHE
AEEEEFAEBRE 6,115

RNE R EE R 35%
RAREEE BN EEEFE 2,140

TABA TS R WO BRI (B 2,140
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20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

180

20 BESRHEMEWTIE

Trade debtors, net of loss allowance (note i) FEERBEENE 5
JE MK B R (PR 2 358,157 80,116
Prepayments and other receivables (note i)  F&{7RI8 K E Ath & W A
(BT =i 82,294 436,748
440,451 516,864

(a)

The trade debtors, net of loss allowance are financial assets
measured at amortised cost.

The amounts of the prepayments and other receivables
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense after
more than one year are $1,389,000 (2020: $1,667,000).
Apart from these, all the other trade and other receivables
are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense
within one year.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, certain other
receivables amounting to $8,787,000 due from a debtor
that was in financial difficulty. The directors are of the
opinion that expected credit loss allowance amounting to
$8,787,000 as at 31 December 2021 was necessary to be
recognised.

Ageing analysis

As at balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of
trade debtors (which are included in trade and other
receivables), based on the invoice date or date of revenue
recognition and net of allowance, is as follows:

(i)

(i)

(a)

R ERRENE SRR S
REHENATTENEREE -

TEEHR —FRrK B EREE
FA 2 FE A 3R 0E I B A JE U GRIE
41,389,000 L (ZE-Z 4 :
1,667,0007T) ° Britb 2 o - Bk
FTEE 5 Mk E M MG IETE AR
R—FRKEIREREER -
HEZZZ—F+=ZA=+—H
IEFE Bl —2BVBEE
REFANE T EMERZIER
8,787,000 - EERA * N =
T+ - A=+—HBMEH
ZEE 5518 /48,787,0007T + A%
TNFNIER ©

ARk 2 AT

REEB  REERA IS
EREMREHGRB R E SR
WRR (G AE 5 R B b UK
) ZREDTIT

Within 1 month —fEAR 9,290 80,116
Over 1 month but within 2 months —EA A EEMEA A - -
Over 2 months but within 3 months MEAL EE=EARA 9,785 -
Over 3 months but within 6 months =EAEEXEARA 186,008 -
Over 6 months FMEA A £ 153,074 -

358,157 80,116
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B RS R R MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB EAERIN)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 20 EZRHEMEWRREE)

(a) Ageing analysis (continued) (a) BRERDMT(E)
The Group allows an average credit period of 30-180 AREEBHLTFTESEFPFHI0E
days to its trade customers. Further details on the Group’s 180K ZHREEES - BAANEE
credit policy and credit risk arising from trade debtors are ERRLEZRWEREEZE
set out in note 30(a). BER 2 E— P BEHRM

30(a) °

(b) Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of (b) FRNEHREWGRIEIEEEER

trade receivables during the year is as follows: BEREEMT ¢

Balance at 1 January B—A—BMEs 64 -
Recognition of loss allowance FARREEEE
during the year 4,936 60
Exchange difference ME R - 4
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—HH
Fe S 5,000 64
The significant increase in the gross carrying amounts of B 5 e W SR T8 BR T 4B (B A TR 18 N
trade receivables contributed to the increase in the loss B E IR B AEIE N o 5 R MR
allowance. See note 30(a) for more details. 30(a) ©
21 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER CASH FLOW 21 RERBTESREMREREER
INFORMATION
(a) Cash and bank balances comprise: (a) BEERB|ITHERBIE

Cash and bank balances e MIRITHEER 118,160 353,219
Less: Restricted cash (note 1) R XBREIRE
(F5E1) (55,039) (67,347)
63,121 285,872
Note 1:  The restricted cash were held for the purpose of bank MizE1 : ZRHIFESMIBITEERE
guarantee and bank borrowing agreements. SRITIERIRETA -
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21 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER CASH FLOW 21 RERBTEBRAEMRESREER
INFORMATION (continued) (%)
(b) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash (b) BBIBIEEELEEKHME
generated from/(used in) operations: (FTA)R & 2 %8R :

Loss before taxation AR RIE1E (8,154) (38,342)
Adjustments for: BLAT B IBED
P
Interest income FBUA 4 (1,512) (5,857)
Finance costs B ISP AN 5(a) 54,934 49,895
Depreciation E 5(c) 76,056 74,134
Amortisation of intangible assets | B ERE 5(c) 171 169
Equity-settled share-based NHERERZ 5(b)
payment expenses B 56,575 596
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE  BEM 4
plant and equipment H 2 1R 1 54
Recognition of loss allowance of WRE S LEAMEY  5()
trade and other receivables FRIA 2 B R 13,723 60
Net fair value (gains)/losses on BB AERE
financial assets at fair value ZERMEE
through profit or loss AnERE)
EEEEE (70,031) 3,354
Exchange differences b =58 (1,492) (15,759)
Changes in working capital: LiEEe B
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERLDGEm) 34,940 (15,055)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and BHNEMEW
other receivables SIEF L35 h0) 66,260 (344,971)
Decrease in trade and other H 5 Rk E AR
payables and contract liabilities HEREHAE
DA (72,056) (8,266)
Decrease in amounts due to FE 1S RS 75 5RIE
related parties A (1,346) (29,347)
Cash generated from/(used in) B EETEATE
operations (FTA)B\ & 148,069 (329,335)
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The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash
flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

At 1 January 2021

Changes from financing cash flows:
Proceeds from new bank loans
Repayment of bank loans

Interest element of lease rentals paid
Capital element of lease rentals paid
Interest paid

Total changes from financing cash flows
Exchange adjustments

Other changes:

Payment to a related party classified as

operating cashflow
Interest expenses (Note 5(a))

Total other changes

At 31 December 2021

ERRRARQA

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS R R MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB EAERIN)

e =l =

BERSRENED
MRTERFEHE
ERBTER
BRERENFIESS
BNRERENESTS
BERFIE

HERSREZYAG
5%
Rt25
PEREERTRE
A—BERH
ME R (H5ES(a)

At2DA3H

W%
+-A=1+-8

Z

CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER CASH FLOW 21 RERBITHEBREAMBESREER

INFORMATION (continued) (%)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing () AMEIBHELEZEE/HE
activities

TR AEEARMERSESE
ZEEEHIHE  BERER
FReFE  METHELEZE
BEHRATREMEIRKIR
EREBHRAEEBGEEERE
XOBERREZYMEELEZRS

mEZAME -
Amounts due
to related Lease
parties Bank loans liabilities
et

RE RITER HESE
$'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Fr Tr
(Note 26) (Note 23) (Note 24)
(KtE26) (HE23) (Hiz24)

82,230 789,778 33,798 905,806

- 120,445 - 120,445

- (165,010) - (165,010)

- - (1,795) (1,795)

- - (6,499) (6,499)

- (53,154) - (53,154)

- (97,719) (8,294) (106,013)

1,918 22,977 695 25,590

(1,346) - - (1,346)

- 53,139 1,795 54,934

(1,346) 53,139 1,795 53,588

82,802 768,175 27,994 878,971
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21 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER CASH FLOW 21 RERBITEBREMBEESREER
INFORMATION (continued) (%)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing () MEETHEEZEEBHIRE)

activities (continued)

Amounts due
to related Lease
parties Bank loans liabilities
JER BT
B RITER HEAR
$'000 $'000 $'000
v i i
(Note 26) (Note 23) (Note 24)
(Bif326) (MizE23) (BisE24)
t 1 January 2020 WZE-Z45-F—H 280,406 702,499 8,132 991,037
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSRENET .
Proceeds from new bank loans MBTETFEHE - 89,846 - 89,846
Repayment of bank loans Eiﬁﬁﬁﬁm - (50,539) - (50,539)
Repayment to a related party EE—4ER TR (168,462) - - (168,462)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BEREERSHFESS - - (1472) (1,472)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BEREERSNERH S - - (6,219) (6,219)
Interest paid BRFHE - (48.411) - (48,411)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ BIAE SRS HA (168,462) (9,104) (7,691) (185,257)
Exchange adjustments BB (367) 47,960 1,366 48,959
Other changes: Hit2%:
Payment to a related party classified as PEBEERENE
operating cashflow BRI E S (29,347) - - (29,347)
Increase in lease liabilities from entering into  ERZI T HTREE 7
new leases during the year HEaEEN - - 30,519 30,519
Interest expenses (Note 5(a)) i8R (H3E5() - 48423 1472 49,895
Total other changes EfpEHAa:t (29,347) 48423 31,991 51,067
At 31 December 2020 RZB-ZF
+ZA=1t-H 82,230 789,778 33,798 905,806
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB EAERIN)

21 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER CASH FLOW 21 RERBTEMRAMREREER
INFORMATION (continued) (%)
(d) Total cash outflow for leases (d) HERESRHERE
Amounts included in the consolidated cash flow statement FIAGABR e RERMNEERRE
for leases comprise the following: SRBIETHSE

Within financing cash flows ERmEREREA 8,294 7,691
These amounts relate to the following: ZERTEHRTYER :

Lease rentals paid ENHEERES 8,294 7,691
22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT 22 BENHMEAREREGHNER
LIABILITIES

Trade creditors B SRR 12,999 73,382
Contract liabilities SHBE 12,246 27,606
Other creditors and accruals HEA B R MEHRER 28,496 26,873
53,741 127,861
At 31 December 2021 and 2020, all the trade and other NZEZ—FR T _FTF+_8
payables are expected to be settled or recognised as income =—t+t—H FBEESNEMENKIE
within one year. TEEIR —F B EIERBIWA -
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22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)
As at balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of trade creditors
(which are included in trade and other payables), based on the
invoice date, is as follows:

22 BEZREMENREARENEEE)

REER - WEZEHIIRENE
KT AEB S R EAM B FIE) R
DT -

Within 1 month
Over 1 month but within 3 months
Over 3 months

—REAR 3,258 73,382
—EANEE=EAR - -
9,741 _
12,999 73,382

—{EAMNUE

Contract liabilities

The Group receives part of the contract value as a deposit from
customers when they sign the oil and petroleum product trade
agreement. This deposit is recognised as a contract liability until
the customer takes possession of and accepts the products. The
rest of the consideration is typically paid according to the credit
terms granted to the customer. The amount of the deposit was
negotiated on a case by case basis with customers.

Movement in contract liabilities

BRaE
EEREABMROBERE HiHE
B AKEREFIREHIANER
ERES - REFPEREREKEM
Bl - ZERSHERR/ENAE - T
REBERERTEPNERRNX
- e BREREREEPLER
BE -

BRAEBEEH

At 1 January w—H—H 27,606 31,333
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of ~ FRIERF T A

recognising revenue during the year that AHEBHKRAER

was included in the contract liabilities at ERaERDY

the beginning of the year (27,606) (31,333)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of R FESIZEEE

receiving deposits from customers BB BN 12,246 27,606
At 31 December W+—-—A=+—H 12,246 27,606
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB EAERIN)

23 BANK LOANS
The analysis of the carrying amount of bank loans is as
follows:

23
(a)

R1T
(a) R1T

Esh
FEREER AT

Current liabilities REEE
Bank loans IRITER
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank loans RITER

(b) At 31 December 2021, the bank loans were repayable as
follows:

206,066 162,218
562,109 627,560
768,175 789,778

RZFBZ—F+ZA=+—H8"

(b)

RITEFAER T HEIEE

Bank loans (secured) MITER(HER)
Within 1 year or on demand R—EFE AN EE K
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREAMER
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZRBRAFA
After 5 years &

(c) At 31 December 2021, the Group had banking facilities
totalling $768,175,000 (2020: $789,778,000) which
were secured by certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment with net book value of $332,032,000
(2020: $365,765,000) and interests in leasehold land
and buildings held for own use with net book value
of $180,384,000 (2020: $180,176,000). The banking
facilities of the Group amounted to $928,325,000
(2020: $813,542,000) of which $768,175,000 (2020:
$789,778,000) were utilised.

——FFR EEERARAE

(9]

206,066 162,218
102,448 81,960
418,532 350,320

41,129 195,280
562,109 627,560
768,175 789,778

RZE—_—F+—-_A=+—8"
AREBZHRTHEREEA KL
768,175,000 (Z E - E 4 :
789,778,000t ) * JILAKREH

B8R % (& 4 332,032,000L (=
T T4 1 365,765,000 ) Z
¥ - BEREEBEREDFER
180,384,000 7T ( =T — T 4 :
180,176,0007T) Z#H B 1EE R Z
THE T RAEF R o
SEH 2 R{TRE £928,325,000
TT(ZZE=—Z4F : 813,542,000
JT) » HH768,175,0007C( ==
— =4 789,778,0007T ) B B
}EH °

187



Notes to the Financial Statements

PR ER R MY EE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB ERERSIN)

24 LEASE LIABILITIES 24 HESE
At 31 December 2021, the lease liabilities were repayable as R-E-—F+-A=+—H #HE
follows: BECEEBRNAT

Within 1 year —F R 4,430 6,487

After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERFA 303 4,419

After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBERFA 1,342 1,041

After 5 years hF% 21,919 21,851
23,564 27,311

27,994 33,798

25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 25 HREBESEBERPZAES
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated balance sheet (a) HEBEEBRZABHEE :
represents:

PRC Corporate Income Tax PRI FTISH 1,602 584
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEENEH 37 -
1,639 584
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB EAERIN)

25 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 25 SGEEEEBRPZFERE)
(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised:

(b) RERZELEHAEE

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(s), the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of the cumulative tax losses of approximately
$562 million (2020: $595 million) as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and
entity.

The tax losses of approximately $50 million (2020:
approximately $122 million) for the Group's PRC
subsidiaries will expire in 5 years after the relevant tax
losses were incurred as follows:

BRI E1(s) BTk 2 S RTBUE
MR EBERERRTAAIERE
RATLTS Bl AR A R SR B A1) A
WEBEEE  ~EERAHRR
HAREEEgse2ET(ZE
TF : 5958 L) RIELER IR

AEBE P EKE A BNBEE
BASTETL(ZZZ_ZF : §
1.22870) IS E A AR B R %
HERSFRERNT

Within 1 year —&R

After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA
After 2 years but within 3 years MEREB=FR
After 3 years but within 4 years —FRERENFRA
After 4 years but within 5 years MEZERFR

Tax losses of approximately $512 million (2020: $473
million) for the Group'’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong do not
expire under the current tax legislation.

—E-—FFR EDERERAT

36,000 71,000
8,000 36,000
- 9,000
5,000 -
1,000 6,000
50,000 122,000

RBERITRBIED - AREER
AR E A R &R #95.12
BL(ZZE-FF - 47380
ERE
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25

26

27

190

HAEEAERIN)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(continued)

(c) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:
In PRC, dividends paid by a foreign-invested enterprise
to its foreign investors are subject to withholding tax at
a rate of 10% unless reduced by treaty (5% for foreign
investors who are registered in Hong Kong provided
they meet certain criteria). Under the grandfathering
treatments, undistributed profits of a foreign-invested
enterprise as at 31 December 2007 are exempted from
withholding tax.

At 31 December 2021, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted
to $16,117,000 (2020: $10,364,000). Deferred tax
liabilities of $806,000 (2020: $518,000) have not been
recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable on
the distribution of these retained profits as the Company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has
been determined that it is probable that the profits will
not be distributed in the foreseeable

future.

AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES
The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable within one year.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of the salaries, bonuses and certain allowances of
its staff to the retirement scheme. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make
the required contribution under the scheme. The Group has no
other material obligation for the payment of pension benefits
associated with this scheme beyond the annual contributions
described above.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“the MPF scheme") under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of $30,000. Contributions to
the plan vest immediately.

25

26

27

HAAEARRT ZEB(E)

() RERZIELEHREME:
R - BRI PR DB
Sh o SNERRINEBIMNEEE
Z IR B RN 10% FE T (6 5
REBEMBTEE TRENIN
BigE®E - AIR5%) - EREH
BORRBIT - SNELER-FTF
tHE+ A=t —BZRDER
FER R BATAIR -

R—E-_—F+=-_A=+—H"
B DIRM B AR S F BRI
BMZE%516,117,000T (=&
ZE4F 1 10,364,0007T) Wk
A DR Z SR = A A IE R
TAE S M R B R SRR R 1E
£ 15806,000/L(ZE =T F -
518,0007T) * AR EIEHF%
EMBARMNBRERRREET
A RAFE TS DIREF)

P& BAER T =R
FERARE D SRR A B - RERA
R—FAEE -

BERAKEF
AEBEGETEZHBARZEE AT
BT iR e 2 BIR B IR KR AGT
BZRE - AREAREBT 2%
B TEARE TR A EE DR
ZIRIRE BIER o BLEZRIRIR AT B
ME » AREZHE—BERREZE
SEH AR 2K - R LIt B FHR
S - REBR & 8RR AR T
EEE M EARNREE -

REENARESREGIERZE
8 ' REFERHF LB K
ZEmHEREeFE([ARESE
gl1) - BIBESFTE I —HAB X
ABE 2 RERFGERETE - RIKR
HEaitEl  BEREEESEEREER
BEWAZ5% G EEDER - i
LA B AR A 30,0007 &R © M5t
EEH 2 A RETES -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAEEHERIN)

28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(a) Share Award Scheme

The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme on
15 April 2019 (the “Adoption Date”) for the purpose of
retaining participants and encouraging them to make
contributions to the growth and development of the
Group.

Pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme (the
“Scheme Rules”), the Board of Directors (the “Board”)
may grant an award to anyone (other than any excluded
participant) who is an employee, director, or consultant of
any member of the Group for participation in the Share
Award Scheme and determine the terms of the award.
The Share Award Scheme is subject to the administration
of the Board in accordance with the Scheme Rules. The
Board may engage one or more trustees to administer the
Share Award Scheme as the Board thinks fit. The Share
Award Scheme will terminate on the tenth anniversary of
the Adoption Date or such earlier date as the Board may
determine. The Board shall not grant any further awards if
such award would cause the aggregate number of shares
underlying such award and all other outstanding awards
(taken together with all unvested awarded shares granted
under the Scheme Rules) to exceed 5% of the number of
issued shares at the date of grant. The Board may, from
time to time remit funds to the trustee for the purposes of
the Share Award Scheme, and such money will form part
of the trust fund. The Board may instruct the trustee to
purchase the number of shares underlying the award from
the open market (either on-market or off-market) and the
trustee shall hold such shares on trust for the participants
until they are vested in accordance with the Scheme Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
remitted in total of $20,000,000 to the trustee for the
purchase of shares of the Company pursuant to the Share
Award Scheme. On 15 April 2019, the trustee purchased a
total number of 58,590,000 shares (the “Share Purchase”)
on the market at a total consideration of approximately
$16,581,000 for the purpose of the Share Award Scheme.
As at 31 December 2020 and 2021, no grant of awards
has been made under the Share Award Scheme.

ZE-—FFR EERERERAT

28 LDEREEZROXRZ
() RIDEBE

AARRZE-NFMNA+IH
(THR& B ) SR B fn B Rh &t
3 BEERBESEALRTEER
AEBERKRERERIEHER

RIBR ) R R EIAR A ([ 5 BIAR
Al -2 ((2Fg)AR
ERAAEEKRERABNES -
EREREANALTREER NS
AR {7 BR D At 81 DA Ko B ) R R 15
K o Bxin BEhET 81 AR B BIAR
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28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) Share option scheme

Pursuant to ordinary resolutions passed on 28 December
2012, the Company adopted a share option scheme (“the
2012 Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of enabling
the Company to recruit and retain high-calibre employees
and attract resources that are available to the Group
and to provide the Company with a means of giving
incentive to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/
or providing benefits to such persons who contribute or
may bring benefit to the Group. The 2012 Share Option
Scheme will expire on 27 December 2022. In order to
enable the continuity of the share option scheme of the
Company, the Board proposes to adopt a new share
option scheme (the “2022 Share Option Scheme”) subject
to the approval of the Company’s shareholders in the
forthcoming 2022 annual general meeting. Details of
the 2022 Share Option Scheme are set out in the circular
enclosed with this annual report to be dispatched to the
shareholders.

Under the 2012 Share Option Scheme, the board of
directors of the Company may at their discretion grant
options to any eligible participant including any employee,
director, consultant, agent, business affiliate, business
partner, joint venture partner, strategic partner of the
Company or any subsidiaries of the Company, or any
supplier or provider of goods or services to the Company
or any subsidiaries of the Company, to take up options at
a consideration of $1 per each option grantee to subscribe
shares of the Company, as may be determined by the
directors from time to time to subscribe for the shares of
the Company. Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

On 30 August 2018, 65,000,000 options and 62,500,000
options were granted to directors and employees of the
Group by the Company under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme respectively. The directors estimated the weighted
average fair value of each option at the grant date to be
$0.12. The options vested on 31 May 2019 and would
then be exercisable from 30 August 2019 to 29 August
2028.

28
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A IR B RERTEI([ =
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28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) Share option scheme (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B S 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAEEHERIN)

28 LIEREECIBRORSZ(E)

(b) BBRMREERTEI(E)

- —FFR

On 23 December 2020, 5,000,000 options were granted
to a director of the Group by the Company under the
2012 Share Option Scheme. The directors estimated the
weighted average fair value of each option at the grant
date to be $0.1192. The options vested on 23 December
2020 and would then be exercisable from 23 December
2020 to 22 December 2025. The share price immediately
before the date on which the options were granted was
$0.390.

On 23 December 2020, 243,763,800 options carrying
the rights to subscribe for 243,763,800 shares were
granted to Mr. David An, a substantial shareholder and
an executive director of the Company, subject to the
independent shareholders’ approval at an extraordinary
general meeting held on 25 January 2021 (“the EGM").
The independent shareholders approved the said grant
of share options at the EGM. The directors estimated the
fair value of each option at the grant date to be $0.1049.
The exercise price of each option is $0.400 per share. The
options were vested on 25 January 2021 and exercisable
from 25 January 2021 to 22 December 2025. The share
price immediately before the date on which the options
were granted was $0.390.

ERRFEERAT

RZE-TF+-_A=-+=8"
AAGIRE T ——FHERE
AEmAEE—FEERY
5,000,00017 B B 4 - & H1{H5T
BHERERT L A BRI F
BHAREH0I192TT » %5
BHERA—ZE-_TF+_A=+=
HHEBE  ERR-Z=TF+=
A-+=Bz-_Z-_fR%F+—-H
Z+ MR TFTE - BEE
g EE BATIREA£$0.390 °

RZZE-TF+-_A=-+=8"
AARNEBRRRAITESH
12 56 £ 4% 243,763,800 17 Bif 5
R 7] 2R 8% 243,763,800 A% AX 17
RSN AE - BB REN =
T —F— B - +HBSRTH
REFRARE ([REFERIRE]) L
HEfE o B IR R B R R AT IR
T EibE ERUR LERE - ES
HET S M ERER R H B A
A 1EA0.10497T - &7 B
BITEE ASI0.400TT ° %5
BREA T _—F—A=TH
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Z+Z—HHMEAFTE - BEE
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28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) Share option scheme (continued)

194

On 14 April 2021, 3,000,000 options were granted to a
director of the Company under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme. The directors estimated the fair value of each
option at the grant date to be $0.1285. The exercise
price of each option is $0.340 per share. The options
will be vested on 14 April 2022 and exercisable from 14
April 2022 to 13 April 2027. The share price immediately
before the date on which the options were granted was
$0.340.

On 14 April 2021, 392,663,800 options carrying the rights
to subscribe for 392,663,800 shares were granted to
Mr. David An, a substantial shareholder and an executive
director of the Company, subject to the independent
shareholders’ approval at annual general meeting held on
2 June 2021 (“the AGM"). The independent shareholders
approved the said grant of share options at the AGM.
The directors estimated the fair value of each option at
the grant date to be $0.1194. The exercise price of each
option is $0.340 per share. The option will be vested on
14 April 2022 and exercisable from 14 April 2022 to 13
April 2027. The share price immediately before the date
on which the options were granted was $0.340.

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses of
$56,575,000 (2020: $596,000) were recognised in the
consolidated income statement (note 5(b)) for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

28
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28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 28 UEREECIRORS(E)
(continued)
(b) Share option scheme (continued) (b) BEBRFERTEI(E)
(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as (i) BRESHZERRET
follows: mE

Number of Contractual

instruments Vesting conditions life of options

IA¥A BERT BRESVER

Options granted to directors

RYTEERBNE

-on 30 August 2018 65,000,000 100% vested on 31 May 2019 10 years

-RZE-\F\A=1H RZE-NFRA=1—-R 106
2EEE

- on 23 December 2020 5,000,000 100% vested on 23 December 2020 5 years

-RIEZZF+AZT=H RZEZZF+-A=1+=H 5%
2B

-on 25 January 2021 243,763,800 100% vested on 25 January 2021 5 years

- —%-A-tEH RZZ_—%—-A_+hHA 5
2EEE

—on 14 April 2021 3,000,000 100% vested on 14 April 2022 6 years

-ZZ-—-F¥MA+TMmA RZZE-—FMA+mAH 6F
2UEE

—on 2 June 2021 392,663,800 100% vested on 14 April 2022 6 years

-ZZ_—%;XAZRA RZT-_FMA+IA 6%
2EEE

Options granted to employees

RTEE < EiE

-on 30 August 2018 62,500,000 100% vested on 31 May 2019 10 years

-RZZE-N\E\A=1H RZE-NFRA=1—H 106
2HEE

Total#85t 771,927,600
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28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS 28 LRERGEEZRORZ(E)
(continued)
(b) Share option scheme (continued) (b) BERAEFTEI(E)
(ii) The number and weighted average exercise (i) BREZEERMNEEY
prices of the share options are as follow: TEBWMT :
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise  Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
g e
THTEE BREZSE TOTRE  BREHE
2021 2020
—E-—F “ECTE
Outstanding at RENHKITE
the beginning of the year 0.246 78,500,000 0.236 122,500,000
Granted during the year RERFL 0.363 639,427,600 0.400 5,000,000
Forfeited during the year RERZI 0.340  (3,000,000) - -
Exercised during the year RERTTE - - 0.236  (49,000,000)
Outstanding at the end of ~ REREKITE
the year 0.350 714,927,600 0.246 78,500,000
The options outstanding at 31 December 2021 RZZT=Z—F+=A
had an exercise price of $0.236, $0.340 or $0.400 ST —HRERITEMNE
(2020: $0.236 or $0.400) and a weighted average f% #E1T (8 £0.236 7T *
remaining contractual life of 5.0 years (2020: 7.5 0340703, 0.4007L (= &
years). ZZ 4 :0.2367030.400

TC) RN FE I RIgr A 4 H
BLO0FE(ZTE-_TF : 75

F) -
The weighted average share price at the date of BHE_ZT-_—F+_H
exercise for shares options exercised during the year =+—HILFEE B7®
ended 31 December 2021 was $0.35 (2020: $0.41). BRERITES BRI
FHRER0IST(ZEZ
ZF :0417T) °
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28 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(b) Share option scheme (continued)

(iii)

ZEC—FFR

Fair value of the options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for
options granted is measured by reference to fair
value of the options granted. The estimate of fair
value of options granted is measured based on a
binomial model. The contractual life of the share
option is used as an input into this model.

28 LIESGEEIROXS(E)

(b) fBRRMERTEI(E)

(iii)

BREZDAABRRBRR

X B8 P M LA 4 B P 2 PR
BzrrfE  I2EMRE
LBz AR EFE -
BHBEREZARENLS
EAEAME - BEz
BHFHRELENZG
AR -

14 April 25 January 23 December 30 August

Grant date 2021 2020 2018
8- - Z®-)F

RHAH mA+EA +ZA=+=H  NA=+H
Fair value at HEEHY $0.1194 $0.1285 $0.1049 $0.1192 $0.12
measurement date NE 0.11947c 0.12857C 0.10497C 0.11927 0.127C
Vesting period BB 10 months 1year - - 9 months
1018A 1% - - 9{&lA

Share price R $0.375 50.34 §0.395 $0.4 $0.236
03757 0347 03957 047 023671

Exercise price 6@ $0.34 $0.34 $0.4 $0.4 $0.236
0347 0347 047 047 023671

Expected volatility EHRE 39% 44% 39% 39% 54%
Option life BivEES 6 years 6 years 5 years 5 years 10 years
6F 6% 5% 5% 105

Expected dividends BERE Nil % Nil % Nil % Nil % Nil %
2% 2% 2% T% Z%

Risk-free interest rate ~ EERFI= 0.831% 0.82% 0.322% 0.243% 2.17%

The expected volatility is based on statistical analysis
of weekly share prices of the Company over the past
years immediately preceding the grant date. The
calculation is based on the assumption that there
is no material difference between the expected
volatility over the whole life of the options and
the historical volatility of the shares of Company.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service
condition. This condition has not been taken into
account in the grant date fair value measurement
of the services received. There were no market
conditions associated with the share option grants.

ERRFEERAT

A AR R Ty E X B R H
EHABEFEARAE
FEIBABE &R DT - &t
BRRIBRERENE
BB 2 TE K R R
KR RBAD 2 SRR
EEINFEEREZER - =
Bm AERENELEY
AAEMBTERERTE -

FB B T AR IR AR 7S 16k F 1R
H e FFERLE AMER
BH AR ERILAREBZ
SR - REBREYE

B AT el o
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29

198

CAPITAL AND RESERVES 29 EBEXRR#E

(a) Movements in components of equity (a) REZMARIBD 2B E
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REB LG AR SHEKEHEIH)
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated HEHIR A SRR RS S
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes BE)FK o NAFE(ERESAERED
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s DANFEHRIE RN EEF
individual components of equity between the beginning IEEHT o

and the end of the year are set out below.

The Company /N |
Treasury
sharesheld  Share-hased
Share Share  undershare compensation Accumulated
capital  premium award scheme reserve losses
RERS
R
KEH RirEH
RivaE EF R e ZiEE
$'000 $'000 $'000 §'000
i i T T
(Note 28(a)) (Note 28(b))
(FrE28(a) '
Balance 1 January 2020 R-BE-EE-B-HzEHR 373204 710477 (16,581) 14,700 (91,459) 990,401
Changes in equity for 2020: It dak 3 1 LR
Loss and total comprehensive FREBR2ENGES
income for the year - - - - (5.282) (5,282)
Issue of ordinary shares on RERELER
placement (note 29(b)i) (HiEE29(o)i) 1750 38806 - - - 56306
Equity settled share-based NEREEZRNFRS
payment transaction - - - 5% - 5%
Shares issued on exercise of EERERDEIRR
share options 4,900 12,544 - (5,830) - 11,564
Balance at 31 December REB-BETZA=1-H
2020 and 1 January 2021 k=%--%-5-A
k=33 395,664 761,827 (16,581) 9,416 (96,741) 1,053,585
Changes in equity for 2021; “EC-FERER:
Loss and total comprehensive EREERZANEES
income for the year - - - - (62470)  (62,470)
Equity settled share-hased NEREE L RHAFRS
payment transaction - - - 56,575 - 56,575

Balance at 31 December 2021  R=E=-£+-A=1-H
it 395,664 761,827 (16,581) 65,991 (159,211) 1,047,690
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB EAERIN)

29 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 29 BARRFEE)
(b) Share capital (b) A&
(i) Issued share capital (i) BBRIRE

Number of
ordinary
shares Amount

BBERHE &8
'000 $'000
i T

Ordinary shares of $0.10 each: BREE0.10TZ

EER
Authorised: JETE
At 31 December 2020 and 2021 RNZEBE_ZTFR_FT-—F
+-RA=+—H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRHE -
At 1 January 2020 R-ZZE-ZF—-A—H 3,732,638 373,264
Issue of ordinary shares on PR AR B 1T 3 A% (BT 5 Gi))
placement (note (ii)) 175,000 17,500
Shares issued under BIE AR T2 21T
share option scheme (note (ii)) &A% (BR#E(Gii)) 49,000 4,900
At 31 December 2020, RZE-ZZEFE+-f
1 January 2021 and =+—H —ZE-—%F
31 December 2021 —A—-BAk=ZE-—F
+=-A=+—H 3,956,638 395,664
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TaRkFEE ABRBRKEIT
dividends as declared from time to time and are BREMERENRS - ILAE
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the BRARAEELZRER
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with —ERERR -FIBLE
regard to the Company’s residual assets. RERRBFBREESTE

HRISHAT -
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29 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(b) Share capital (continued)

200

(i)

(iii)

Share issued on placement

The Company completed the placing and
subscription, on 27 August 2020 and 28 August
2020 respectively, of 175,000,000 additional shares
at $0.33 per share for a total cash consideration
of $57,750,000. The share capital amount was
approximately $17,500,000 and share premium
arising from the issuance was approximately
$38,806,000, net of share issuance costs. The share
issuance costs mainly included share underwriting
commissions and other related costs, which were
incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance
of the new shares. These costs amounting to
$1,444,000 were treated as a deduction against the
share premium arising from the issuance.

Shares issued under share option scheme

On 30 October 2020, share options were exercised
to subscribe for 49,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at a consideration of $11,564,000, of
which $4,900,000 was credited to share capital
and $6,664,000 was credited to share premium.
$5,880,000 was transferred from employee option
reserve to the share premium accounts in accordance
with policy set out in note 1(r)(ii).

29 BAERRFHE)
(b) BRAR(E)

(ii)

(iii)

RERBTHZER
ARG DR T _FF
NA-_+ttBR-_Z-F
FNA-Z+tN\BEXERE
K 3285 175,000,000 A% 8 5
fxfn - BARIEE R0.337T -
4 18 © X {8 & 57,750,000
L e W AX & BH A
17,500,000 7T * B B 15
BT BITEER
% 15 & 18 49 & 38,806,000
T MO BEITRAEER
ERGBHEAS REMmA
BRA - BETHROE
BEEENEERA 2%
RN 5 1,444,0007T @ fR1E
BOEEMNBRGHEEARAN
s °

BEBREERTHRG
RZEZEF+A=F
H - BEBREEITEINRE
49,000,000 & A~ 2 7] & 1@
B - B A& 11,564,000
7T+ EF#4,900,0007T 2 5
ABA K 6,664,000 7T 2 51
AR {7 % & - 5,880,0007T
EARIBIEE1(r) (i) FT BB R
RIEEBREREE AR
iR EEK -
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29 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

0}

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

- —FFR

Share premium
The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands.

Special reserve
The special reserve arose from the reverse acquisition
in December 2004.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of operations outside Hong
Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note 1(w).

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for
foreign investment enterprises, a portion of the
profits of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in the
PRC is required to transfer to the statutory reserve.
The amounts of profits transferred to the statutory
reserve are determined by the board of directors
of the subsidiaries according to the articles of
association. The reserve is restricted to use and is not
available for distribution.

Treasury shares held under share award scheme

Treasury shares held under share award scheme
represents the shares purchased by the Group that
are not yet granted to directors and employees of the
Company that has been recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in note 1(r)(iii). The consideration paid for
the purchase of the Company’s shares is reflected as
a decrease in the equity of the Company.

ERRFEERAT

29

AR ()

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

IR 13 2 (B
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T ANRKEEMESL

RZ#E
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SMOEB R B REE
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IRIBMIEE 1 (W)PT L& 5T IR R
BRI o

EERE
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RPBEEENHERAN
B0 3 M 7R BB B 0K OE
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29 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

202

(9]

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(vi) Share-based compensation reserve
The share-based compensation reserve represents
portion of the grant date fair value of unexercised
share options granted to employees of the Company
that has been recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments
in note 1(r)(ii).

(vii) Asset revaluation reserve
The asset revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments designated at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 that
are held at the end of the reporting period (see note

1(9)).

Distributability of reserves

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its
shareholders comprise share premium and accumulated
losses which in aggregate amounted to approximately
$586 million as at 31 December 2021 (2020: $649
million). Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company
is available for paying distributions or dividends to
shareholders subject to the provisions of its memorandum
and articles of association and provided that immediately
following the payment of distribution or dividends, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. In accordance with the
Company'’s articles of association, distributions shall be
payable out of the profits or other reserves, including the
share premium account, of the Company.

29 BAERRHHE)

(9]

(d)

RETERRAR(E)

(vi) B0 ZH
BEOHMEEERTAR
AR B 2 REFTR B E
ZEEBHAAEZ
7 BRBFAPIEE(r)(ii)F
AR A 73 BB 2 ST R
ZERTEER T IAMER °

(vii) EEEHRAE
EEEHHBERRERRS
HRBEREET B R
ERAFIFRIEERILZAR
Bt AH b2 Wm0
TEENARBRETE
FE(RMIEE1g) °

AR RS

RAF MR IR 2 B E
BHRERRFTEE RZZ
T—F+-_A=+—HBAHHL
5.86BL( T T F : 64918
JT) © IREMEHE A RIE(EE
5] ARB Z AR E 0] B E
DIRKIEANRBIREE TR - M
%R MRERR B AFEAEA
BERAMMARZEE  mA
EERES IR MREREE - AR
AlNEE B E XK BREFEEE
HETS - RIBADQF ZAMER
LU NN s =L e |
Ebf#EE  BIEARR 2B GG
ERRPIEE °
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29 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(e) Capital management
The Group's primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
a net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines net debt as total debt (which includes interest-
bearing loans and borrowings), less cash and bank
balances. Capital comprises all components of equity, plus
net debt.

During 2021, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2020, was to maintain the net debt-to-capital ratio
at an appropriate level. In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group will consider and may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return
capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell
assets to reduce debt.

The net debt-to-capital ratio (as define above) was 0.95
(2020: 0.82) as at 31 December 2021.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and
commodity price risk arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group'’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade receivables and cash and bank balances.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry and country in which customers operate
and therefore significant concentration of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the balance sheet date, the
Group has a certain concentration of credit risk as 97%
(2020: 96%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group'’s five largest customers.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 30-
180 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances
that are more than one month past due are requested to
settle all outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 30 MKEREERESMIAEAAREBEE)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EEREREE)

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. To measure
the lifetime ECLs, the Group distinguishes the trade
receivables by different customers and by segments. The
Group considers first whether any trade receivable due
from an individual customer requires specific provisions.
Credit loss rates are assigned to the trade receivable by
reference to various qualitative and quantitative factors
such as market default rate of the industry in which the
customer operates and the credit ratings, historical default
experience and the financial position of the customer,
adjusted for other factors, where applicable, to reflect
the current and forward-looking information specific
to the customer and on the macroeconomic conditions
which might affect the customer’s ability to settle the
trade receivable. Under this approach, ECL of $5,000,000
was recognised for trade receivable amounting to
$344,082,000 due from a customer of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021. The management is of the
opinion that the ECL of the remaining trade receivables
of $19,075,000 were immaterial to the Group's financial
statements.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
trade receivables during the year is disclosed in note 20(b).
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost mainly
consist of other receivables. These mainly comprised of
deposits and other receivables due from third parties. The
Group'’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each debtor. In determining
the ECL, the Group has taken into account the credit
ratings, historical default experience and the financial
position of the counterparties, adjusted for factors,
where applicable, that are specific to the debtors and
macroeconomic conditions of the industry in which the
debtors operate, in estimating the probability of default
of each of these financial assets occurring within their
respective loss assessment time horizon, as well as the
loss upon default in each case. During the year ended
31 December 2021, lifetime ECL of $8,787,000 was fully
recognised for other receivables due from a debtor that
was in financial difficulty (2020: $Nil).

Cash and bank balances

In respect of cash and bank balances, the Group limits its
exposure to credit risk by placing deposits with financial
institutions that meet the established credit rating or other
criteria. Given these high credit ratings, management does
not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 56% of total cash and bank
balances were deposited with a financial institution in
Hong Kong (2020: 44%).
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 30 MKEREERESMIAEAAREBEE)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (b) BEL£HRBMHRR

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to
approval by the Company’s board when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority. The
Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group's
non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the
earliest date the Group can be required to pay:
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2021
—E--F -
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ARAERRER Aphs
More than  More than Carrying Morethan ~ More than Carrying
Within Tyear  2years amount at Within 1 year 2years amount at
Tyearor butwithin butwithin  More than 31 Tyearor  butwithin  butwithin -~ More than
ondemand  2years  Syears  Syears Total December on demand 5 years
—£h =8
IR BE-F  RERE =t-8 i
Xk EmEA BRFm  BELF G L] ? R N BBRE
§1000 §'000 §1000 §/000 §1000 i ! §000
v T fn n v ] 7 T
Bank loans RER /350 137433 41343 4518 905844 768175 211309 121918 429610 204071 966,908 789,778
Lease liabilties HERE 6,058 1887 5936 34,191 80mn 27,9% 8,259 6,010 5,583 3231 55,084 3,798
Trade and other EAREM
payables MR 41,495 - - - 41,495 41,495 100255 - - - 100255 100,25
Amoutsdueto  EATERES
related parties 7B 82802 - - - R8sl 882 80 - - STV | N VVE ]

384105 139320 479,079 75009 1078213 920466 402,05 127928 435193 239303 1204477 1,006,061
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(9

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group's interest
rate risk arises primarily from bank loans. The Group’s
bank loans at 31 December 2021 were issued at fixed
rates and therefore did not expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as
monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

Interest rate profile
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2021
— B2
Effective

2020
—T-TF
Effective
interest rate

BRI

Amount
x|
$'000
T

Amount
-]
$'000
T

interest rate

BRA=

Fixed rate borrowings: EEEE

Lease liabilities HEAE 1.7% - 6.8% 27,994 1.7% -6.8% 33,798
Bank loans RITER 6.5% -7.0% 768,175 6.5% -6.8% 789,778
Total borrowings BERE 796,169 823,576

REBENRITHEBBEIEE -
MEEMEEEHH T ELEAR
SENXEENEATE -

The Group's bank balances are short-term in nature,
and potential variations in interest rates do not have a
significant impact on the results of the Group.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Currency risk

0}

(ii)

- —FFR

Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through billings of (i) storage and warehousing
income and (ii) port and transshipment income
that are denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which they
relate. The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily
United States dollars (“USD").

As the Hong Kong dollar (“"HKD") is pegged to the
USD, the Group considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the HKD and the USD to be
insignificant.

Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of trade receivables and deposits held in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level,
by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates
where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the
functional currency of the entity taking out the loan.
Given this, management does not expect that there
will be any significant currency risk associated with
the Group’s borrowings.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 30 FiEREERESMIANABEE)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥mEb:E)
(iii) Exposure to currency risk (iii) BARENEERE

The following table details the Group’s exposure at TRINEAREEREER
the balance sheet date to currency risk arising from AERANEBERNGEE
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a BN BB FIME 2 B
currency other than the functional currency of the REEXEBEMEELEZE
entity to which they relate. Differences resulting from MRS - BT BRIiEE
the translation of the financial statements of foreign SOBINEBBIE®ER AN
operations into the Group's presentation currency EE27EES|IBrER -

are excluded.

2021
“E-—fF
usbD HKD
EY BT
$'000 $'000
T Fr
Original Presentation Original  Presentation
currency currency currency currency
R 25 R 25 &
Trade receivables B IR 43,483 339,083 - -
Cash and bank balances /e LIRS 899 7,013 23,877 185,120
Net exposure arising from  DHEREER
recognised assets and BEELY
liabilities SRR AT 44,382 346,096 23,877 185,120
(e) Commodity price risk (e) BEmMERERS
The Group is engaged in trading of oil and petroleum AEEREEEADBRABE
products. Prices of oil and petroleum products are affected m ° Ah kA HEmAERZE
by a wide range of global and domestic factors which are REBMEZESNEZNEHRR
beyond the control of the Group. The fluctuations in such NEETZ - FRAEENES
prices may have favourable or unfavourable impacts on Al AN SR [ E R A RIS R
the Group. H o
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 30 BIXEREERESMIAQNAEBE)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(f) Fair values f [2RE
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair () BRAAEEZSEBEE
value rEE

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The
level into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

e Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date.

e Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market data are not available.

e  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair values (continued)

212

()

0}

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the only financial
instruments of the Group carried at fair value were
other investments (See note 15). These instruments
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and
their fair value measurements fall into Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy described above.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
The fair values of other investments are determined
with reference to the fair value of the underlying
financial assets which are market unobservable.
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 30 MBEAREEREMIAAAEBE(E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(f) Fair values (continued) f) DREE)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (i) BROAEFEZESREE
value (continued) ka&E#E)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements BEHEBIERARBETEL
(continued) ER(E)
The movement during the year in the balance of FIBRAREABEHRZ
Level 3 fair value measurements is as follows: FEREHHMT :
Financial assets measured at FVOCI: BARERFAEMERKEZEZ
EENEE
At 1 January 2020 RZE_ZTF—H—H -
Payment for purchases EEIE 118,557
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 )‘5/\\_2_ SF+-_A=+—8K
—ZT-—F—HA—H 118,557
Payment for purchases BER 244,562
Changes in fair value recognised in other ilﬁﬁ"}élﬁnﬁ& NAEEE
comprehensive income during the year 309,336
At 31 December 2021 RZZE-_—F+=-A=+—H 672,455
Financial assets measured at FVPL: BAREFAEBRZZSREE
At 1 January 2020 RZE-TF—H—H -
Payment for purchases BEE IR 52,756
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or ~ FRREFERZ AL EE S
loss during the year (3,354)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 )‘EA_E_ ZFE+-_A=+—HK
—ZT-—%—HA—H 49,402
Payment for purchases A= e 24,956
Changes in fair value recognised in profitor ~ FERRIBFER L AL EEH
loss during the year 70,031
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+=-A=+—H 144,389
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(f) Fair values (continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

(continued)

The gains and losses arising from the remeasurement
of the financial assets measured at FVPL are presented
in the “Net fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss” line item in the

consolidated income statement.

31 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
The Group as lessor

The Group leases out certain non-current assets under

operating leases.

Rental and storage income earned during the year was
approximately $132 million (2020: $120 million). The leases are
negotiated for a lease term of 1 week to 7 years (2020: 1to 9
years). None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are receivables as follows:

30
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Within one year

After one year but within two years
After two years but within three years
After three years but within four years
After four years but within five years
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=—FREANFER
MEREBERFA

33,049 19,614
7,586 4,360
6,946 1,045
7,240 1,045
9,661 4,442

64,482 30,506
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32 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2021, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the financial statements in
respect of interests in a limited partnership of $78 million (31
December 2020: $103 million) (note 1) and the shares in BTHL
of $106 million (31 December 2020: $Nil) (note 2).

Note 1. At 31 December 2021, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the annual financial report
in respect of interest in a limited partnership of approximately
$78 million (31 December 2020: approximately $103 million).
The purpose of the limited partnership is primarily achieving
capital appreciation and participating primarily through
investments in equity and equity-related securities, mainly
in companies based in Asia-Pacific and Europe and portfolio
funds with a similar investment focus.

Note 2: The amount represented $106 million for subscription for
unlisted equity securities in BTHL. As at 31 December 2021,
51% of the BTHL shares held by the Group were deposited to
Templewater Bravo Holdings Limited. Such pledging of 51%
of the BTHL shares constitutes financial assistance provided
by the Group. Details of this transaction were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 3 December 2021. On 28
March 2022, the Group's subscription for the shares in BTHL

has been completed.

33 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered into
the following material related party transactions:

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel represents
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 7.

None of the above related party transactions falls under the

definition of connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB ERERSIN)

34 COMPANY-LEVEL BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 34 R-Z-—#+-A=+—HKNAT
BHEERER

Non-current asset ERBEE

Interests in subsidiaries NG Fa 1,051,489 1,051,489

Current assets REEE

Amounts due from subsidiaries il NGIE S 823,119 689,930

Cash and cash equivalents ReEkREFHEIAE 9,188 12,854
832,307 702,784

Current liabilities REBEE

Other payables and accruals Hib B RETHRE R 1,748 1,578

Amount due to subsidiaries TER B A R FIE 834,358 699,110
836,106 700,688

Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(ERE) BERE (3,799) 2,096

NET ASSETS EEFE 1,047,690 1,053,585

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXR#E

Share capital A& 7N 395,664 395,664

Reserves i 652,026 657,921

TOTAL EQUITY ez 1,047,690 1,053,585

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directorson R-T-_—F=A=+—HEE=gIE

31 March 2022 REETIE o
Yang Dong Zhang Lei
Director Director
Ea Ea
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B S 3R R B RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSR « HAEEHERIN)

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2021, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Vand
Petro-Chemicals (BVI) Company Limited, which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce
financial statements available for public use.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET

DATE

(i) On 6 January 2022, the Company remitted in total of
$6,000,000 to the trustee for the purchase of shares
of the Company pursuant to the Share Award Scheme
(note 28(a)). On 6 January 2022, the trustee purchased
a total number of 20,000,000 shares on the market at a
total consideration of approximately $3,234,000 for the
purpose of the Share Award Scheme.

(i) On 28 March 2022, the Group completed the $106
million Tranche 2 subscription for 211 shares of unlisted
equity securities in BTHL.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform
with the current year’s presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.
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38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS 38 CHEMERBE-—T=——45+=8

AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE ST —BHLEFEERERZIET - 5
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 AR REREARER 2 HE

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HEAMBHRRESMAY &g
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, and a new R A EEEMEIBEE R —IBHE]
standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet AR - BIR B RS ERIZE 175 R
effective for the year ended 31 December 2021 and which ey BEREE_ZE=_—F+=A
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These =T —BIEFERARER - TRARER
developments include the following which may be relevant to WA ERRK - ZEBHEBIETRE
the Group. HAZRNES EAERE 2 LA TBET o

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

SR IER: i

&R

ZETHIEEN

Amendments to HKFRS 3, BB RS ERIEIFIERT A 1 January 2022

Reference to the Conceptual BERNESELZ 1Bt —T-__F—HA—H

Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16, BEASFERIFE16RIBETA 1 January 2022

Property, Plant and Equipment: YF - BiEREEE — KT e e
Proceeds before Intended Use FE BT BT R 0E

Amendments to HKAS 37, BB ERIFEI7RIEFTA 1 January 2022

Onerous Contracts BIEE 4 —BITE A1 K —E-—_F—H—H

— Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to EEMBREEN T N\FE 1 January 2022
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle R FRAR FELCE =% —H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, BAGFEREIRIBETA 1 January 2023
Classification of liabilities as BESERTENIETE —E-=F—H—H

current or non-current
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38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS 38
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2,
Disclosure of accounting policies

Amendments to HKAS 8,
Definition of accounting estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12,
Deferred tax related to assets
and liabilities arising from
a single transaction

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the

consolidated financial statements.

R FFH ERRRERAT
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g s e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IABTTHIR © BB EAERIN)
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FTEAIRRIETREER ZHE(E)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

A58 sk

ZE&BE%

ZEFTHBER

BB ERE 1R R BB 1 January 2023
WL EHRAEL2RIETA —T-=—A—H

BERTIHE

EBRIEAEHSHTA -
Bt A TR

1 January 2023
—E_=%—H—H

BAGRTEAIE12RERT A
KEE—RGHEER
RIE1ABEALHE

1 January 2023
—E-=%—H—H
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Five Year Financial Summary

L FEHBEBE

2017
—T—tF
(Restated)

(#Z5)
$'000
T

Year ended 31 December

BEt-RA=t—HLEE

RESULTS 4
Continuing operations  JEE&E %%
Revenue WA

Loss before taxation BrBiRIEE
Income tax FrisHi

Loss for the year FREE

Discontinued operations #& 1F /8% %%
Profit for the year FRRF

Profit/(loss) for the year — EREHM,/(E1B)

Attributable to: FEQE
Equity shareholders of the A2 AIRLE
Company

Non-controlling interests ~ JEIZRRHERS

110,712 141,556 314,845 2,481,906 1,972,358
(68,298) (89,516) (127,824) (38,342) (8,154)
- (9,099) (3,552) (994) (5,364)
(68,298) (98,615) (131,376) (39,336) (13,518)
70,892 35,164 1,234,689 - -
2,594 (63,451) 1,103,313 (39,336) (13,518)
355 (62,406) 1,108,620 (40,095) (16,047)
2,239 (1,045) (5,307) 759 2,529
2,594 (63,451) 1,103,313 (39,336) (13,518)

At 31 December
R+=A=t+-—~H

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE

Total assets BERE
Total liabilities aELE

BE/(8&)FE

Non-controlling interests  FFIRRRHELS

Total (deficit/equity KRR FE(R 48
attributable to equity (54t HEw

shareholders of the
Company

Total equity/(deficit) g/ (B4

Net assets/(liabilities)

Note: The presentation of comparative information as at and for the

1,315,233 1,954,760 2,074,490 2,020,480 2,286,716
1,306,835 2,039,142 1,120,770 1,034,251 934,351
8,398 (84,382) 953,720 986,229 1,352,365
19,154 (7,590) 15,095 17,112 20,243
(10,756) (76,792) 938,625 969,117 1,332,122
8,398 (84,382) 953,720 986,229 1,352,365

year ended 31 December 2017 has been restated to show the

discontinued operations separately from continuing operations.
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